
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013  

5:00 P.M. 
701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 

City Council Chambers 
 
5:00 P.M. CLOSED SESSION (1st floor Council Conference Room, Administration Building) 
 
Public Comment on these items will be taken prior to adjourning to Closed Session 
CL1. Closed Session pursuant to Government Code section 54957.6 to conference with labor 

negotiators regarding labor negotiations with the Police Officers Association (POA) and 
the Police Management Association (PMA).   

 Attendees: Alex McIntyre, City Manager, Starla Jerome-Robinson, Assistant City 
Manager, Bill McClure, City Attorney, Gina Donnelly, Human Resources Director 

 
CL2. Closed Session with City Attorney regarding litigation 

(1) Existing litigation: Peninsula Interfaith Action, et al. v City of Menlo Park San Mateo 
County Superior Court Case No. CIV513882 pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(a); and  
(2) Potential litigation against the City of Menlo Park pursuant to Section 54956.9(b)(1) 

 
ROLL CALL – Carlton, Cline, Keith, Ohtaki, Mueller  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 
 
A1. Presentation by HIP Housing: Willow Road Project Update 
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS 

 
B1. Bicycle Commission quarterly report on the status of their 2-Year Work Plan 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 (Limited to 30 minutes) 

Under “Public Comment #1”, the public may address the Council on any subject not listed 
on the agenda and items listed under the Consent Calendar.  Each speaker may address 
the Council once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes.  Please clearly state 
your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.  The Council cannot act 
on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Council cannot respond to non-
agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general 
information. 

  

1



February 12, 2013 
Agenda Page 2 

  

D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
D1. Approve a change to the meeting schedule for the Environmental Quality Commission 

(Staff report #13-017)  
 
D2. Accept minutes of the January 22, 2013 Council meeting (Attachment) 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
E1. Consider an appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision to approve a Use Permit for 

the storage and use of hazardous materials (diesel fuel) for an emergency generator, 
associated with a professional office use at 2200 Sand Hill Road (Staff report #13-022) 

 
E2. Consider an appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision to approve a Use Permit and 

variance to construct two single-family dwelling units and associated site improvements on 
a substandard lot located at 1976 Menalto Avenue, and to consider an appeal of the 
Environmental Quality Commission’s decision to uphold an appeal of staff’s decision to 
remove a heritage size magnolia tree (Staff report #13-024) 

 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Review and modification of the City’s Fund Balance Policy and use of one-time revenues; 

approve funding mechanism for comprehensive planning and capital projects; approve 
establishment of separate infrastructure maintenance and capital projects funds  

 (Staff report #13-018) 
 
F2. Consider authorizing additional staff, appropriating $100,000 for 2012-13 budget and 

approximately $1.2 Million for 2013-14 budget and authorize a new Capital Improvement 
Project for City Hall improvements, appropriating $250,000 for the project and authorize 
the City Manager to execute any necessary contracts associated with the project not to 
exceed the budgeted amount  (Staff report #13-019) 

 
F3. Approve the Median Island and Right-of-Way Landscape Maintenance Service Request 

for Proposals (Staff report #13-020) 
 
F4. Council discussion and possible recommendation on various seats for determination at the 

next City Selection Committee meeting scheduled for February 22, 2013  
 (Staff report #13-021) 
 
F5. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item – None  
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None  
 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None  
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

 
I1. Update on the Housing Element meeting schedule (Staff report #13-023) 
 
J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 

2

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



February 12, 2013 
Agenda Page 3 

  

 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (Limited to 30 minutes) 

Under “Public Comment #2”, the public if unable to address the Council on non-agenda 
items during Public Comment #1, may do so at this time.  Each person is limited to three 
minutes.  Please clearly state your name and address or jurisdiction in which you live. 

 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956.  Members of the public can view electronic agendas 
and staff reports by accessing the City website at http://www.menlopark.org  and can receive e-mail notification of agenda and staff report postings by 
subscribing to the “Home Delivery” service on the City’s homepage.  Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting the City Clerk at 
(650) 330-6620.  Copies of the entire packet are available at the library for viewing and copying.  (Posted: 02/07/2013)   
 
At every Regular Meeting of the City Council, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the right to address the City Council 
on the Consent Calendar and any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to directly address the City 
Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during the Council’s consideration of the item.   
 
At every Special Meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda 
at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during consideration of the item.  
 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public record (subject to any 
exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, Menlo Park City Hall, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo 
Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.  Members of the public may send communications to members of the City Council via the City Council’s 
e-mail address at city.council@menlopark.org.  These communications are public records and can be viewed by any one by clicking on the following 
link: http://ccin.menlopark.org   
 
City Council meetings are televised live on Government Access Television Cable TV Channel 26.  Meetings are re-broadcast on Channel 26 on 
Thursdays and Saturdays at 11:00 a.m.  A DVD of each meeting is available for check out at the Menlo Park Library.  Live and archived video stream 
of Council meetings can be accessed at http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2   
 
Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 
(650) 330-6620. 

3

http://www.menlopark.org/
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org
http://ccin.menlopark.org/
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

4



 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: February 12, 2013  
Staff Report #: 13-017 

 
Agenda Item #: D-1 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Approve a change to the meeting schedule for the 

Environmental Quality Commission 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Environmental Quality Commission recommends approval of the Environmental 
Quality Commission changing their meetings to the fourth Wednesday of each month. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Environmental Quality Commission has had difficulty obtaining meeting space for their 
monthly meeting, which is the first Wednesday of each month.  The Commission’s January 
9, 2013 agenda included a discussion of alternatives to help locate a meeting space that 
would be available on a monthly basis.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The Commission members indicated changing the regular scheduled meeting would be 
helpful.  During the discussion by the Commission, it was determined that the current 
meeting room at the Recreation Center was booked for over half of the year.  The 
Council Conference Room on the first Wednesday is not available because the Housing 
Commission meets at that time.  The Commission, in a 6-0 vote, approved changing the 
meeting to the fourth Wednesday to better accommodate a meeting room. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
There are no impacts on City resources. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
Pursuant to City Council Policy CC-01-0004, section F4 states “Monthly regular 
meetings shall have a fixed date and time established by the Commission/Committee.  
Changes to the established regular dates and times are subject to the approval of the 
City Council.  An exception to this rule would include any changes necessitated to fill a 
temporary need in order for the Commission/Committee to conduct its meeting in a 
most efficient and effective way as long as proper and adequate notification is provided 
to the Council and made available to the public.”    
 
 

5



Page 2 of 2 
Staff Report # 13-017 

 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The proposed action does not require environmental review.   
 
 
   Signature on file  
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 
  
  

6



 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, January 22, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

 
Mayor Ohtaki called the Study Session to order at 5:36 p.m. with Council Member Cline arriving 
at 5:38 p.m. 
 
SS1.  Pension – Understanding the financial impact  
Carol Augustine, Finance Director introduced Mr. John Bartell, Bartel Associates, LLC who 
made the presentation. (PowerPoint) 
 
NOTE: Mayor Ohtaki left the meeting at 6:15 p.m. and Vice Mayor Mueller presided over the 
remainder of the Study Session. 
 
Public Comments 
• Mickie Winkler suggested using Moody’s expected rate of return for calculations.  She 

suggested reducing the number of employees on the staff. 
 

The Study Session ended at 6:57 and the Council took a short recess. 
 
Mayor Ohtaki called the Regular Session to order at 7:06 p.m. with all Council Members 
present. 
 
Mayor Ohtaki led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Ohtaki announced the upcoming community meetings and that Item F4 will be taken out 
of order and heard prior to F3. 
 
A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS  
There were no presentations made. 
 
B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS 

 
B1. Library Commission quarterly report on the status of their 2-year Work Plan 
Commission presentation made by Commission Chair Jacqueline Cebrian 
 
B2. Parks and Recreation Commission quarterly report on the status of their 2-year Work Plan 
Commission presentation made by Commission Chair James Cebrian 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1  
• Bill Weseloh, Menlo Park Historical Association, presented Council Member Carlton and 

Vice Mayor Mueller with a copy of the historical book, entitled “Beyond the Gate”. 
• Opha Wray, Mt. Olive Church spoke regarding the Hamilton Park cleanup and the addition 

of a bench in honor of Father Bostic.  She requested posting signs advising pet owners to 
keep their animals on a lease and to clean up after them. 

AGENDA ITEM D-2

7

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/01/22/file_attachments/186519/SS1%2B-%2BPension__186519.pdf�


January 22, 2013 Minutes – Page 2 

  

• Robert Heredia spoke regarding the Menlo Park Police Department and questioned what 
is being done regarding the officer that has been in the newspaper. 

• Hank Lawrence spoke in opposition to Consent Calendar Item D3, reusable bag 
ordinance. (Handout) 
 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Cline) to approve the consent calendar except for Item D2 
as presented passes unanimously. 
 
D1. Initiate the Menlo Park Landscape Assessment District proceedings for fiscal year 2013-14 

and adopt Resolution No. 2122 describing the improvements and direct preparation of 
the Engineer’s Report (Staff report #13-007)  

 
D3. Waive the second reading of Ordinance No. 989 and adopt San Mateo County’s reusable 

bag ordinance by reference by adding Chapter 7.10 [Reusable Bay Ordinance] to Title 7 
[Health and Sanitation] of the Menlo Park Municipal Code (Staff report #13-010) 

 
D4. Approve increasing the rebate for the Lawn Be Gone Program, direct staff to pursue 

increasing the rebate cap for commercial and multifamily customers and implement a 
landscape efficiency assistance planning in next year’s fiscal year water conservation 
budget (Staff report #13-014) 

 
D5. Rescind authorization for the City Manager to approve a contract with Akins North 

America, Inc., and authorize the City Manager to approve a contract with ICF International 
in the amount of $194,457 and future augments as may be necessary to complete the 
environmental review for the project located at 151 Commonwealth Drive and 164 
Jefferson Drive (Staff report #13-012) 

 
D6. Accept the minutes of the January 8, 2013 City Council meeting (Attachment) 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS  
There were no public hearings scheduled. 
 
F. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
F1. Adopt a resolution approving a Complete Streets Policy for the City of Menlo Park  
 (Staff report #13-011) 
Staff presentation by Chip Taylor, Director of Public Works  
 
Public Comments 
• Mickie Winkler spoke in opposition to the Complete Streets Policy. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Ohtaki) approving Resolution No. 6123 approving a 
Complete Streets Policy adding “business” prior to the word “days” in the last paragraph of the 
Policy passes unanimously. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Carlton/Keith) to take Item D2 passes unanimously. 
 
D2. Adopt Resolution No. 6124  authorizing the filing of an application for funding assigned to 

the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and commit the necessary matching 

8

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/01/23/file_attachments/186610/D3%2B-%2BPublic%2BComment%2B-%2BHank%2BLawrence__186610.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185780/D1%2B-%2BLandscape%2BAssessment%2BDistrict__185780.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185782/D3%2B-%2BReusable%2BBag__185782.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185783/D4%2B-%2BLawn%2BBe%2BGone__185783.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185784/D5%2B-%2B151%2BCommonwealth__185784.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185745/D6%2B-%2BMinutes__185745.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185743/F1%2B-%2BComplete%2BStreets__185743.pdf�


January 22, 2013 Minutes – Page 3 

  

funds and stating the assurance to complete the 2013-2014 Resurfacing of Federal Aid 
Routes Project (Staff report #13-009) 

This item removed from the Consent Calendar since it requires a Complete Streets Policy to 
move forward. 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Cline/Carlton) approving Resolution No. 6124 authorizing the 
filing of an application for funding assigned to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) and commit the necessary matching funds and stating the assurance to complete the 
2013-2014 Resurfacing of Federal Aid Routes Project passes unanimously. 
 
F2. Authorize the City Manager to approve an agreement with Infrastructure Engineering 

Corporation for the Emergency Water Supply Project to proceed with Environmental 
Review, well design, well construction, and wellhead facilities design at the City’s 
corporation yard by an amount not to exceed $430,691; and expand public outreach to the 
Tier 2 and 3 Sites as possible emergency well locations, and include an additional site 
along Alma Street as a Tier 3 Site (Staff report #13-016) 

NOTE: Vice Mayor Mueller is recused from the item due to the proximity of property that he 
owns and left the meeting at 8:28 p.m. and returned at 9:02 p.m. 
 
Staff presentation by Michel Jeremias, Senior Civil Engineer (PowerPoint) 
 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Cline) authorizing the City Manager to approve an 
agreement with Infrastructure Engineering Corporation for the Emergency Water Supply Project 
to proceed with Environmental Review, well design, well construction, and wellhead facilities 
design at the City’s corporation yard by an amount not to exceed $430,691; and to expand 
public outreach to the Tier 2 and 3 Sites as possible emergency well locations, and include an 
additional site along Alma Street as a Tier 3 Site passes 4-0-1 (Mueller recused). 
 
NOTE: Item F4 was taken out of order. 
F4. Accept the 2012 Advisory Body Attendance Report and discuss the status of recruitments 

(Staff report #13-015) 
Staff presentation by Margaret Roberts, City Clerk 
 
ACTION: By acclamation the Council accepted the 2012 Advisory Body Attendance Report. 
 
F3. Consider the Term Sheet for the Development Agreement for the Facebook West Campus 

Project located at the intersection of Bayfront Expressway and Willow Road 
 (Staff report #13-013) 
NOTE: Starla Jerome-Robinson announced that she is recused from participating in Item F3 
due to her husband’s employment and left the meeting at 9:10 p.m. 
 
Staff presentation by Alex McIntyre, City Manager (PowerPoint) 
 
Presentation by John Tenanes, Facebook 
 
Public Comments 
• Opha Wray spoke in support of Facebook. 
• Kail Lubarsky, JobTrain, spoke in support of Faccebook. 
• Mark Leach, San Francisco Building Trades Council, spoke in support of Facebook. 
• Fran Dehn, Chamber of Commerce, spoke in support of Facebook. 

9

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185781/D2%2B-%2BMTC__185781.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_101/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185744/F2%2B-%2BEmergency%2BWater%2BSupply%2BProject__185744.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/01/23/file_attachments/186626/F2%2B-%2BEmerg%2BWells__186626.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_102/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185746/F4%2B-%2BCommission%2BAttendance__185746.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2013/01/17/file_attachments/185785/F3%2B-%2BFacebook__185785.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/01/23/file_attachments/186608/F3%2B-%2BWest%2BCampus%2BFacebook%2BDevelopment%2BAgreement%2BTerm%2BSheet__186608.pdf�


January 22, 2013 Minutes – Page 4 

  

• Clem Molony spoke in support of Facebook. 
• George Yang spoke in support of Facebook. 
• Omar Chatty suggested that Facebook contribute the funds to complete the Bay Trail. 

 
ACTION: Motion and second (Keith/Carlton) to approve the Term Sheet for the Development 
Agreement for the Facebook West Campus Project located at the intersection of Bayfront 
Expressway and Willow Road passes unanimously. 
 
F5. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 

such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item  
There were no legislative items discussed. 
 
G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
There was no City Manager report given. 
 
H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION  
There were no written communications. 
 
I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
I1. Accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2012 (Staff report #13-008) 
The Council received the report. 
 
J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS 
Council Members reported in compliance with AB1234 requirements. 
 
K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2  
Wynn Grcich spoke regarding toxins.  (Handout) 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:59 p.m.  
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Minutes accepted at the Council meeting of  

10

http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_104/2013/01/22/file_attachments/186473/Staff%2BReport%2B-%2BCAFR%2Bapproval%2B2011-12__186473.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_283/2013/01/23/file_attachments/186629/K%2B-%2BPublic%2BComment%2B2%2B-%2BWynn%2BGrich__186629.pdf�


  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: February 12, 2013 
Staff Report #: 13-022 

 
Agenda Item #: E-1   

 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider an Appeal of the Planning Commission’s Decision 

to Approve a Use Permit for the Storage and Use of 
Hazardous Materials (Diesel Fuel) for an Emergency 
Generator, Associated with a Professional Office Use at 
2200 Sand Hill Road 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council should consider the merits of an appeal of the Planning Commission’s 
approval of a use permit for the storage and use of diesel fuel for an emergency 
generator, associated with a professional office (venture capital) use at 2200 Sand Hill 
Road. Staff recommends that the City Council uphold the action of the Planning 
Commission to approve the use permit, thereby denying the appeal, and approving the 
findings, actions, and conditions of approval for the use permit, as provided in 
Attachment A. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Proposal 
 
The project site is located at 2200 Sand Hill Road, and is a through-lot with frontages 
along Sand Hill Road and Sharon Park Drive. The project site is zoned C-1-X 
(Administrative and Professional, Restrictive, Conditional Development) and is 
developed with a two-story office building, with an interior courtyard. The proposed 
emergency generator is associated with a specific tenant of the building, Lightspeed 
Ventures. A location map is included as Attachment B. 
 
The San Francisco Public Utility Commission (SFPUC) right-of-way is located to the 
west of the project site, and a portion of the required parking for the project site is 
located on the SFPUC parcel, which is zoned R-3-A (X) (Garden Apartment 
Residential, Conditional Development). The parcel to the west of the project site, across 
the SFPUC parcel, is also located in the R-3-A (X) zoning district, and is occupied by a 
multi-story, multi-building condominium development addressed 675 Sharon Park Drive 
and also known as Lincoln Green. The SFPUC right-of-way is also utilized by the 
neighboring condominium development for access and parking. Other properties across 
Sharon Park Drive, to the north of the site share the R-3-A (X) zoning designation and 
are occupied by multi-family residential developments. The property to the east of the 

11



Staff Report #13-022 
 
 
project site is located in the same C-1(X) zoning district as the project site and contains 
a multi-story office building, with a ground floor bank use. Sand Hill Road borders the 
site to the south and the SLAC National Accelerator Laboratory, Stanford Hills Park, 
and single-family residences in the Stanford Hills neighborhood are located across 
Sand Hill Road from the subject site. 
 
The applicant, the property owner on behalf of their tenant, is requesting use permit 
approval to use hazardous materials in association with an outside emergency 
generator. The generator would utilize diesel fuel, and includes a 126 gallon tank within 
a generator enclosure. The applicant states that a power loss would be detrimental to 
the firm’s operations and that the proposed generator would allow for 48 hours of 
emergency standby power. Except in the case of a power outage, the generator would 
typically be run once a month for 30 minutes, consistent with the manufacturer’s 
recommendations for routine testing. The applicant provided a project description letter 
that describes the proposal in more detail (Attachment C).  
 
The applicant is proposing to locate the generator along Sharon Park Drive, adjacent to 
the existing trash enclosure. The applicant states that the proposed location was 
selected to avoid displacing parking spaces, conflicts with existing PG&E facilities, and 
landscaping adjacent to the building. The generator would be located within a new 
concrete masonry unit (CMU) enclosure with a wall height of approximately seven feet, 
six inches above grade and painted to match the existing trash enclosure. The 
enclosure height would exceed the height of the generator by approximately one foot. 
The proposed enclosure would be located six feet, eight inches from the property line 
along Sharon Park Drive. The enclosure would be set back approximately 27 feet from 
the SFPUC parcel and 53 feet from the nearest property occupied by residences. Inside 
of the proposed enclosure, the generator itself would be housed within a second sound 
attenuated enclosure. 
 
Since the unit is ground-mounted, the City’s noise regulations limit the maximum noise 
level to 50 dB(A) at the nearest residential property line during the evening hours and 
60 dB(A) during the daytime hours. While the SFPUC parcel is zoned residential, a 
portion of the parcel is used for parking for the project site and therefore, the sound is 
measured at the lease line of the project site within the SFPUC parcel, approximately 
55 feet from the proposed generator. The applicant’s project description letter contains 
a discussion of the noise-dampening effects of the CMU enclosure. However, to ensure 
compliance with Chapter 8.06 of the Municipal Code, also known informally as the 
noise ordinance, staff included a condition of approval (4.a) requiring that the applicant 
provide a noise study concurrent with the submittal of a building permit application to 
confirm that the unit will comply with the 50 dB(A) requirement at all times, which is 
more restrictive than the normally allowed daytime level of 60 dB(A).. If the unit does 
not comply, the applicant would be required to incorporate additional sound reduction 
measures into the project. As discussed below in the Planning Commission Action 
section of the report, the Commission amended the condition of approval to further 
mitigate noise impacts based on expressed concerns by neighboring residents. 
 

12



Staff Report #13-022 
 
 
 
Proposed Hazardous Materials 
 
The existing office building does not currently utilize hazardous materials and has not 
previously had an emergency generator. Diesel fuel for the generator would be the only 
hazardous material stored on-site. The project plans, included as Attachment D, 
provide the locations of the use and storage of the diesel fuel. The applicant has 
submitted a hazardous materials business plan (HMBP) that inventories emergency 
equipment, and contains an employee training plan and record keeping plan 
(Attachment E). The proposed generator would have a double contained tank, with low 
level and leak detector switches. In addition, the generator would contain a five-gallon 
overfill/spill basin.   
 
The Menlo Park Fire Protection District, City of Menlo Park Building Division, West Bay 
Sanitary District, and San Mateo County Environmental Health Services Division were 
contacted regarding the proposed use and storage of the diesel fuel. The 
correspondence from these agencies has been included as Attachment F. Each entity 
found the proposal to be in compliance with all applicable standards and has either 
approved or conditionally approved the proposal. Although the project site is located in 
close proximity to residences, there would be no unique requirements for the proposed 
use of diesel fuel. 
 
Use Permit Review 
 
The proposed use and storage of diesel fuel requires that the Planning Commission (or 
City Council, on appeal) determine whether or not the establishment, maintenance, or 
operation of the use applied for would, under the circumstances of the particular case, 
be detrimental to the health, safety, morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons 
residing or working in the neighborhood of such proposed use, or whether it would be 
injurious or detrimental to property and improvements in the neighborhood or the 
general welfare of the city.  
 
Staff believes the proposed emergency generator would not create any such hazard or 
nuisance, as it would be utilized infrequently for testing and in an emergency. Though 
the generator will create noise when in use, Condition 4.a as discussed above would 
establish a standard more restrictive than the City’s current standards for noise 
generation near residential properties. In addition, the applicant has modified the testing 
schedule from 15 minutes twice a month, to one combined 30-minute testing cycle once 
a month, for a total of six hours a year, which would limit potential impacts of noise to 
neighboring properties. The proposed generator would be required to meet all 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) standards. The storage and use of diesel fuel 
has been reviewed by the relevant agencies to ensure that the proposal meets all 
regulatory and safety standards. Emergency power generators are not uncommon 
components of modern office uses, in particular for financial businesses. 
 
 

13



Staff Report #13-022 
 
 
 
Planning Commission Review and Action 
 
On December 3, 2012, the Planning Commission reviewed the requested use permit. 
Members of the public (in particular residents of the adjacent 675 Sharon Park Drive 
development) spoke in opposition to the proposed generator. After receiving the public 
testimony and discussing the proposal, including potential impacts related to noise and 
air emissions, the Planning Commission approved the project subject to the findings 
and conditions included in Attachment A (vote of 5-0-2 with Commissioners O’Malley 
and Eiref abstaining). In response to concerns relating to noise impacts, the Planning 
Commission amended condition 4.a to include an additional noise measurement at a 
height above grade of the property line that generally corresponds with the upper level 
windows of the nearest building at the neighboring condominium complex. The 
additional measurement will require compliance with a maximum noise level of 50 
dB(A) at the SFPUC parcel lease line at both the ground level and at a height that is 
equivalent to the upper story windows. 
 
Appeal 
 
On December 3, 2012, Dennis Monohan of 675 Sharon Park Drive, Apartment 208, and 
54 additional residents of the Lincoln Green Condominium Association filed an appeal 
of the Planning Commission’s decision. The appeal letter is included as Attachment G.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The appeal letter raises a number of concerns with the proposed emergency generator. 
The concerns are listed below with discussion by staff. 
 

1. Noise: The appellant indicates that the neighbors are concerned about the noise 
impacts related to the generator.  

 
Although noise in the city is regulated by Chapter 8.06 of the Municipal Code, 
when a project is discretionary, the Planning Commission has the ability to 
modify the noise limitations through the conditions of approval. Staff initially 
added condition4.a requiring compliance with the more restrictive standard of 50 
dB(A) at all hours to further limit any potential noise impacts to the neighboring 
property. The Planning Commission amended the condition to include an 
additional sound measurement that will further limit noise impacts. As proposed, 
condition 4.a establishes a more restrictive standard than would otherwise be 
allowed by the noise ordinance and which staff believes adequately addresses 
potential noise from the proposed generator. 

 
2. Safety: The appellant raises concerns that the proposed generator is a 

fire/explosion hazard and that the proposed generator could be struck by 
vehicles driving along Sharon Park Drive.  

 

14



Staff Report #13-022 
 
 

The proposed generator would be located within a concrete masonry unit (CMU) 
enclosure, approximately 6 feet, eight inches from the property line along Sharon 
Park Drive. There is no fence between the project site and the CMU enclosure, 
and the enclosure would be located along the outside of a gradual curve; 
however, the setback from the property line and the vertical curb and sidewalk 
within the public right-of-way should reduce the possibility that a vehicle would 
collide with the enclosure. Staff is not aware of any incidents at this location in 
which vehicles have driven over the curb and onto the site. In addition, if a 
vehicle did reach the enclosure, the CMU enclosure and the fact that the diesel 
fuel would not be exposed would provide added protection. 
 
The Menlo Park Building Division and the Menlo Park Fire Protection District 
(MPFPD) were contacted regarding the proposed generator, including the use 
and storage of diesel fuel and the CMU wall enclosure and determined that the 
proposal meets all applicable Building and Fire Codes.  
 

3. Health Impacts: The appellant raises concerns about particulate matter and toxic 
air contaminants from the generator, as well as pollution from the diesel fuel 
delivery truck. 
 
The generator is intended to be utilized only during power outages and routine 
testing. Therefore, unless there is an emergency, the generator would operate 
approximately six hours a year. The proposed generator would comply with the 
Environmental Protection Agency’s Non Road Tier 4 emission standards. In 
addition, due to the small size of the generator (less than 50 horsepower), it is 
exempt from the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) permitting 
thresholds. Staff does not believe the fuel delivery truck operations are 
particularly different than other trucks that typically serve an office use (e.g., 
package delivery, office supplies, etc.). 
 

4. Location: The appellant raises questions about the appropriateness of the 
location of the proposed generator on-site, relative to the property line adjacent 
to 675 Sharon Park Drive.  

 
The site constraints limit the possible locations of the proposed generator. The 
applicant states in their project description letter (Attachment C) that the northern 
side of the building (adjacent to another commercial development) is not an 
option due to the 15-foot clearance that is required between the generator and 
any combustible materials, and the required access for the PG&E transformer. In 
addition, a signalized intersection, allowing access to the site and the Stanford 
Hills neighborhood, is located along Sand Hill Road, limiting the ability of the 
applicant to locate the emergency generator along Sand Hill Road. Furthermore, 
a significant portion of the project site along Sand Hill Road is located within the 
SFPUC lease area, and also a public utility easement (PUE), which further limits 
the ability of the applicant to locate the emergency generator along Sand Hill 
Road.  

15



Staff Report #13-022 
 
 

 
The proposed CMU wall was added by the applicant after the original application 
submittal, in order to reduce potential noise and visual impacts of the proposed 
emergency generator. The generator cannot displace required parking spaces, 
as there is not a surplus of parking on-site, and therefore, must be located in one 
of the existing landscaped areas on-site. Along Sharon Park Drive, existing trees 
and a reduced landscaping strip between the parking lot and the property line 
limit the ability of the applicant to locate the generator toward the commercial 
building at 2180 Sand Hill Road. With regard to the location of emergency 
generators along the Sand Hill Road corridor, emergency generators have been 
permitted at other commercial developments in the vicinity, for example at 
Quadrus (2400-2498 Sand Hill Road) and the Rosewood hotel-office complex 
(2825-2895 Sand Hill Road).  

 
Correspondence 
 
Since the appeal, staff has not received any items of correspondence on the project.  
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The applicant paid a deposit of $1,500 for review of the application for a use permit. 
Additional staff time above the initial deposit is cost recoverable on an hourly basis, 
through the end of the appeal period. The appellant paid a flat fee of $110 to file an 
appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision. Staff time spent on the review of the 
appeal to the City Council is not recovered, per Council policy. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
No changes to the General Plan or Zoning Ordinance are required for the project. Each 
use permit request is considered individually. The City Council should consider whether 
the required use permit findings can be made for the proposal to incorporate an 
emergency diesel generator at an existing office building. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) 
of the current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
 
 
 
  Signature on file  
Kyle Perata 
Assistant Planner 
 

 
  Signature on file  
Arlinda Heineck 
Community Development Director 

 

16



Staff Report #13-022 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Public notification consisted of publishing a legal notice in the local     

newspaper and notification by mail of owners and occupants within 
a 1,320-foot radius (quarter-mile) of the subject property.  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 
B. Location Map 
C. Project Description Letter 
D. Project Plans 
E. Hazardous Materials Business Plan (HMBP) 
F. Hazardous Materials Agency Referral Forms 

• Communication from Menlo Park Fire Protection District,  
• San Mateo County Environmental Health Department,  
• West Bay Sanitary District,  
• Menlo Park Building Division 

G. Letter of Appeal Submitted by Dennis Monohan of 675 Sharon Park Drive, 
Apartment 208, and signed by 54 residents of the Lincoln Green 
condominium development.  

 
 
Note: Attached are reduced versions of maps and diagrams submitted by the 
applicants. The accuracy of the information in these drawings is the responsibility of the 
applicants, and verification of the accuracy by City Staff is not always possible. The 
original full-scale maps and drawings are available for public viewing at the Community 
Development Department. 
 
 
DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW AT CITY OFFICES AND WEBSITE 
 

• Planning Commission Meeting Documents 
o December 3, 2012 

 Staff Report 
 Minutes 

 
    

17



ATTACHMENT A 
 

2200 Sand Hill Road 
Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 

February 12, 2013 
 
1. Make a finding that the project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, 

“Existing Facilities”) of the current CEQA Guidelines.  
  
2. Make findings, as per Section 16.82.030 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to the 

granting of use permits, that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the health, 
safety, morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of such proposed use, and will not be detrimental to property and 
improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the City.  

 
3. Approve the use permit subject to the following standard conditions: 
  

a. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the 
plans provided by abr engineers, consisting of five plan sheets, dated 
received November 26, 2012, and approved by the Planning Commission 
on December 3, 2012 except as modified by the conditions contained 
herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division.  

 
b. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all 

sanitary district, Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies 
regulations that are directly applicable to the project. 

 
c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all 

requirements of the Building Division, Engineering Division, and 
Transportation Division that are directly applicable to the project.  

 
d. If there is an increase in the quantity of hazardous materials on the project 

site, a change in the location of the storage of the hazardous materials, or 
the use of additional hazardous materials after this use permit is granted, 
the applicant shall apply for a revision to the use permit.  

 
e. Any citation or notification of violation by the Menlo Park Fire Protection 

District, San Mateo County Environmental Health Department, West Bay 
Sanitary District, Menlo Park Building Division or other agency having 
responsibility to assure public health and safety for the use of hazardous 
materials will be grounds for considering revocation of the use permit.  

 
f. If the business discontinues operations at the premises, the use permit for 

hazardous materials shall expire unless a new business submits a new 
hazardous materials business plan to the Planning Division for review by 
the applicable agencies to determine whether the new hazardous 
materials business plan is in substantial compliance with the use permit. 

 

18



   

4. Approve the use permit subject to the following project specific conditions:  
  

a. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, 
the applicant shall submit a noise study analyzing the project, which shall 
be conducted by a licensed acoustical engineer. The study shall analyze 
the noise output of the generator at the nearest residential property line 
(lease line on the SFPUC parcel), and also at a height above the property 
line that would generally correspond to where a direct line between the 
upper level windows of the closest residential building and the proposed 
generator would cross the property line.  If the proposed generator is not 
in compliance with the Noise Ordinance (Municipal Code Chapter 8.06) for 
nighttime hours, additional sound attenuation measures would be 
required, per the recommendations of the acoustical engineer. 

19



20

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



21

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



22



23



24



25



26



27



28

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



29



30



31



32



33



34

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT F



43



44



45



46

vmalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT G

vmalathong
Typewritten Text



47



48



49



50



51



52



 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: February 12, 2013 
Staff Report #: 13-024 

 
Agenda Item #: E-2   

  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Consider an Appeal of the Planning Commission’s Decision 

to Approve a Use Permit and Variance to Construct Two 
Single-Family Dwelling Units and Associated Site 
Improvements on a Substandard Lot Located at 1976 
Menalto Avenue, and to Consider an Appeal of the 
Environmental Quality Commission’s Decision to Uphold an 
Appeal of Staff’s Decision to Remove a Heritage Size 
Magnolia Tree  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council should consider the merits of an appeal of the Planning Commission’s 
approval of a use permit and variance to demolish a single-story, single family 
residence and construct two two-story, single-family dwelling units and associated site 
improvements, on a substandard lot. In conjunction with the appeal of the Planning 
Commission’s decision, the Council should consider the merits of an appeal of the 
Environmental Quality Commission’s (EQC) decision to uphold an appeal of staff’s 
decision to approve the removal of a heritage size magnolia tree. Staff recommends 
that the City Council deny the appeal and uphold the Planning Commission’s action to 
approve the use permit and variance and uphold the appeal of the EQC decision, 
thereby allowing the heritage magnolia tree to be removed. The recommended findings, 
actions, and conditions of approval for the use permit and variance are provided in 
Attachment A. 
 

53



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The proposal’s key milestones are summarized in the following table and are described 
in more detail throughout this report. 
 

Date Milestone Action/Result 
May 2, 2012 Application Submittal Staff commenced technical review of 

proposal and provided notice of 
application submittal to neighbors 

September 24, 2012 Planning Commission Study 
Session 

Planning Commissioners considered 
public comments and provided individual, 
tentative guidance to applicant 

November 19, 2012 Planning Commission Public 
Hearing 

Use Permit and Variance approved 

November 21, 2012 City Arborist Heritage Tree 
Permit Action 

Permits for three tree removals approved 

November 29, 2012 Appeal of Use Permit, 
Variance, and Heritage Tree 
Removal Permit Approvals 
(by Neighbors) 

Appeals tentatively scheduled for 
Environmental Quality Commission 
(EQC) and City Council consideration 

January 9, 2013 EQC Consideration of 
Appeals of Heritage Tree 
Permits 

Appeals denied and removal permits 
upheld for two trees; appeal upheld and 
removal permit denied for one tree (Tree 
#1, magnolia) 

January 17, 2013 Appeal of EQC Denial of 
Heritage Tree Removal 
Permit (by Applicant) 

Appeal tentatively scheduled for 
comprehensive City Council 
consideration, along with use permit and 
variance appeals 

February 12, 2013 City Council Consideration of 
All Appeals 

TBD 

 
Proposal 
 
The applicant originally submitted an application for a use permit and variance to 
construct two new units on a substandard lot on May 2, 2012. The application included 
requests for three heritage tree removal permits. Staff received a number of items of 
correspondence on the initial application from surrounding neighbors. Based partially on 
the neighborhood correspondence, the applicant requested that the Planning 
Commission review the proposed project as a study session item to provide input on 
the proposed design as well as the variance requests. The letters on the initial 
application and additional public comments were reviewed and considered by the 
Planning Commission at a study session on September 24, 2012. As a study session 
item, the Commission did not take formal action on the application, but provided 
general feedback to the applicant on the proposed design and variance requests.  
 
After the Study Session, the applicant modified the plans to take into account the 
Planning Commission’s guidance. The revised project as subsequently considered and 

54



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
acted on by the Planning Commission is summarized below and is the basis for the City 
Council’s comprehensive review. 
 
Site Location 
 
The project site is located at 1976 Menalto Avenue, between O’Connor Street and Elm 
Street in the Willows neighborhood. A location map is included as Attachment B. The 
property is zoned R-2 (Low Density Apartment) and developed with a single-story, 
single family residence, which is currently vacant.  
 
Using Menalto Avenue in an east to west orientation, the parcels across the street, to 
the north, are part of the R-2 zoning district, with the exception of the shopping center 
at 1913-1933 Menalto Avenue. The parcels that make up the shopping center have a 
zoning district designation of C-2 (Neighborhood Shopping) and P (Parking). The 
adjacent parcels, along the south side of Menalto Avenue, are located in the R-2 zoning 
district. The subject property is located near the intersection of O’Connor Street and 
Menalto Avenue. Parcels to the rear of the subject site, which are panhandle lots along 
O’Connor Street, are located in the R-1-U (Single-Family Urban) zoning district. The 
parcels along O’Connor Street are zoned R-1-U, with the exception of the three parcels 
closest to Menalto Avenue (100, 106, and 110 O’Connor Street), which are zoned R-2. 
The parcel to the north of the subject site, along Menalto Avenue, is zoned R-2, like the 
project site. Most of the other parcels in the greater neighborhood are in the R-1-U 
zoning district. A mixture of housing types, including single-family residences, two-unit 
developments, and multi-family developments, occupy the surrounding residential 
properties. Most of the newer residences are two-story structures in a variety of 
traditional residential styles. 
 
Project Description 
 
The existing parcel is a panhandle lot, with the access in the middle, rather than the 
typical “flag” lot layout, which results in a “T” shaped lot. As defined by the Zoning 
Ordinance, the front lot line, in the case of a panhandle lot, is the shorter dimension of 
the lot boundaries which are contiguous to the private driveway or easement which 
provides access to the lot. As applied to the project site, the front lot line is the line 
parallel to Menalto Avenue. This results in a lot that is approximately 54 feet in depth 
and approximately 112 feet in width, making the lot substandard with regard to lot 
depth. After applying the front and rear setback requirements of 20 feet, the buildable 
depth is reduced to between 12 and 16 feet. The applicant is requesting variances to 
encroach into the front and rear setbacks. The existing structure is nonconforming with 
regard to the front and rear setbacks. 
 
The proposed design would create two comparably sized, detached single-family 
houses, where two units is the maximum number allowed per the site’s lot area and 
zoning district. The applicant is proposing to construct a total of 2,444.8 square feet of 
floor area, representing a 40 percent Floor Area Limit (FAL), the maximum allowed, and 
1,561.2 square feet of building coverage or 19.1 percent, which is well below the 

55



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
maximum permitted of 35 percent. The proposal would comply with the R-2 second-
story FAL limit of 15 percent. The maximum permitted FAL is based on the net lot area, 
which excludes the panhandle portion of the lot. However, the panhandle portion is 
included for purposes of calculating the maximum density and building coverage. The 
R-2 zoning district requires that 40 percent of the site contain landscaping. The 
proposed development currently contains 61.5 percent (5,025.85 square feet) of 
landscaping and open space. However, the landscaping requirement is currently 
proposed to be met partially through the use of permeable pavers for the driveway and 
open parking areas, which may be calculated as half paving and half landscaping. With 
the inclusion of condition of approval 4.b (added by City Staff, including input from the 
City Arborist, after the printing of the Planning Commission Staff Report), the driveway 
would be revised to include impervious material, instead of pervious pavers, to help 
reduce the impact of the driveway excavation on the oak tree at 106 O’Connor Street. 
Therefore, the amount of landscaping would decrease and staff will verify that the 
project will meet the 40 percent minimum landscaping and open space requirement 
during the review of the building permit.  
 
The units would be mirror images of each other, located across a parking court from 
one another. As originally proposed, the units included front setbacks of between 10 
and 14 feet, a rear setback of 10 feet, a left side setback of 12 feet, six-and-a-half 
inches, and a right side setback of 13 feet, five-and-a-half inches. The original proposal 
also contained a 33-foot separation between the units. As a result of direction by the 
Planning Commission at the study session, the side setbacks were increased to 20 feet 
by bringing the units closer together and modifying the floor plans, which resulted in 
slightly reduced front setbacks for each unit. The units are currently proposed to be 20 
feet, three-and-a-half inches apart for the main portion of the units, and 24 feet and a 
half inch at the garage doors. The front and rear setbacks would be a minimum of ten 
feet. 
 
Both units would have two bedrooms, two-and-a-half bathrooms, and a private yard 
area. On the second floor, each unit would contain a balcony adjacent to the master 
bedroom. The balconies would face the parking court, which is the interior of the site. 
The units would be a maximum of 24 feet in height, which is below the maximum 
permitted height of 28 feet. The proposed development would comply with the daylight 
plane requirement, as well as all applicable development standards, with the exception 
of the required front and rear setbacks, for which the applicant has requested a 
variance. 
 
The applicant intends to pursue administrative approval of a tentative parcel map for 
the creation of two condominium units, which would allow each unit to be sold 
individually. For new construction, minor subdivisions can be approved administratively, 
if a project has previously obtained use permit approval. 
 
The applicant’s project description letter and project plans are available as Attachments 
C and D, respectively. 
 

56



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
Design and Site Layout 
 
Each of the two units would have one attached covered parking space, with one 
uncovered parking space located in the rear setback, adjacent to the covered parking 
space, and accessed via the parking court between the units. Although a variance is 
required for the front and rear setbacks, parking is permitted within the required rear 
setback and therefore, the proposed uncovered parking spaces do not require a 
variance. The proposed layout of the parking complies with the parking and driveway 
design guidelines for required back-up distance. Each unit would contain a patio with a 
height of less than 12 inches above grade, located within the side yards (functionally 
each unit’s rear yard). The applicant is proposing to plant a row of English laurel trees 
along the side property lines to help minimize potential privacy impacts to the 
neighbors. 
 
The units are designed in a contemporary style. The homes would contain rectangular 
geometries and clean finish materials, including smooth stucco and stained horizontal 
wood siding. The applicant is proposing to utilize slightly different tones on the units to 
provide modest individuality between the units. The garage doors would be painted 
paneled wood, and the windows would be wood frame aluminum clad windows, with 
simulated true divided lights of a contemporary pattern. On the second floor, the 
bathroom windows would be textured or frosted glass to help limit potential impacts to 
the neighbors. The design would feature pitched roofs, which would incorporate a more 
traditional design element into the contemporary design of the development. The roofs 
would consist of a standing seam system with deep closed eave overhangs. 
 
Variances 
 
As prescribed by the Zoning Ordinance, approval of any variance request requires that 
the following five specific findings be made: 
 

1. That a hardship peculiar to the property and not created by any act of the owner 
exists. In this context, personal, family or financial difficulties, loss of prospective 
profits and neighboring violations are not hardships justifying a variance. Further, 
a previous variance can never have set a precedent, for each case must be 
considered only on its individual merits; 

2. That such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of 
substantial property rights possessed by other conforming property in the same 
vicinity and that a variance, if granted, would not constitute a special privilege of 
the recipient not enjoyed by his/her neighbors; 

3. That the granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public 
health, safety, or welfare, or will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to 
adjacent property; 

4. That the conditions upon which the requested variance is based would not be 
applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification; and 

5. That the condition upon which the requested variance is based is an unusual 
factor that was not anticipated or discussed in detail during any applicable 

57



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 

Specific Plan process. This finding would not be applicable in this case since 
there is no Specific Plan which governs the property. 

 
The applicant is requesting a variance to encroach into the required front and rear 
setbacks for each unit. The west unit (using Menalto in an east to west orientation) is 
proposed to encroach approximately six feet, nine inches into the required front 
setback, and nine feet into the required rear setback, which would result in a 13-foot, 
three-inch front setback and an 11-foot rear setback. The east unit is proposed to 
encroach approximately nine feet, six inches into the required front setback, and 10 feet 
into the required rear setback, which would result in a 10-foot, six-inch front setback 
and a 10-foot rear setback. The applicant has provided a variance request letter that 
has been included as Attachment E.  
 
In the variance request letter, the applicant states that the hardship is particular to the 
property and not created by any act of the owner, due to the unusual T-shape of the 
property with the access centered on the lot as opposed to a more typical panhandle lot 
with access to one side. Additionally, the applicant explains that the unusual 
configuration drives the determination of the front lot line as being the longer line 
parallel to Menalto Avenue. The T-shaped lot is unlike any other lot in the 
neighborhood, making this a distinct case, which results in a buildable envelope 
between 12 and 16 feet deep. The applicant states that the shallow nature of the lot 
makes it a challenge to provide functional single-family homes and required parking 
within the required setbacks. The applicant studied various options, an example of 
which is shown in Attachment E for a two unit development that would not require 
variances; however, due to the required setbacks, limit on second level floor area, and 
parking requirements, the design was determined to be infeasible. The applicant 
discusses the design alternatives and feasibility in more detail in Attachment E.  
 
The applicant states that the variances are necessary for the preservation and 
enjoyment of substantial property rights possessed by other conforming property in the 
vicinity, and would not constitute a special privilege due to the unique constraints 
presented by the location of where the panhandle adjoins the main portion of the lot, 
and the required setbacks that result from the panhandle location. Attachment E 
contains a diagram showing how the Zoning Ordinance setback requirements would 
apply to the property for a typical L-shaped panhandle lot, and compares those typical 
setbacks to the setbacks for the subject site.  
 
The applicant also explains that in addition to the T-shaped nature of the lot, the 
combination of the location, and the shape of the lot creates atypical contiguous 
setbacks between the subject property and the adjacent properties. The applicant 
states that the site layout and design is intended to minimize impacts on the neighbors, 
and maximize the open space and required yards on-site.  
 
Staff evaluated the variance request based on the applicable variance findings and 
determined that the unusual configuration of the property as a T-shaped lot and 
resulting shallow depth of the property creates a hardship and limits the ability to 

58



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
develop the property while meeting all required development standards. More typically 
shaped and more often found panhandle lots would not face the same restrictions that 
are created by the shallow depth. Although the depth creates an added constraint, the 
property does have the minimum lot area for two units and, as such, the granting of a 
variance would not constitute a special privilege, but instead would allow the property to 
be developed similar to more typical panhandle lots in the R-2 zoning district.  
 
The applicant has designed the development to limit the variance requests as much as 
possible, and has increased setbacks were possible to limit impacts on the neighbors. 
In addition, the proposal would comply with the City’s daylight plane requirements and, 
as a result, should not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and 
welfare, nor impair adequate supply of light to the adjacent properties. 
 
Trees and Landscaping 
 
The applicant submitted an arborist report with the initial project proposal, detailing the 
species, size, and conditions of all significant trees on site, and on adjacent properties. 
As part of a full resubmittal, the applicant submitted a revised arborist report 
(Attachment F), which determines the present condition of the heritage trees and non-
heritage trees on site, and identifies tree preservation and protection measures. The 
applicant has retained an additional arborist to review the initial arborist report. The 
additional arborist letter is discussed more in the Appeal section of the report.  
 
The applicant is proposing to remove three heritage size trees:  
 

Tree 
Number 

Tree Type Diameter Location on 
Property 

Condition 

#1 

Basis for Removal 
Request 

Magnolia 19.5 inches Middle-right Good Construction 
#2 Chilean 

lantern 
16.5 inches Right Fair Health/Structure 

#3 Valley oak 17 inches Middle-rear Fair Health/Structure 
 
The proposed site layout would result in the magnolia tree being located within the 
footprint of the development. The proposed development attempts to balance the 
impacts of the structures on the neighboring properties, as well as the heritage trees 
on-site and on neighboring parcels. In order for the development to incorporate larger 
side setbacks, in keeping with the direction of the Planning Commission, the applicant 
is requesting to remove the heritage magnolia tree. 
 
The arborist report also assesses the potential impacts of the proposed development 
on four trees on neighboring properties: 
 

• A 35-inch coast live oak located near the intersection of the panhandle access 
and the main portion of the lot; 

• Two 30-inch Monterey pine trees located along the west side property line of the 
panhandle; and 

59



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 

• A 25-inch honey locust, located near the right-front lot line on the neighboring 
parcel) 

 
The arborist report provides mitigation measures to reduce construction impacts. The 
arborist specifically discusses foundation construction within the tree protection zone of 
the coast live oak and also identifies mitigation measures for potential impacts of the 
driveway on the two stone pine trees. As stated by the arborist, these techniques would 
reduce construction impacts to a less-than-significant level.  
 
In compliance with City procedures, the applicant is proposing to plant new heritage 
replacement trees. Specifically, the applicant is proposing to plant a 15-gallon redwood 
tree in the rear, right corner of the property. The applicant is working with the neighbors 
to determine a suitable replacement tree for the rear, left corner of the property. The 
third heritage tree replacement would be planted along the front, right property line, 
which would be the same species as the heritage tree replacement in the rear, left 
corner of the property. Staff added condition of approval 5a requiring the applicant to 
incorporate the species and size of the two additional heritage tree replacements on the 
building permit plans, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division and City 
Arborist. In addition, the applicant is proposing to plant English laurel trees and 
additional ornamental trees along the side property lines to help limit potential impacts 
to the neighbors. 
 
Planning Commission Review and Action 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the project at its meeting of November 19, 2012. 
After considering public comment, the Commission conditionally approved the project 6-
0-1, with Commissioner Onken (who was not on the Planning Commission at the time 
of the September 24 study session) abstaining.  
 
City Arborist Action 
 
With regard to the heritage trees on-site, the City Arborist had tentatively approved 
removal of Tree #2 (Chilean lantern) and Tree #3 (valley oak), as the removal requests 
were not integral to the proposed development project. However, when the City has a 
discretionary development application, such as a use permit and/or variance, the public 
notice of the City’s heritage tree action is not sent until after the Planning Commission 
takes action on the overall project. The City Arborist did not take action on Tree #1 
(magnolia), since it was development related, and subject to review in conjunction with 
the overall project. The Planning Commission’s November 19, 2012 approval of the 
development project enabled staff to take formal action to approve all three heritage 
tree removals. 
 
Appeal of Use Permit, Variance, and Heritage Tree Removal Permit Approvals 
 
On November 29, 2012, the City Clerk’s office received an appeal of the Planning 
Commission’s approval of the use permit and variance and an appeal of the three 

60



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
heritage tree removal permits. The appeal was submitted by Michelle Daher, and is 
discussed in more detail in the Analysis section of this report. 
 
Environmental Quality Commission Review of Heritage Tree Permit Appeals 
 
The EQC reviewed the three heritage tree appeals at its meeting of January 9, 2013. 
While the appellant’s letter also discussed perceived impacts to the neighboring coast 
live oak tree located on the property addressed 106 O’Connor Street, the EQC’s review 
was limited to the appeal of the three on-site heritage tree removal permits. Section 
13.24.040 of Menlo Park’s Heritage Tree Ordinance requires staff to consider the 
following eight factors when determining whether there is good cause for permitting 
removal of a heritage tree: 
 

(1)  The condition of the tree or trees with respect to disease, danger of falling, 
proximity to existing or proposed structures and interference with utility services; 

 

(2)  The necessity to remove the tree or trees in order to construct proposed 
improvements to the property; 

 

(3)  The topography of the land and the effect of the removal of the tree on erosion, 
soil retention and diversion or increased flow of surface waters; 

 

(4)  The long-term value of the species under consideration, particularly lifespan and 
growth rate; 

 

(5)  The ecological value of the tree or group of trees, such as food, nesting, habitat, 
protection and shade for wildlife or other plant species; 

 

(6)  The number, size, species, age distribution and location of existing trees in the 
area and the effect the removal would have upon shade, privacy impact and 
scenic beauty; 

 

(7)  The number of trees the particular parcel can adequately support according to 
good arboricultural practices; and 

 

(8)  The availability of reasonable and feasible alternatives that would allow for the 
preservation of the tree(s). 

 
The EQC denied two of the heritage tree removal permit appeals in a 4-0-1-2 vote (with 
Commissioner Kuntz-Duriseti absent and Commissioners DeCardy and Marshall 
recused), based on considerations 1, 4, and 8 of the heritage tree ordinance. However, 
the EQC upheld the appeal of the magnolia tree, resulting in denial of the request to 
remove the tree, based on considerations 2 and 8 of the Heritage Tree Ordinance in a 
4-0-1-2 vote (with Commissioner Kuntz-Duriseti absent and Commissioners DeCardy 
and Marshall recused).  
 
Although the EQC’s review was restricted to the three on-site removal requests, the City 
Council has the ability to consider impacts to neighboring properties, including impacts 
to trees on neighboring properties, through the use permit and variance requests. Such 

61



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
impacts were a topic of review by the Planning Commission, and are discussed in more 
detail in the Analysis section. 
 
Appeal of Environmental Quality Commission Decision 
 
Subsequently the project applicant appealed the EQC’s decision to uphold the appeal 
of the magnolia tree and deny the removal of the tree. The City Council should consider 
all appeals comprehensively. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Appeal of the Planning Commission’s Action 
 
The appeal letter (Attachment G) of the Planning Commission’s action raises a number 
of concerns with the proposed project, including the following items: 
 

1. Parking Location: The appellant indicates that idling cars could impact the 
neighboring property, as uncovered parking spaces are located adjacent to the 
rear property line, which is shared with 120 O’Connor Street.  
 
Required parking is not permitted in the required front and side yard setbacks; 
however, required parking is permitted in the required rear yard setback. Since 
the property line parallel to Menalto Avenue is considered the front lot line, the lot 
line shared with 120 O’Connor Street would be considered the rear property line. 
The required parking would be located behind the units, completely contained 
within the rear yard setback, and visually obstructed from the 120 O’Connor 
Street by existing/proposed fencing. 
 
The residence at 120 O’Connor Street is located approximately 11 feet, six 
inches from the proposed uncovered parking space for the western unit, and 
approximately 19 feet, nine inches from the proposed uncovered parking space 
for the eastern unit. In addition to the fencing, a small landscape strip between 
the proposed parking spaces and the shared property line could be utilized to 
plant screening to minimize any potential impacts to the property at 120 
O’Connor Street. Lastly, staff believes that any potential noise effects from 
parking in this location would be limited in duration, as residents typically do not 
idle parked cars for extended periods of time or engage in unnecessary 
opening/closing of vehicle doors or trunks. 
 

2. Removal of the Existing Tree Canopy, Through the Removal of Three Heritage 
Trees: The appellant raises concerns about the removal of three heritage trees 
on-site and the impact that the resulting loss of tree canopy would have on the 
neighborhood. 
 
As discussed above, the City Arborist acted on the requests to remove two of the 
heritage trees based on the health of the trees, which are in fair condition. Staff 

62



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 

initially directed the applicant to consider design alternatives that would preserve 
the heritage size magnolia tree; however, at the Planning Commission study 
session, the Commission directed the applicant to increase the side yard 
setbacks to 20-feet, to be consistent with typical L-shaped flag lots. Therefore, 
designs that would have preserved the magnolia tree would not have been 
consistent with the Planning Commission’s study session direction and 
subsequent action. 
 

3. Impacts to Heritage Oak Tree Located on 106 O’Connor Street: The applicant’s 
appeal letter states that long-term damage is possible to the heritage oak tree, 
located on the property addressed 106 O’Connor Street. 
 
The arborist report, dated November 14, 2012 assesses the potential impacts of 
the proposed development on four trees on neighboring property, as previously 
described and provides mitigation measures to reduce construction impacts. The 
arborist specifically discusses foundation construction within the tree protection 
zone of the coast live oak on the neighboring property and also identifies 
mitigation measures for potential impacts of the driveway on the two stone pine 
trees. As stated by the arborist, these techniques would reduce construction 
impacts to a less-than-significant level.  
 
In addition to the project arborist evaluation and report, the Planning Division 
worked with the City Arborist, prior to the November 19 Planning Commission 
meeting, to ensure that the project included additional mitigation measures to 
limit potential impacts to the coast live oak tree. The Planning Division, in 
consultation with the City Arborist, added conditions of approval 5b and 5c  
regarding the driveway material and construction methods. In addition, staff has 
included additional conditions with the initial administrative review of the tentative 
subdivision map, requiring changes to the parcel map to relocate utility trenching 
farther away from the trees of concern and similarly reduce impacts on these 
trees. 
 
After the Planning Commission approval, the applicant retained Michael Young 
of Urban Tree Management, Inc. to review the previous arborist report prepared 
by Ned Patchett, dated November 14, 2012 to determine if the original arborist 
report adequately evaluated the proposed project, potential impacts to heritage 
trees in the vicinity, and to determine if any additional mitigation measures could 
be implemented. This supplemental report by Urban Tree Management, dated 
December 19, 2012, is contained in Attachment H. The report states that a limb 
from the oak tree at 106 O’Connor Street will need to be removed as part of the 
project, but that the limb can be removed without harm to the tree. The report 
prepared by Michael Young states that Ned Patchet’s report accurately 
describes the impacts of the proposed project on the oak tree, and that if his 
recommendations are followed, the tree should tolerate the proposed 
development.  

 

63



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 

The appellant also submitted an additional arborist report (Attachment I), 
prepared by Barrie D. Coate, Consulting and dated January 3, 2013, which 
assesses the impacts of the proposed construction on the oak tree. The report 
states that it would be possible to develop the project on the adjacent property 
without causing long term decline to the tree. The arborist recommends 
excavation be kept 20 feet from the tree, but also states that if the foundation is 
closer than 20 feet to the tree, the construction could be done using a pier and 
grade beam foundation design. In addition the arborist recommends that the 
building be constructed above grade, instead of utilizing a slab on grade design. 
The arborist also states that the necessary limb removal would not cause 
permanent harm to the tree. The arborist also mentions that the driveway should 
be pervious material; however, the City Arborist believes that pervious material 
would result in a more significant impact due to additional excavation. The 
arborist also provides recommendations for general care and upkeep for the 
health of the tree. 
 
The City Arborist reviewed all three arborist reports and determined the project 
arborist report, conducted by Ned Patchett, and reviewed and evaluated by 
Michael Young, is thorough and would adequately protect the heritage oak tree 
and additional heritage trees on neighboring sites. Additionally, the City Arborist 
suggests incorporating components of Barrie Coate’s report, in particular 
establishing a 20-foot tree protection zone for the oak tree. When work will occur 
in the modified tree protection zone, the project arborist should be on-site, and 
the mitigation measures contained in Ned Patchett’s report must be followed. 
Staff has added conditions of approval to clearly specify these requirements, 
based on the additional review of the City Arborist. 
 

The appellants provided three alternative development proposals with their appeal, 
which are included as part of Attachment G. The first alternative was reviewed by the 
Planning Commission at the November 19 meeting, and is not consistent with the 
Planning Commission’s study session direction or subsequent action. The two 
additional alternatives, that are included as part of the appellants’ letter, would continue 
to result in the removal of the heritage magnolia tree, as the tree would continue to be 
located within the footprint of the units.  The alternatives do not address the City 
Arborist’s determination to remove the Chilean lantern or valley oak trees, and are not 
consistent with the Planning Commission’s direction to the permit applicant. In addition, 
Option B contains a request for a variance that would reduce the rear setback by more 
than 50 percent for one of the units. The proposed seven foot rear setback in Option B 
cannot be approved, as variances are limited to a 50 percent reduction in the applicable 
development standard. 
 
Appeal of the Environmental Quality Commission’s Decision 
 
The applicant’s appeal letter (Attachment J) of the EQC’s decision states that 
developing around the magnolia tree would not be consistent with the Planning 
Commission’s direction and would not be feasible due to Zoning Ordinance and 

64



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
Transportation Division requirements for the development. In addition, the applicant 
states he engaged a second arborist (Michael Young of Urban Tree Management, Inc.) 
to independently evaluate the three heritage tree on-site. Michael Young also 
recommended the removal of these trees as part of the project. The appeal letter states 
the Heritage Tree Ordinance criteria #2 “The necessity to remove the tree or trees in 
order to construct proposed improvements to the property” and criteria #8 “The 
availability of reasonable and feasible alternatives that would allow for the preservation 
of the tree(s)” are met by the proposed application to remove the magnolia tree.  
 
As discussed previously, the final design of the project was driven by the Planning 
Commission’s direction at its study session meeting on the project for the applicant to 
pursue a specific setback configuration, which resulted in the magnolia tree being 
located within the footprint of the development. The City has a Heritage Tree 
Ordinance, which is designed to protect trees and encourage property owners to 
develop projects that preserve trees where feasible, but which provides allowances for 
removals if certain criteria are met. Developing around the magnolia tree would push 
the units closer to the left side property line, which could result in greater impacts to the 
neighbors adjacent to this property, and would not be consistent with the Planning 
Commission’s direction on the project. 

 
As noted previously, the Planning Commission’s findings and action on the use permit 
and variance are included as Attachment A. In its deliberations, the Council may wish to 
consider factors such as the site zoning and neighborhood compatibility, desirability for 
an increase in additional housing units, the impacts of the removal of the heritage trees 
on-site, and potential impacts to heritage trees on neighboring properties.   
 
Correspondence 
 
Other than the formal appeal letters and the additional arborist reports from the 
applicant and the appellant, staff has not received any items of correspondence on the 
item since the Planning Commission’s approval of the project.  
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The applicant paid a deposit of $1,500 for review of the application for a use permit. 
Additional staff time above the initial deposit is cost recoverable on an hourly basis, 
through the end of the appeal period. The appellant paid a $110 flat fee to file an 
appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision. The applicant paid a $150 flat fee to file 
an appeal of the Environmental Quality Commission’s decision to uphold the appeal of 
the magnolia tree. Staff time spent on the review of the appeals to the City Council is 
not recovered, per Council policy. 
 

65



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
No changes to the General Plan or Zoning Ordinance are required for the project. Each 
use permit, variance, and heritage tree removal permit request is considered 
individually.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New Construction or 
Conversion of Small Structures”) of the current California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines. 
 
 
 Signature on file  
Kyle Perata 
Assistant Planner 
 

 
 Signature on file  
Arlinda Heineck 
Community Development Director 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public notification consisted of publishing a legal notice in the local 

newspaper and notification by mail of owners and occupants within a 
300-foot radius of the subject property. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 
B. Location Map 
C. Project Description Letter 
D. Project Plans 
E. Variance Findings and Justification Letter 
F. Arborist Report Prepared by Ned Patchett, Dated November 14, 2012 
G. Letter of Appeal Submitted by Michelle Daher, 106 O’Connor Street, received 

November 29, 2012 
H. Arborist Report, prepared by Urban Tree Management, Inc., Dated December 

19, 2012 
I. Arborist Report prepared by Barrie D. Coate, Dated January 3, 2013 
J. Letter of Appeal Submitted by Billy McNair of 1976 Menalto Avenue, received 

January 17, 2013 
 
Note: Attached are reduced versions of maps and diagrams submitted by the 
applicants. The accuracy of the information in these drawings is the responsibility of the 
applicants, and verification of the accuracy by City Staff is not always possible. The 
original full-scale maps and drawings are available for public viewing at the Community 
Development Department. 
 

66



Staff Report #13-024 
 
 
DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW AT CITY OFFICES AND/OR WEBSITE 
 

• Planning Commission Meeting Documents  
o September 24, 2012 

 Staff Report 
 Minutes 

o November 19, 2012 
 Staff Report 
 Minutes 

• Environmental Quality Commission Meeting Documents  
o Environmental Quality Commission Staff Report, dated January 9, 2013 
o Draft January 9, 2013 Meeting Minutes 

 

67



ATTACHMENT A 

1976 Menalto Avenue 
Draft Findings, Actions, and Conditions for Approval 

February 12, 2013 
 

1. The project is categorically exempt under Class 3 (Section 15303, “New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures”) of the current California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 

2. Make findings, as per Section 16.82.030 of the Zoning Ordinance pertaining to 
the granting of use permits, that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the 
health, safety, morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing or 
working in the neighborhood of such proposed use, and will not be detrimental to 
property and improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the 
City. 

 
3. Make the following findings as per Section 16.82.340 of the Zoning Ordinance 

pertaining to the granting of variances:  
 

1. The location of the panhandle access to the lot and the resulting shallow 
depth of the lot, create a constraint to the design potential for the 
redevelopment of two residential units on the site within the required front 
and rear setbacks without approval of the requested variances.  
 

2. The proposed variances are necessary for the construction of two 
detached units with a site layout that is consistent with the typical 
neighborhood pattern, and therefore, the preservation and enjoyment of 
substantial property rights possessed by other conforming properties in 
the same vicinity, in particular with regard to “L” shaped panhandle lots, 
and the variance would not constitute a special privilege of the recipient 
not enjoyed by neighbors.  

 
3. Except for the requested variances, the construction of the two units will 

conform to all other requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. Granting of the 
variances will not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare, and will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
property since the structures will otherwise conform to the required 
setbacks, provide adequate on-site parking, and meet the FAL, building 
coverage, height, and landscaping requirements per the R-2 zoning 
district. Additionally, the development would be designed to contain 
increased side yard setbacks to limit impacts to the neighboring parcels.  

 
4. The conditions upon which the requested variance is based would not be 

applicable, generally, to other properties within the same zoning 
classification since the variance is based on the dimensions of the lot and 
the location of the panhandle access.  

68



   

5. The property is not within any Specific Plan area, and as such no finding 
regarding an unusual factor is required to be made. 

4. Uphold the appeal of the Environmental Quality Commission’s decision to deny 
the heritage tree removal permit for the southern magnolia tree (Tree No. 1), 
thereby allowing removal of the tree. 
 

5. Approve the use permit and variance requests subject to the following standard 
conditions: 

 
a. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the 

plans prepared by Young and Borlik Architects, consisting of 17 plan 
sheets, dated received November 9, 2012, and approved by the Planning 
Commission on November 19, 2012, except as modified by the conditions 
contained herein.  

 
b. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all 

Sanitary District, Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ 
regulations that are directly applicable to the project. 

 
c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all 

requirements of the Building Division, Engineering Division, and 
Transportation Division that are directly applicable to the project. 

 
d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any 

new utility installations or upgrades for review and approval of the 
Planning, Engineering and Building Divisions. Landscaping shall properly 
screen all utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that 
cannot be placed underground. The plan shall show exact locations of all 
meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay 
boxes, and other equipment boxes. 

 
e. Concurrent with the first building permit submittal, the applicant shall 

submit plans in conformance with the frontage improvements as shown on 
the approved tentative parcel map. These revised plans shall be submitted 
for the review and approval of the Engineering Division. All frontage 
improvements must be constructed and approved by the Engineering 
Division prior to approval and subsequent recordation of the parcel map.  

 
f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, 

the applicant shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and 
approval of the Engineering Division. The Grading and Drainage Plan 
shall be approved prior to issuance of a grading, demolition or building 
permit. 

 

69



   

g. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected 
pursuant to the Heritage Tree Ordinance.  

 
h. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit proposed 

landscape and irrigation documentation as required by Chapter 12.44 
(Water-Efficient Landscaping) of the City of Menlo Park Municipal Code. If 
required, the applicant shall submit all parts of the landscape project 
application as listed in section 12.44.040 of the City of Menlo Park 
Municipal Code. This plan shall be subject to review and approval by the 
Planning and Engineering Divisions. The landscaping shall be installed 
and inspected prior to final inspection of the building. 

 
4. Approve the use permit and variance requests subject to the following project 

specific conditions: 
 

a. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, 
the applicant shall revise the plans to include the species for the two 
unidentified heritage tree replacements, subject to review and approval of 
the Planning Division and City Arborist. The heritage tree replacements 
shall be a minimum of 15 gallon in size. 
 

b. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, 
the applicant shall revise the material for the panhandle driveway to be an 
impervious material, such as asphalt or concrete, utilizing the existing 
base material, in order to minimize potential impacts on the root structure 
of heritage trees in proximity to the driveway. If the applicant can provide 
documentation that pervious pavers would not increase the depth of 
excavation, compared to concrete or asphalt, then pervious pavers may 
be used, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division and City 
Arborist. 

 
c. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, 

the applicant shall revise the notations on the plan sheets, and the arborist 
report to require that all new excavation for the widened panhandle portion 
of the driveway be conducted using an air spade, in order to minimize 
potential impacts on the root structure of heritage trees in proximity to the 
driveway, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division and City 
Arborist. 

 

5. Approve the use permit and variance requests subject to the following project 
specific tree protection conditions, as recommended in the three arborist reports 
for the project: 

 

70



   

a. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, 
the applicant shall revise the plans to incorporate a tree protection fence 
composed of six foot high chain-link material mounted on two inch 
galvanized iron posts at least 20 feet from the trunk of the oak tree located 
on 106 O’Connor Street. The plans shall indicate that the fencing of the 20 
foot tree protection zone occupied by the existing house, should be 
installed immediately after the existing building and slab are removed. 
 

b. Demolition of the existing building within the 20 foot tree protection zone 
should occur from the inside of the building with demolition equipment 
standing on the existing building slab.  No demolition equipment should be 
allowed off that existing slab. 

 
c. Demolition of the existing building slab within the 20 foot tree protection 

zone should be removed by a tractor standing on currently undisturbed 
slab floor, breaking up the slab floor into pieces that can be hand loaded 
into a tractor which is standing on previously undisturbed slab, backing up 
as the pieces are loaded into the tractor to reduce the impact of demolition 
on the oak tree. 

 
d. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, 

any foundation within the 20 foot tree protection zone shall be a pier and 
beam foundation design with the beam laid on top of existing grade, per 
the recommendations in the arborist report prepared by Barrie D. Coate. 

 
e. Removal of the east facing limb, which emerges at seven feet above 

grade, back to the branch bark ridge, shall be conducted under the 
supervision of the project arborist.  

 
f. Removal of either the entire north facing limb, which emerges at 12 feet 

above grade, or only the 10 inch diameter branch, which divides from that 
limb at four feet from the trunk leaving an eight inch diameter limb directly 
above the fence line shall be conducted under the supervision of the 
project arborist. 

 

 
 

 
 
 

71



72

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B

VMalathong
Typewritten Text

VMalathong
Typewritten Text



73

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C

VMalathong
Typewritten Text



74



75



76



77



78

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D

VMalathong
Typewritten Text

VMalathong
Typewritten Text



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT F



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT G

VMalathong
Typewritten Text



121



122



123



124



125



126



127

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT H

VMalathong
Typewritten Text

VMalathong
Typewritten Text



128



129

VMalathong
Typewritten Text

VMalathong
Typewritten Text

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT I



130



131



132



133



134



135



136

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT J

VMalathong
Typewritten Text



137



138



139



140



 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES  
 

Council Meeting Date: February 12, 2013 
Staff Report #: 13-018 

 
Agenda Item:  F-1  

 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Review and Modification of the City’s Fund Balance 

Policy and Use of One-Time Revenues; Approval of a 
Funding Mechanism for Comprehensive Planning and 
Capital Projects; Approval of Establishment of Separate 
Infrastructure Maintenance and Capital Projects Funds 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends approval of certain modifications to the General Fund Reserve Policy 
to include a provision for the assignment of reserves for comprehensive planning and 
capital projects; and approval of the establishment of separate Infrastructure 
Maintenance and Capital Projects Funds consistent with the new funding structure. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
As part of the City’s implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions in June 2011, a formal fund balance policy was adopted.  The policy explains 
the five components of fund balance, but focuses on committed fund balance, assigned 
fund balance, and unassigned fund balance as appropriate resources for policy control.  
An overall target for these unrestricted fund balances was established.  The policy also 
formally delegates to the City Manager the assignment of fund balance for specific 
purposes for inclusion in the annual financial reports.  (Prior to GASB Statement No. 54, 
these amounts were reported by the Finance Director as unreserved and designated 
and did not require City Council delegation.)  At that same time, resolutions were 
adopted which established commitments of the City’s General Fund balance by the 
Council.  The policy outlines the City Council’s formal commitment of $6 million of fund 
balance to be set aside specifically for emergency contingencies defined as a state or 
federal state of emergency or declaration of a local emergency as defined in Menlo 
Park’s Municipal Code Section 2.44.010.  In addition, a formal commitment of $8 million 
of fund balance was established for economic contingencies.   The policy itself 
stipulates a goal range of 43-55 percent of General Fund Expenditures to be held in the 
General Fund as unrestricted fund balance. 
 
One-time Funds 
Staff anticipates the receipt of significant, non-reoccurring revenues in the current fiscal 
year.  Dissolution of the former redevelopment agency will result in a distribution of 
unrestricted assets, to the extent those assets exceed the current obligations that have 
been scheduled for payment by the (City acting as) Successor Agency.  The City will 

141



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

receive approximately $1.9 million from the distribution of Housing and Non-Housing 
liquid assets.  In addition, the sale of the former agency’s Hamilton Avenue Site is 
anticipated to yield approximately $800,000 for the City.  These distributions will be 
reflected as one-time General Fund property tax revenues on the City’s financial 
statements.  Finally, the sale of the City-owned Terminal Avenue site to Beechwood 
School will be accomplished in the current fiscal year and net the City approximately 
$775,000.  The total impact of these transactions to the General Fund is approximately 
$3.5 million.  Unlike the one-time payments to be received from the Facebook West 
Campus ($1.1 million) and Stanford Medical Center Expansion ($1.23 million) 
development projects, these monies will be reflected as General Fund revenues within 
the fiscal year they are received.  Development revenues will be credited directly to the 
City’s Capital Project Fund or other special revenue fund, even if the project(s) to be 
funded have not yet been identified.  In this way, one-time revenues from development 
projects do not impact/skew General Fund operational results. 
 
The current reserve policy is not silent regarding the use of one-time funds:  
 

Funding of General Fund balance targets 
Funding of General Fund balance targets will come generally from one-
time revenues, one-time expenditure savings, excess fund balance 
(e.g., unused or reversed assignment or commitments), and revenues 
in excess of projected expenditures.   
 

The General Fund reserve was increased in 2011-12 by nearly $1.9 million, largely the 
result of departmental expenditure savings that averaged 5 percent of the adjusted 
budget.  (Savings in the Community Development Department appeared to be larger as 
much of the Housing Element budget was not expended until the current fiscal year.)  In 
addition, pay-off of the former City Manager’s housing loan added over $1 million to the 
General Fund reserve in October 2012. 
 
In addition, the policy refers to one-time funds in the permissible use of reserves: 

 
Conditions for use and replenishment of reserves 
Use of Reserves 
It is the intent of the City to limit use of General Fund balances to 
address unanticipated, one-time needs or opportunities.  Fund balances 
shall not be applied to recurring annual operating expenditures. 
Reserves will be used to the extent annual expenditures exceed 
revenues as reported in the City’s annual audited financial statements 
(an operating deficit).   Reserves may also be used to allow for an 
investment in the City’s long-term assets as approved by the City 
Council. 
 

Fund Balances 
As noted in the development of recent annual budgets, the focus on fiscal sustainability 
dictates that long-term funding needs be considered.  Fund reserves are a critical factor 

142



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

of long-term financial planning.  Prohibiting unsustainable uses of fund balance 
preserves the fund balance as a means of rescue from crisis situations.  It is also 
important to create reserves for specific purposes and to record these purposes in the 
City’s reserve policies.  Although the emphasis is on the General Fund, activities and 
balances in all funds require careful tracking.  Over time, dwindling fund balances may 
indicate a future reliance on General Fund appropriations in order to continue services, 
programs or projects that were intended to be self-sufficient or funded through other 
means.  In addition, the City continues to identify future needs for significant funding 
that will not be able to be satisfied within the General Fund’s short-term operating 
budget, such as comprehensive planning, technology upgrades and new public facility/ 
infrastructure improvements. 
 
Because of the approved use of General Fund reserves to provide a lump sum pay off 
of the CalPERS Safety Side Fund prior to June 30, 2011, the percentage of fund 
balance as compared to General Fund operations for the year was less than in years 
prior to the adoption of the policy.  Nonetheless, the goal range stated in the policy was 
still achievable for fiscal year 2010-11 with an unrestricted fund balance (committed, 
assigned or unassigned) of $18.17 million.  The total General Fund unrestricted fund 
balance as of June 30, 2012 was $19.27 million, or 48 percent of the 2012-13 General 
Fund budget.  With the payoff of a former City Manager’s housing loan in October, the 
formerly restricted amount of $1.08 million can now be considered as additional 
unrestricted fund balance, bringing the ratio of covered General Fund expenditures to 
approximately 51 percent. 
 

                             
 
  

June 30, June 30, 
Fund Balance  2011  2012

Nonspendable:
Deposits and prepaid items $ 205,617 $ 6,530
Notes Receivable 1,229,409 2,221,061

Committed to:
Emergency Contingency $ 6,000,000 $ 6,000,000
Economic Stabilization 8,000,000 8,000,000

Assigned to:
Infrastructure Maintenance $ 2,163,200 $ 2,249,728
Comprehensive Planning 102,000 959,320
GASB 31 Adjustment 1,193 5,146
Other purposes 325,780 279,994

Unassigned: $ 1,578,736 $ 1,776,214

Total General Fund Balance $ 19,605,935 $ 21,497,993

   City of Menlo Park                                                             
   General Fund

143



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

ANALYSIS   
 
Clearly, taking a long-term approach to ensuring good fiscal health for the City’s future 
precludes the application of non-recurring revenues for on-going operational needs.  In 
conjunction with GFOA (Governmental Finance Officer’ Association) guidelines, most 
municipal reserve policies stipulate that operating deficits that are created through 
dependency on one-time funding for ongoing expenditures should be avoided.   
However, unfunded or underfunded future liabilities should be identified and included in 
the City’s long-term funding projections.  Although many future demands on resources 
have been identified, several are underscored in the City’s 5-Year CIP (Capital 
Improvement Plan), where capital projects to be funded over a multiyear period are 
matched to their appropriate funding source.  In addition, the CIP documents many 
unfunded projects, which are desirable but lack a funding source, priority or staff 
capacity when compared to the funded projects.  Specifically, the need for funding 
Comprehensive Planning projects and General Fund CIP projects (as well as 
infrastructure maintenance) has been apparent since the 5-Year CIP process was 
developed several years ago. 
  
Comprehensive Planning Projects 
Generally, comprehensive planning is considered a public service (with portions of 
comprehensive planning required by State law) typically provided in a full-service city.  
Many municipalities rely on development fees as a funding source for such projects.   
However, Menlo Park development fees have in the past served only to cover the cost 
of the development activity itself, so that the cost of processing various development 
applications was borne by the applicant rather than the taxpayers.  Because 
development revenues are established to cover the associated costs of processing 
each application (including indirect administrative costs and overhead), an increase in 
these activities serves to increase the proportion of cost recovery activities within the 
General Fund.  Development activities utilize resources that would otherwise be used in 
support of comprehensive planning, an investment (particularly in staff time) for which 
the City’s General Fund is not reimbursed.  When development activities drop off, these 
resources are redirected to the often deferred comprehensive planning activities.  By 
using General Fund reserves as the source for comprehensive projects, the City has not 
specifically connected the level of development activity with the funding of these 
projects.   
 
A placeholder category of Comprehensive Planning Projects and Studies was first 
included in the 2010-15 CIP, in conjunction with the Community Development 
Department’s long-term planning process work plan.  Recognizing that maintenance of 
updated comprehensive plans is an integral part of a sound long-term fiscal strategy, a 
General Fund transfer specifically for the large Comprehensive Planning projects 
(outlined in the 2012-17 5-year CIP) was initiated.  Although the average cost of such 
projects totaled over $500,000 annually, a $250,000 transfer was included as a starting 
point for this transfer in fiscal year 2012-13.  Staff now recommends that a link between 
this annual transfer and General Fund development activities (as measured by charges 
for services) be established, and proposes that the annual Comprehensive Planning 

144



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

Projects Fund transfer be based on a portion of these revenues (based on a three-year 
rolling average) each fiscal year.   
 
The chart below shows different options for linking the funding of future comprehensive 
planning activities to the level of current development activities, measured in terms of 
revenues from charges for services.  Starting with a recent history of development 
revenues (not all fiscal years are shown), three methodologies for calculating a transfer 
to the Comprehensive Planning Fund are shown.  A transfer of 50 percent of the 
previous three-year rolling average of these revenues is proposed (Option 2) in order to 
provide the most stable, appropriate source of funds.   Two alternative methods of 
calculating a transfer amount that would link the level of development activities to 
comprehensive planning needs are also shown.  However, basing the transfer on a 
portion of the rolling average allows for a more consistent transfer, in amounts that 
generally support the amount of comprehensive planning projects listed in the proposed 
2013-18 CIP. 
 

          
  
Staff recommends a budgeted transfer from the General Fund to the Comprehensive 
Planning Fund because the amount would also be an assignment of General Fund 
Balance at each fiscal year end.  Note that because these long-term projects are 
considered General Fund activities for reporting purposes, the Comprehensive Planning 
Projects Fund is included as a sub-fund of the General Fund.  As such, the proposed 
annual transfer will NOT reduce General Fund reserves.  Amounts that are budgeted 
within the Comprehensive Planning Projects (sub)Fund but not yet expended are set 
aside (assigned for Comprehensive Planning) in the General Fund reserve balance.  
(Hence, the 2011-12 assignment of fund balance for Comprehensive Planning was the 
result of Council’s decision to fund the Housing Element from General Fund reserves.) 
The transfer itself will be eliminated for external reporting purposes.  But the internal 
distinction between comprehensive planning and other General Fund activities will be 
helpful in discerning the results of annual operations from progress on these long-term 
planning projects.  
 
Upon completion of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, Council approved a 
specific plan preparation fee in order to apply the $1,691,000 cost of the plan directly to 
future development in the project area, based on the square footage of such net new 

Option Analysis of Development Charges 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12

Community Development - Charges for Services $745,862 $1,054,326 $818,255 $1,816,590
        1 Transfer based on 50% of revenues $372,931 $527,163 $409,128 $908,295

Cumulative transfer $372,931 $900,094 $1,309,222 $2,217,517

Previous 3-year rolling average $916,836 $882,967 $857,573 $872,814
        2 Proposed transfer:  50% of 3-year rolling avg. $458,418 $441,484 $428,786 $436,407

Cumulative transfer $687,627 $1,129,111 $1,557,897 $1,994,304

        3 Alternate:  Excess over 3-year average 171,359 943,776
Cumulative transfer $171,359 $171,359 $1,115,134

145



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

development.  Revenues from this fee will be deposited directly into the Comprehensive 
Plan Fund, and will offset the amount of the proposed transfer.  In this way, funding will 
not be contingent on development activity in any single year, but will allow for an 
appropriate amount of support for comprehensive planning projects regardless of the 
level of activity in any single fiscal year.   In addition, revenues from the specific plan 
preparation fee and any other revenues of the Comprehensive Planning Fund will not 
be included in the three-year rolling average calculation. 
 
Infrastructure Maintenance versus Other Capital Improvements 
As mentioned in the presentation of the 2012-17 5-Year CIP, significant technology 
upgrades represent another category of capital outlay for which a designated long term 
funding source or strategy has not been identified.  When the City began the practice of 
transferring General Fund dollars into the General Fund CIP in 2006, the appropriate 
amount of the transfer was based upon estimates of annual infrastructure maintenance 
needs with infrastructure defined as City buildings, roads, parks and physical assets.  
Similar to the Comprehensive Planning projects discussed above, these and other 
projects were not considered within the General Fund CIP transfer amount, yet are 
being funded in large part through this source.  Over the past year, Staff has considered 
several options for addressing this funding imbalance, illustrated below. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
One option to avoid the use of these funds for projects other than infrastructure 
maintenance is to increase the $2.2 million transfer from the General Fund to the 
General CIP Fund to support the additional projects.  This is not the recommended 
option, as the amount of the increased transfer could vary significantly from year to 
year, and it would be difficult to track the adequacy of the funding for both infrastructure 
maintenance and other projects.  Staff recommends sequestering infrastructure 

 

 

Infrastructure 
maintenance

New Infrastructure

Technology upgrades

Other projects

General 
Fund CIP 

 

• Transfer for 
infrastructure 
maintenance

General 
Fund 

146



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

maintenance projects into a separate fund, so that such projects continue to be funded 
adequately and consistently in the City’s operating budget.  A new fund could be 
established for all other capital projects, and be funded with one-time revenues as well 
as specific grants and other restricted revenues approved by the Council (see below).  
Though funding for this new Capital Projects Fund could vary considerably, the funding 
for infrastructure maintenance would remain stable. 
 
The amount of the transfer for infrastructure maintenance was established from 2005 
estimates of the amount of sustainable investment needed to maintain the City’s 
infrastructure at the existing levels of condition for each type of infrastructure.  
Separating this funding and the associated projects would allow for a better analysis of 
the adequacy of the transfer, and help identify any deferrals of any necessary 
maintenance. 
Staff is prepared to analyze the current General CIP Fund to determine those one-time 
or grant revenues that have been included in the fund.  If staff’s recommendation is 
approved, these revenues would be moved to the new Capital Projects Fund, along with 
the budgets of any directly associated projects for the current fiscal year.  The General 
CIP Fund would then be renamed, Infrastructure Maintenance Fund. 
 
Capital Projects Fund 
The money allocated to this (new) fund would provide for the financing of needed capital 
improvements where there is currently no dedicated funding source such as water funds 
or impact fee funds.  These would be General Fund expenditures that would include:  
technology upgrades, building construction/upgrades, park enhancements (if not funded 
out of Recreation In-lieu or Measure T) or other public improvements needed in 
advance of a separate funding mechanism (such as for the Downtown/ECR Specific 
Plan).  Because projects in this fund would no longer include infrastructure 
maintenance, these projects would be one-time in nature, and appropriately funded with 
one-time monies.  In addition to one-time revenues, it is recommended that 25% of any 
fiscal year General Fund surplus be transferred to this fund, if doing so does not 
decrease the unassigned fund balance to a negative amount. 
 
Summary of Recommendations 
Staff recommends Council approval of the following: 
 

• Funding of Comprehensive Planning Projects based on development revenues 
(Option 2 ) 

• Separation of Infrastructure Maintenance and Capital Projects Fund 
• Funding of Capital Projects Fund based on one-time revenues and General Fund 

surplus 
 
The relationship between the funding of capital projects and the one-time revenues 
anticipated in the General Fund in the current fiscal year is illustrated below.  
Appropriation of funds to specific projects can be made by the Council at any time; staff 
recommendations will be presented within the 5-year CIP and/or with the City’s midyear 
analysis and report. 

 

147



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

 
 
 

These funding recommendations are reflected in proposed changes to the reserve 
policy language associated with the assignment of General Fund balance at each fiscal 
year end.  Other small edits are made and visible in the “red-lined” version of the policy, 
attached to this report. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Refinement of the fund balance policy tailored to the needs of the City establishes a 
level of funding that protects against unanticipated events that would adversely affect 
the financial condition of the City and jeopardize the continuation of necessary public 
services, while providing appropriate funding for the City’s long-term comprehensive 
and capital projects.   
 
POLICY ISSUES 

 
Commitment of certain General Fund reserves recognize that resources have been 
accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements or emergencies and are set aside 
by the highest level of government to adequately safeguard the City’s fiscal health.  In 
addition, the establishment of certain assignments of the General Fund balance 
indicates the intentions of the Council to fund specific priorities for which the use of prior 
period revenues is appropriate.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental review is not required.  
 
 
Signature on file  
Carol Augustine  
Finance Director 
 
  

Fund Balance
Revenue $ (million) Increased Rec'd

2011-12 GF Surplus 1.90 General Fund
Facebook East Campus 1.10 CIP
Stanford Med Expansion 1.23 CIP
RDA Dissolution - Housing 0.58 General Fund
RDA Dissolution - Other 1.30 General Fund
Sale of Terminal Ave Site 0.77 General Fund
Sale of Hamilton Ave (RDA) 0.80 General Fund

   $ 7.68

One-time 
funds: transfer 
to Capital 
Projects Fund

148



Staff Report #: 13-018 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Red-lined Current Fiscal Policy, “Fund Balance Policy for the General 
Fund” 

 
 
 
   
 

149



         City of Menlo Park            City Council Policy 

Department 
City Council 

 
Page 1 of  4 

Effective Date
  06-08-2011 

Subject 
Fund Balance for the General Fund        

Approved by 
Motion of the Council on

June 7, 2011
      

Procedure # 
CC-11-0002 

 
Purpose: 
A fund balance policy helps ensure that the City can: 

• Quickly respond to unexpected situations such as natural disasters. 
• Weather economic recessions and other cyclical revenue downturns while avoiding large 

variations in taxes and fees or variations in the type and quality of municipal services 
provided.  

• Avoid the need for short-term borrowing to cover delays in revenue receipt.  
• Pursue strategic and opportunistic projects or activities. 

 
This policy establishes the amounts the City of Menlo Park will strive to maintain in its fund balance, how the 
fund balance will be funded, and the conditions under which fund balance may be spent.  
 
Background: 
The City of Menlo Park has always maintained a high level of General Fund reserves, which has contributed 
to good standings with credit rating agencies; provided financial flexibility in economic downturns; 
contributed a source of investment income for General Fund operations; and assured financial coverage in the 
event of future emergencies. 
 
Policy: 
This Fund Balance Policy establishes the procedures for reporting unrestricted fund balance in the General 
Fund financial statements.  Certain commitments and assignments of fund balance will help ensure that there 
will be adequate financial resources to protect the City against unforeseen circumstances and events such as 
revenue shortfalls and unanticipated expenditures. The policy also authorizes and directs the Finance Director 
to prepare financial reports which accurately categorize fund balance as per Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement no. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions. The policy will be reviewed annually by the Council for revisions as appropriate. 
  
Procedures: 
Fund balance is essentially the difference between the assets and liabilities reported in a governmental fund.  
There are five separate components of fund balance, each of which identifies the extent to which the City is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts can be spent.  
 

• Nonspendable fund balance (inherently nonspendable) 
• Restricted fund balance (externally enforceable limitation on use) 
• Committed fund balance (self-imposed limitations on use) 
• Assigned fund balance (limitation resulting from intended use) 
• Unassigned fund balance (residual net resources) 

 
The first two components listed above are not addressed in this policy due to the nature of their restrictions.  
An example of nonspendable fund balance is inventory.  Restricted fund balance is either imposed by law or 
constrained by grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.  This policy is focused on 
financial reporting of unrestricted fund balance, or the last three components listed above.  These three 
components are further defined below. 

ATTACHMENT  A

150



         City of Menlo Park            City Council Policy 

Department 
City Council 

 
Page 2 of  4 

Effective Date 
      06-08-2011
 

Subject 
Fund Balance for the General Fund        

Approved by 
Motion of the Council on  
      June 7, 2011

           Procedure # 
         CC-11-0002 

 
Committed Fund Balance –  
The City Council, as the City’s highest level of decision-making authority, may commit fund balance for 
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal actions taken, such as an ordinance or resolution.  
These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes 
the specific use through the same type of formal action taken to establish the commitment.  City Council 
action to commit fund balance needs to occur within the fiscal reporting period; however the amount can be 
determined subsequently.   
 
General Fund Emergency Contingency 
The City of Menlo Park’s General Fund balance committed for emergency contingencies is established at 
$6,000,000.  The City Council may wish to increase or decrease this amount, with the goal of providing an 
amount equivalent to 15-20 percent of the City’s annual operating budget for the General Fund.  This range 
should be sufficient to allow for a quick and decisive municipal response to events such as natural disasters, 
catastrophic accidents, or other declared emergency incidents.  As defined in the resolution establishing this 
commitment, the specific uses are listed as the declaration of a state or federal state of emergency or a local 
emergency as defined in the Menlo Park Municipal Code Section 2.44.010.  The City Council may, by the 
affirming vote of three members, change the amount of this commitment and/or the specific uses of these 
monies. 
 
Economic Stabilization 
The City of Menlo Park’s General Fund balance committed for the purpose of stabilizing the delivery of City 
services during periods of severe operational budget deficits and to mitigate the effects of major economic 
uncertainties resulting from unforeseen change in revenues and/or expenditures is established at $8,000,000.  
The City Council may wish to increase or decrease this amount, with the goal of providing an amount 
equivalent to 20-25 percent of the City’s annual operating budget for the General Fund.  This range serves as 
a sufficient cushion, safeguarding the City’s fiscal health against fluctuations in revenues and costs due to 
economic volatility.  City Council approval shall be required before expending any portion of this committed 
fund balance.  Access to these funds will be reserved for economic emergency situations. Examples of such 
emergencies include, but are not limited to: 
 

• An unplanned, major event such as a catastrophic disaster requiring expenditures which exceed 
the General Fund Emergency Contingency Reserve 

• Budgeted revenue taken over by another entity 
• Drop in projected/actual revenue of more than five percent of the General Fund’s adopted 

revenue budget 
 
Assigned Fund Balance –  
Amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted 
nor committed, should be reported as assigned fund balance.  This policy hereby delegates the authority to 
assign amounts to be used for specific purposes to the City Manager for the purpose of reporting these 
amounts in the annual financial statements. A few examples of assigned fund balance follow. 

ATTACHMENT  A

151



         City of Menlo Park            City Council Policy 

Department 
City Council 

 
Page 3 of  4 

Effective Date 
      06-08-11 
 

Subject 
Fund Balance for the General Fund        

Approved by 
Motion of the Council on                

June 7, 2011   
 

Procedure # 
CC-11-0002 

 
 

• Encumbrances – materials and services on purchase order and contracts which are unperformed  
• Reappropriations – appropriated by the Council for specific projects or programs that were not 

completed and not encumbered by year end 
• GASB 31 Adjustment – unrealized investment gains that have been recorded in the financial 

statements in accordance with GASB 31 
• Infrastructure Maintenance Projects – amounts to be transferred to the General 

CIPInfrastructure Maintenance Fund for such projects in the subsequent fiscal year adopted 
budget 

• Comprehensive Planning Projects – amounts remaining unspent in the Comprehensive Planning 
Project Fund as of the end of each fiscal year, as well as amounts to be transferred to the fund in 
the subsequent firscal year adopted budget  needed to fully fund such projects as outlined in the 
5-Year Capital Improvement Plan for the subsequent fiscal year  

• Capital Improvement Projects – amounts to be transferred to the Capital Improvement Projects 
Fund for such projects in the subsequent fiscal year adopted budget 

 
Unassigned Fund Balance –  
These are residual positive net resources of the General Fund in excess of what can properly be classified in 
one of the other four categories. 
 
Amounts held in reserve: 
The total goal range for the City’s unrestricted fund balance (includes Commitments and Assignments of 
fund balance) is 43% to 55% of General Fund expenditures. 
 
From time-to-time, the Council may find it prudent to set aside funds for an existing need, priority or 
investment in the community.  Amounts in excess of the established target levels may be shown as additional 
commitments or assignments of the General Fund balance.  Such assignments will be reviewed with each 
fiscal year operating budget to determine if the funding is still necessary or can be released to the General 
Fund unrestricted reserves.  
 
Funding of General Fund balance targets: 
Funding of General Fund balance targets will come generally from one-time revenues, one-time expenditure 
savings, excess fund balance (e.g., unused or reversed assignment or commitments), and revenues in excess 
of projected expenditures.   

 
Conditions for use and replenishment of reserves: 
Use of Reserves 
It is the intent of the City to limit use of General Fund balances to address unanticipated, one-time needs or 
opportunities.  Fund balances shall not be applied to recurring annual operating expenditures. Reserves will 
be used to the extent annual expenditures exceed revenues as reported in the City’s annual audited financial 
statements (an operating deficit).   Reserves may also be used to allow for an investment in the City’s long-
term assets as approved by the City Council. 
 

ATTACHMENT  A

152



         City of Menlo Park            City Council Policy 

Department 
City Council 

 
Page 4 of  4 

Effective Date 
     06-08-2011
 

Subject 
Fund Balance for the General Fund        

Approved by 
Motion of the Council on 

June 7, 2011 
 

Procedure # 
    CC-11-0002 

 
Authority to Use Reserves 
The City Manager may authorize use of reserves consistent with the purposes described above, including 
amounts authorized in the fiscal period’s budget. 
 
Replenishment of Reserves 
Reserves will be replenished to the extent annual revenues exceed expenditures as reported in the City’s 
annual audited financial statements (an operating surplus).   Revenues in excess of expenditures at the end of 
a fiscal year shall be used to first satisfy committed contingency requirements before appropriating for other 
uses. 
 
Flow of funds: 
Restricted fund balances will be expended before unrestricted fund balances when expenditures are incurred 
for purposes for which both are available.  Unrestricted fund balances will be exhausted in the order of 
assigned, unassigned, and committed when expenditures are incurred for which any of these fund balances are 
available. 
 

ATTACHMENT  A

153



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

154



 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES  
 

Council Meeting Date: February 12, 2013 
Staff Report #: 13-019 

 
Agenda Item:  F-2  

 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Consider authorizing additional staff, appropriating $100,000 

for 2012-13 budget and approximately $1.2 Million for 2013-
14 budget and authorize a new Capital Improvement Project 
for City Hall improvements, appropriating $250,000 for the 
project and authorize the City Manager to execute any 
necessary contracts associated with the project not to 
exceed the budgeted amount 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council address the increase in workload related to 
current and pending development proposals citywide by taking the following actions:  

• Authorize the addition of 9.0 FTE staff members to address the increase of 
workload related to current and pending development proposals, including 
converting 2 existing provisional employees to regular employees; 

• Appropriate $100,000 for those positions for fiscal year 2012-13 (prorated);  
• Direct staff to reflect those increases in the Fiscal Year 2013-14 budget which is 

estimated to cost $1.2 million;  
• Appropriate $250,000 for office furnishings and City Hall improvements to 

accommodate the staffing adjustment in a new Capital Improvement Project; and 
• Authorize the City Manager to award any contracts associated with City Hall 

improvements not to exceed the budgeted amount. 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City finds itself in the enviable position of having an unprecedented number of large 
and highly complex development projects that either have already been submitted, or 
that staff believes will be submitted in the 2013 calendar year.  Each project, by itself, 
could eclipse the planning and engineering staff’s capacity to accomplish the work in a 
timely and high quality manner.   Combined, the number of projects will overwhelm the 
City’s ability to get the work done in a way that meets both the developer and 
community needs.   
 
Staff believes that the confluence of the adoption of the Downtown Plan, the Housing 
Element and the arrival of Facebook, which all occurred in 2012, has contributed to this 
wave of future work.  That, coupled with the fact that the economy in the Silicon Valley 

155



Staff Report # 13-019  

appears to be strengthening, has resulted in pent up demand for development in Menlo 
Park.  All of this will place incredible pressure on the Development Review staff and the 
City, overall, to respond.   
 
For large projects such as these, the “Development Review” (DR) staff includes all of 
Community Development (planning and building employees), employees from the 
Transportation and Engineering Divisions of Public Works, as well as staff from the City 
Manager and City Attorney’s offices.  In the past, it has been through this team effort 
that development work has been completed in a way that balances community needs.   
 
Staff embraces a work philosophy that begins with a positive end in mind.  Every 
application is considered on its own merits, requiring careful analysis throughout the 
review process, with an eye towards quality and timeliness.  Applications range from 
small single-family home remodels to full scale commercial/industrial developments.  
Fundamentally, the City’s development code is highly complex and requires knowledge, 
advanced judgment, patience and a wide breadth of expertise to process for both 
applicants and staff.  Further, many community members carefully watch City 
development activities and freely offer insight and opinions as to the impact and worth 
of such projects.  All applicants expect a level of certainty and consistency in reviews by 
professionals.  The analysis provided later in this report, demonstrates that current 
staffing levels do not support that level of professionalism given the anticipated 
development activity.   
 
Development Proposals 
 
There are 35 new development projects submitted, or thought to be in preparation for 
submittal in 2013: 
 

Large-Scale Development Projects 
 

Project Key Characteristics Status 
Hunter Mixed Use Project 
(formerly Beltramo’s) 
• 1460 El Camino Real 

• 1.5-acre site 
• 26,880 sf office 
• 16 units 

• Entitlements granted 
• Under construction for soil 

remediation 
• 389 El Camino Real • 1.23-acre site 

• 26 units 
• Entitlements granted 
• Building permit 

application under review 
Menlo Gateway 
• 100-190 Independence 

and 101-155 Constitution 

• 694,726 sf office 
• 230-room hotel 
• Fitness center 
• Restaurant 

• Entitlements granted 
• Awaiting building permit 

application 
• Annual report to Planning 

Commission on status 
• 20 Kelly Court • 1.5-acre site 

• 37,428 sf R&D 
• Entitlements granted 
• Expect building permit 

submittal in April 2013 
  

156



Staff Report # 13-019  

Facebook East • Renovation and 
occupancy of existing 
campus 

• Replacement of 
employee cap with trip 
cap 

• Entitlements granted 
• Under construction 

• 1706 El Camino Real • 10,148 sf medical/dental 
office 

• Entitlements granted 
• Under construction 

Quadrus Building #9 
• 2484 Sand Hill Road 

• 11,392 sf office • Entitlements granted 
• Under construction 

Quadrus Building #4 
• 2460 Sand Hill Road 

• 32,671 sf office • Entitlements granted 
• Awaiting building permit 

submittal 
• 702 Oak Grove • 3,460 sf office 

• 4 units 
• Entitlements granted 
• Building permit 

application under review 
Facebook West • 22-acre site 

• One-story building over 
surface parking 

• 433,555 sf office 

• Entitlements under review 
with final action expected 
April 2013 

Commonwealth 
Corporate Center 
• 151 Commonwealth/164 

Jefferson 

• 13.1-acre site 
• Two four-story buildings 
• 259,919 sf office 

• Entitlements under review 
with final action expected 
in December 2013 

Stanford Mixed Use 
Project 
• 500 El Camino Real 

• 8.43-acre site 
• 357,500 sf total 

o Medical – 96,150 
o Office – 133,350 
o Housing – 136-152 

units 
o Retail – 10,000 

• Entitlements under review 

SRI Modernization • 63.2-acre site 
• 5 buildings retained 
• 13 new buildings 
• 1.38 million sf R&D 
• 3,000 employees 

• Entitlements under review 

MP Fire District – Station 
#6 
• 700 Oak Grove 

• 16,198 sf site 
• 8,398 sf new fire station, 

historic carriage house 
and vehicle storage 

•  

• Entitlements under review 

Sharon Heights Golf and 
Country Club 
• 2900 Sand Hill Road 

• Membership increase • Entitlements under review 

157



Staff Report # 13-019  

Beechwood School 
• 50 Terminal Avenue 

• 2.8 acre-site 
• Renovation of campus 

• Entitlements under review 

• 1300 El Camino Real • 3.4-acre site 
• Possible residential/office 

project 

• Application for 
entitlements expected in 
spring or summer 

Derry Lane Project 
• 550-580 Oak Grove/540-

570 Derry 

• 3.45-acre site 
• Possible housing and/or 

/commercial project 

• Awaiting application for 
entitlements 

Casa on the Peninsula 
(formerly Glenwood Inn) 
• 555 Glenwood 

• 2.25 acre site 
• Conversion of 138-room 

senior facility to hotel use 

• Application for 
entitlements expected 
soon 

Park Theater 
• 1275 El Camino Real 

• Conversion of theater to 
commercial use 

• Awaiting application for 
entitlements 

Hamilton Avenue 
Housing 
• 777-821 Hamilton 

• 2.1-7.1 acre site 
depending on sale of 
neighboring properties 

• Housing 

• Application for 
entitlements expected in 
spring or summer 

• Sale of property pending 
Haven #1 – St. Anton 
Partners 
• 3633-3639 Haven 

• 9.7-acre site 
• 386 rental units 

• Application for 
entitlements expected in 
spring or summer 

Haven #2 – Butler 
• 3645-3665 Haven 

• Possible housing project • Awaiting application for 
entitlements 

Boys and Girls Club 
• 401 Pierce 

• 700 sf expansion • Entitlements under review 

MP Fire District Training 
Facility 
• 2005 Willow 

• Rebuild training facility • Awaiting application for 
entitlements 

MP Police 
Communications Tower 

• Replacement of 
communications tower 

• Awaiting application for 
entitlements 

Phillips Brooks School 
• 2245 Avy 

• Increase enrollment • Applications for 
entitlements expected 
soon 

German American 
International School 
• 275 Elliott  

• Development of new 
school at 3585 Haven 

• Awaiting application for 
entitlements 

MP Emergency Wells 
• City corporation yard  

• Development of 
emergency well 

• Council authorization to 
proceed scheduled for 
January 22, 2013 

• 2700-2770 Sand Hill • New approximately 
10,000 sf office building  

• Awaiting application for 
entitlements 

Commercial 
Project/Police Sub-
Station (Gary Moiseff) 
• Corner of Willow/Ivy 

• 10,000 sf commercial 
building 

• Requires submittal of new 
building permit application 
to complete project 

• Possible submittal for new 
discretionary permits 

158



Staff Report # 13-019  

Menlo Business Park • Long-term renovation of 
campus 

• Awaiting application for 
entitlements (likely longer 
time frame) 

Veteran’s Administration 
• 795 Willow Road 

• Core housing 
development 

• May include City review 
and possible discretionary 
action for some elements 

Veteran’s Administration 
• 795 Willow Road 

• Right-of-way 
improvements 

• Easement for bicycle 
lane 

• Requires City involvement 
and possible action 

 
The Development Process 
 
Currently, development projects are processed through both the Planning Division in the 
Community Development Department as well as the Engineering and Transportation 
Divisions of Public Works Department in order to receive entitlements.  During 
construction, there is also significant demand on both staffs in order to process the 
entitlements as well as manage the build out of a project. Projects must also be 
considered by various boards and commissions, most notably the Planning Commission 
and the City Council and require considerable oversight by both the offices of the City 
Attorney and the City Manager.   
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT/PLANNING DIVISION 
 
Planning Staffing Levels 
 
The Planning Division staffing levels have been fairly consistent for a number of years 
with work being conducted by the Department Director and four professional planners.  
In 2009, one additional planning position was added.  The Planning Division operated 
with the five planning positions until early in 2012.  In anticipation of an extended leave 
by one staff member and an increasing work load, two additional planners were added 
as provisional employees in the spring of 2012.  Their terms are currently set to expire 
in June 2013.  As a result of these additions, the Division operated for most of 2012 with 
six planners.  Beginning with 2013 and the return of the staff member from extended 
leave, the Division currently operates with seven planners.  There will be a reduction to 
five planners with the expiration of the two provisional positions later in 2013. 
 
From 2006 to 2010, the Division had Master Agreements with two contract planners to 
perform work as may be needed on various development projects.  The services were 
used for portions of the reviews of the Park Theater and the office projects located at 
1706 and 1906 El Camino Real as well as some comprehensive planning work related 
to the Dumbarton Transit Station.  When additional resources were needed in 2012, the 
need was for employees who would be working in City Hall as a daily part of the 
professional planning staff, as opposed to project-based planners, which was the 
primary impetus for using provisional appointments rather than contract services. 
 

159



Staff Report # 13-019  

Baseline Work 
 
Development projects generally fall into one of two categories: baseline projects and 
large-scale development projects.  Baseline projects are typically smaller projects such 
as single-family residences, small condominium and townhouse projects of less than 
five units, small commercial projects, cell antenna requests and hazardous materials 
use.  Large-scale projects are generally larger in size and may include legislative action 
by the City Council, environmental review, resources from multiple City departments 
and outside agencies, and/or have known controversy. 
 
The number of baseline projects has grown over the past five years, to a high of 99 
projects in 2012.  Although the number of baseline projects fluctuated following the 
downturn in the economy, the City saw a 22 percent increase in baseline projects from 
2010 to 2011 and an additional 18 percent increase from 2011 to 2012. Additionally, the 
Planning Division processes an average of 28 sign applications annually.  Table 1 lists 
the number of baseline project and sign applications received over the past five years. 
 

Table 1 
Number of Baseline Projects 

 
Calendar 

Year 
Planning 

Applications 
Sign 

Applications 
 

Total 
 

Difference 
2008 80 32 112  
2009 50 33 83 (-26%) 
2010 69 20 89 8% 
2011 84 25 109 22% 
2012 99 30 129 18% 

 
In looking ahead to 2013, in the first month of the year, ten baseline applications have 
been filed.  If projected out at that rate through the remainder of 2013, there is a 
potential for at least 120 applications for baseline development.  Although the final 
number of applications for 2013 may differ, it is an indicator that the increases of the 
past two years will continue.  
 
In addition to small development and sign applications, other functions add to the 
baseline workload for the Planning Division.  These functions include the provision of 
general information, assistance and review of applicant’s initial proposals, review of 
business licenses, noise-related permits, code violations and similar reviews, 
participation in regional issues, review of development by neighboring jurisdictions, and 
budget preparation, supervisory responsibilities and other management-related work.  
Table 2 below provides the 2012 hours and FTEs for these various functions and shows 
that 5.3 FTEs were needed to conduct the baseline work.  It is expected that this level of 
activity will continue, based on the continuing high level of development interest. 
 
  

160



Staff Report # 13-019  

Table 2 
2012 Baseline Planning Activity* 

 

* Based on actual hours for 2012 
 
Although, the Division operated with only 7.0 active FTE in 2012, the following 
discussion assumes 8.0 FTEs for consistency throughout the analysis. The FTE figure 
assumes retention beyond June 2013 of the two positions which are currently 
designated as provisional. 
 
Comprehensive Planning 
 
Comprehensive planning projects are those work efforts which update and maintain the 
City’s key planning documents, including the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance, and 
which plan for the future of land use and circulation in the City.  The City’s CIP is the 
primary document which provides a timeline for comprehensive planning activities, 
although sometimes projects not foreseen during the preparation of the CIP need to be 
addressed.  Over the past five years, comprehensive planning projects have included 
the El Camino Real/Downtown Vision Plan and Specific Plan, the Housing Element 
Update, the Willow Business Area, sustainable building requirements, and fire sprinkler 
regulation.  Given the limitations on staff resources in Community Development and 
Public Works and the high cost of comprehensive planning efforts, the City has 
staggered these efforts such that only one or two are occurring at the same point in 
time.  During 2012, the primary work efforts were related to the Specific Plan and 
Housing Element Update, with the two projects overlapping by a few months.  Together, 
these two projects consumed 2,680 staff hours, or 1.5 FTE in 2012.  Table 3 shows 
these hours layered on top of the baseline work level delineated in Table 2. 
  

  
Mgmt/Supv 

Senior 
Planner 

Associate 
Planner 

Assistant 
Planner 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Projects/Sign 
Applications 

 
340 

 
840 

 
1,215 

 
1,245 

 
3,640 

2.1 

General Assistance/ 
Miscellaneous Reviews/ 
Regional Participation  

 
 

870 

 
 

1,210 

 
 

1,350 

 
 

1,550 

 
 

4,980 

 
 

2.8 
Budget/Supervision/ 
Management 

 
700 

 
0  

 
0 

 
0 

 
700 

 
0.4 

Total 1,910 2,050 2,565 2,795 9,320 5.3 
2012 FTE      8.0 
Remaining Capacity for 
Comprehensive Planning and 
Large-Scale Development in 
2012 

      
 
 

2.7 

161



Staff Report # 13-019  

Table 3 
2012 Baseline + Comprehensive Planning Staff Resources* 

 

* Based on actual staff hours for 2012 
 
In 2013, the primary work efforts will be the completion of the Housing Element Update, 
implementation of programs associated with the Housing Element Update, the start of 
the 2014-2022 Housing Element Update, and the start of the General Plan Update.  The 
City Council tentatively set this as a goal for 2013.  Since work will need to occur 
simultaneously on the implementation of the Housing Element Update programs, the 
2014-2022 Housing Element Update and the General Plan Update, additional staff 
resources will be necessary.   
 
In light of this, the Planning Division has assigned the planner who returned from 
extended leave to comprehensive planning in addition to the 1.5 FTE already serving in 
this capacity.  Additionally, it is believed that there will be a need for one additional FTE 
to keep the comprehensive planning projects on schedule without unduly burdening the 
review of development projects.  This will result in a total of 3.5 FTEs dedicated to 
comprehensive planning through a combination of time expended at various staffing 
levels.  Table 4 demonstrates the expected breakdown by staffing position per year for 
2013 through 2017 for baseline and comprehensive planning work.  As shown, the 
needed staff resources for the baseline work and comprehensive planning creates a 
staffing deficit for large-scale project review. 
 

Table 4 
2013 – 2017 Baseline + Comprehensive Planning Staff Resources Per Year* 

 

* Based on staff hours expended on past projects with similar components 
 
  

  
Mgmt/Supv 

Senior 
Planner 

Associate 
Planner 

Assistant 
Planner 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 1,910 2,050 2,565 2,795 9,320 5.3 
Comprehensive Planning 1,800 500 230 150 2,680 1.5 
Total 3,710 2,550 2,795 2,945 12,000 6.8 
2012 FTE      8.0 
Remaining Capacity for 
Large-Scale Projects in 2012 

      
1.2 

  
Mgmt/Supv 

Senior 
Planner 

Associate 
Planner 

Assistant 
Planner 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 1,910 2,050 2,565 2,795 9,320 5.3 
Comprehensive Planning* 2,100 1,750 2,000 275 6,125 3.5 
Total 4,010 3,800 4,565 3,070 15,445 8.8 
FTE      8.0 
Remaining Capacity for 
Large-Scale Projects 

      
(0.8) 

162



Staff Report # 13-019  

Large-Scale Development Projects 
 
As discussed above, the confluence of the Specific Plan, Housing Element Update and 
the arrival of Facebook has contributed to a significant increase in the number of current 
and pending large-scale development proposals.  Table 5 shows staff hours anticipated 
for large-scale projects layered on top of the future baseline work and comprehensive 
planning.  The Table assumes that all of the large-range planning projects are being 
reviewed simultaneously, thereby demonstrating the worst-case scenario for staffing 
needs. The Table reflects the need for a total of just under seven additional FTEs, 
exclusive of the retention of the two current provisional employees. 
 

Table 5 
Future Baseline + Comprehensive Planning + Large Scale Project Staff Resources 

with Large-Scale Projects Considered Simultaneously 
 

*   Hours per year 
**  Estimated from staff hours expended on past projects with similar components 
 
It is highly unlikely that all of the large-scale development projects would be ready to 
proceed at the same point in time, or even that the community, Commissions and 
Council would have the band-width to consider such a large number of major 
development projects simultaneously.  For that reason, staff has also assessed the 
staffing need by spreading the impact of the large-scale projects evenly over a five-year 
period as shown in Table 6.  Although projects will not likely be processed in such an 
evenly-paced timeline, it helps to understand a more likely scenario. 

 
  

  
Mgmt/Supv 

Senior 
Planner 

Associate 
Planner 

Assistant 
Planner 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work* 1,910 2,050 2,565 2,795 9,320 5.3 
Comprehensive Planning* 2,100 1,750 2,000 275 6,125 3.5 
Large-Scale Projects** 2,285 6,670 1,050 710 10,715 6.1 
Total Need 6,005 9,220 3,845 3,655 26,160 14.9 
Current FTE      8.0 
Capacity for Large-Scale 
Projects  

      
(6.7) 

163



Staff Report # 13-019  

Table 6 
Future Baseline + Comprehensive Planning + Large Scale Project Staff Resources 

with Large-Scale Projects Projected over Five Years 
 

* Estimated from staff hours expended on past projects with similar components 
 
Community Development Department/Planning Division Staffing Proposal 
 
In comparing Table 5 and Table 6, there will be a clear deficit of staffing resources for 
comprehensive planning and review of anticipated large-scale projects of between 2.0 
and almost 7.0 FTE above the current 8.0 FTEs in the Division (6.0 permanent and 2.0 
provisional FTEs).  Staff recognizes that not all of the large-scale projects will take place 
simultaneously, and as such, adding 7.0 FTEs is not needed or desirable.  However, 
given the expected timing of the large-scale projects, staff believes that more than a 
minimum of 2.0 additional FTEs will be necessary to maintain the timeliness of the 
baseline work, comprehensive planning and large-scale project review.  For example, 
the Division is currently reviewing Facebook West, the Commonwealth Corporate 
Center, 500 El Camino Real (Stanford proposal), SRI Modernization, Fire District 
Station #6, Sharon Heights Golf and Country Club membership increase, and 
Beechwood School renovation.  Additionally, applications are expected soon for the 
conversion of Casa on the Peninsula, the Park Theater, and Philips Brooks School 
enrollment increase.  Immediately following adoption of the Housing Element Update, 
applications are expected for the 1300 El Camino Real and Derry properties, as well as 
for the Hamilton and Haven Avenues housing sites. 
 
Staff believes that in order to meet the current and future demand, the following 
changes should be made to the Planning Division: 
 

• Retention and conversion of the existing 2.0 FTE provisional positions to 
permanent positions at the Assistant/Associate level; 

• Addition of 1.0 permanent FTE assigned primarily to comprehensive planning at 
the Associate/Senior level; and 

• Addition of 2.0 permanent FTE assigned primarily to large-scale project review at 
the Associate/Senior level. 

 
This will result in an increase of 3.0 FTE above the existing staffing for a total 
permanent staff of 11.0 FTE.  Staff also has considered that this increased level of 

  
Mgmt/Supv 

Senior 
Planner 

Associate 
Planner 

Assistant 
Planner 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 1,910 2,050 2,565 2,795 9,320  5.3 
Comprehensive Planning 2,100 1,750 2,000 275 6,125 3.5 
Large-Scale Projects* 457 1,334 210 142 2,143 1.2 
Total Need 4,467 5,134 4,775 3,212 17,588 10.0 
Current FTE      8.0 
Remaining Capacity for 
Large-Scale Projects 

      
(2.0) 

164



Staff Report # 13-019  

staffing may not be immediately necessary, but could be implemented more gradually 
as the pending large-scale development projects begin to file formal applications.  Even 
with this level of staffing, and certainly with a lower level of staffing, prioritization of the 
projects is a critical component to the efficient review of the projects. 
 
In large part, the increase in staffing will be associated with increased revenue from the 
development projects.  The Financial Analysis section provides more detail. 
 
Historically, comprehensive planning has not had a cost recovery component.  That 
changed with the Council’s adoption, in June 2012, of a new fee for projects in the 
Specific Plan area.  Based on the finding that there is a benefit to applicants as a result 
of the adoption of the Specific Plan, which reduces costs of future environmental review 
and development approvals, the Specific Plan Preparation Fee requires all projects 
within the Specific Plan area to pay $1.13 per net new square foot of building area as a 
means of recapturing the $1.6 million spent in the Plan development.  These fees will be 
directed to the Comprehensive Planning Fund for future comprehensive planning work. 
 
Building Division 
 
The Building Division staff focuses on two primary activities: plan checking and 
inspection.  With regard to plan checking, the Division has 0.75 FTE for the plan 
checking service, supplemented as needed by the Building Official and Senior Building 
Inspector.  The Plan Checker is responsible for the baseline level projects and the 
Division’s over-the-counter plan check service.  Large-scale projects are typically 
reviewed by contract plan checking firms for their added expertise and additional 
capacity.  Given this way of operating, and acknowledging that the Division will continue 
to use contract plan check services for large scale projects, no need for increased 
staffing is anticipated. 
 
With regard to the inspection service, the Division is currently staffed with 3.0 FTE 
inspectors, including one senior inspector.  Over the years, this has been a sufficient 
level of staffing to handle the baseline work level and one large-scale project 
simultaneously.  With the pending number of large-scale projects that will likely be in 
construction starting in 2013, there will be a need to increase the inspection capacity.  
Typically, large-scale projects such as Menlo Gateway, Facebook West, the 
Commonwealth Corporate Center, 500 El Camino Real, 1300 El Camino Real and 
Derry sites, and housing sites on Hamilton and Haven Avenues require assignment of a 
single inspector who can be on site for several hours on a daily basis in order to resolve 
emerging problems and keep the construction on schedule.  Similarly, having multiple 
projects such as 389 El Camino Real and the Hunter Mixed Use project (formerly 
Beltramo’s) under construction at the same time, while smaller in scale, can add to the 
demand because the construction typically uses wood rather than steel resulting in a 
larger number of inspections for the structural elements and, if the projects include 
residential units, requires more time for detailed inspection of each unit. 
 

165



Staff Report # 13-019  

Based on having several medium to large-scale projects currently or about to go into 
construction, including the Hunter Mixed Use project, 389 El Camino Real, 20 Kelly 
Court, Facebook East, 1706 El Camino Real office building, 702 Oak Grove mixed use 
building and buildings on the Quadrus campus, an additional 1.0 FTE inspector will be 
needed to help meet the demand for inspection services. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 
The Public Works Department staffing related to development review has remained 
fairly consistent over the years. These staff members are tasked with many other duties 
with only a portion of time dedicated to development review activities. Over the years, 
the requirements of the other duties, such as stormwater requirements, have steadily 
increased without an increase in staff. These increases have affected the ability of staff 
to dedicate time to development review activities. Public Works currently contracts out 
some portions of development review for grading plans and survey work. These 
contracted services help to reduce the workload and allow projects to move through the 
system. The contracted services works for certain components of development review, 
but employees at City Hall are necessary for a bulk of the workload to understand the 
nuances of the City process and provide effective communication. 
 
Baseline Work 
 
The baseline worlkoad for Public Works includes the numerous programs, services and 
projects that have been approved by Council or are required by law. The Engineering 
and Transportation functions in Public Works manage the following municipal programs 
and services: 
 

• Water 
• Storm water quality protection 
• Flood control 
• Bayfront Park Landfill Requirements 
• Capital Improvement Projects 
• Heritage Trees 
• Garbage, and Recycling 
• Maintenance of Traffic Signals and Streetlights 
• Signal Timing 
• Striping 
• Safe Routes to School 
• Shuttle Program 
• Encroachment Permits 
• Neighborhood Traffic Management Program 

 
Many of these functions are federal or state required (i.e. water quality testing and 
stormwater requirements).  The staff members that review development projects and 
work with comprehensive planning spend the vast majority of their time on other 
functions within Public Works. Therefore, a portion of time from many staff members is 

166



Staff Report # 13-019  

needed to review and provide comments on development projects. Table 7 shows the 
baseline information derived from the budget and program tracking systems and 
indicates 0.5 FTEs remain available for large-scale projects and comprehensive 
planning.   
 

Table 7 
2012 Public Works Baseline Planning Activity* 

* Based on budget estimates for 2012 
 
Comprehensive Planning 
 
The comprehensive planning project components Public Works is responsible for 
require close coordination with the Community Development Department. 
Comprehensive planning projects trigger the need for various studies within Public 
Works including water master plans, stormwater master plans, significant transportation 
analysis, and environmental components. Documents and analyses are already 
staggered over several years, but require significant staff time and consultant work to 
accomplish. The Table 8 indicates the current staff resources used for Public Works 
baseline workload and the work on the Housing Element. As the Housing Element was 
not originally scheduled to be completed this year, other projects have been affected. 
 

Table 8 
2012 Public Works Baseline + Baseline Comprehensive Planning Staff 

Resources* 

* Based on budget estimates for 2012 
 

  
Mgmt 

Senior 
Engineer 

Associate 
Engineer 

Eng 
Tech 

 
Inspector 

Trans 
Manager 

Trans
Staff 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 3240 1518 3506 1690 1706 1515 4325 17,500 10.0 
Total 3240 1518 3506 1690 1706 1515 4325 17,500 10.0 
Current FTE         10.5 
Remaining Capacity 
for Large-Scale 
Projects and 
Comprehensive 
Planning 

         
 
 
 

0.5 

  
Mgmt 

Senior 
Engineer 

Associate 
Engineer 

Eng 
Tech 

 
Inspector 

Trans 
Manager 

Trans
Staff 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 3240 1518 3506 1690 1706 1515 4325 17,500 10.0 
Comprehensive 
Planning 

100 100 75 0 0 250 75 600 0.3 
 

 
Total 

3340 1618 3581 1690 1706 1765 4400 18,100 10.3 

Current FTE         10.5 
Remaining Capacity 
for Large-Scale 
Projects 

         
 

0.2 

167



Staff Report # 13-019  

As the work on the comprehensive planning projects increases, Public Works will need 
additional resources to maintain the timelines and expectations for completion. It is 
estimated that Public Works would need an additional 1.5 FTEs as shown in Table 9, 
below, in order to facilitate the timely completion of the comprehensive planning 
projects. The Transportation Division represents a large component of comprehensive 
planning projects and will require a large portion of the resources in Public Works. The 
rest of the time will be split between the Engineering Division for water, stormwater and 
environmental analysis as there are many new requirements that will need to be 
included in the planning documents.  
 

Table 9 
2013 – 2017 Public Works Baseline + Comprehensive Planning Staff Resources 

Per Year* 
 

* Based on budget estimates for similar projects 
 
Large-Scale Development Projects 
 
Large-scale development projects create a significant workload for Public Works. The 
entitlement phase includes numerous requirements for review including water, 
stormwater, environment and transportation. As these projects move from the 
entitlement phase to the construction phase, the focus moves toward mapping 
requirements, review of preliminary and final construction plans, construction methods, 
and stormwater requirements. There is also a significant amount of inspection required 
during construction to ensure that facilities are constructed correctly, both on and off 
site.  
 
The range of needed staff will vary based on the influx of projects. Table 10 depicts all 
proposed projects being handled simultaneously, while Table 11 spreads them over five 
years. The actual number of FTEs necessary for the workload will likely be somewhere 
in between. In order to effectively handle the additional workload of the large 
development projects and the comprehensive planning projects, it is anticipated that 
Public Works Department would need an additional 4.0 FTEs. There is currently a 
vacant Assistant Transportation Engineer that can be converted to a Senior 
Transportation Engineer, thus the total additional Public Works staff needs would be 3 
FTEs. 
 

  
Mgmt 

Senior 
Engineer 

Associate 
Engineer 

Eng 
Tech 

 
Inspector 

Trans 
Manager 

Trans
Staff 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 3240 1618 3550 1790 1756 1515 4325 17,794 10 
Comprehensive 
Planning 

 
400 

 
500 

 
600 

 
250 

 
0 

 
1250 

 
475 

 
3,475 

2.0 

Total 3640 2118 4150 2040 1756 2765 4800 21,269 12 
Current FTE         10.5 
Remaining 
Capacity for 
Large-Scale 
Projects 

         
 
 

(1.5) 

168



Staff Report # 13-019  

Table 10 
Future Public Works Baseline + Comprehensive Planning + Large Scale Project 

Staff Resources with Large-Scale Projects Considered Simultaneously 
 

 
Table 11 

Future Public Works Baseline + Comprehensive Planning + Large Scale Project 
Staff Resources with Large-Scale Projects Projected over Five Years 

 

 
The number of FTEs necessary is tied to the amount of resources added to the 
Community Development Department. As their resources increase, there needs to be a 
corresponding increase in resources in Public Works to continue to move the projects 
forward without creating a bottleneck. It is important to note that the Public Works 
numbers include the entitlement phase and the construction phase, which also includes 
inspection on site and within the public right-of-way. Over the last 5 years, there has 
been a significant increase in the requirements related to stormwater. These 
requirements are also expected to increase further over time, which will also have a 
corresponding increase in the number of hours necessary to review each project. 
 
 
  

  
Mgmt 

Senior 
Engineer 

Associate 
Engineer 

Eng 
Tech 

 
Inspector 

Trans 
Manager 

Trans
Staff 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 3240 1618 3550 1790 1756 1515 4325 17,794 10.0 
Comprehensive 
Planning 

400 500 600 250 0 1250 475 3,475 2.0 

Large Scale Projects 1500 4000 3500 0 4100 4200 2000 19,300 11.0 
Total  

5140 
 

6118 
 

7650 
 

2040 
 

5856 
 

6965 
 

6800 
 

40,569 
 

23.0 
Current FTE         10.5 
Remaining Capacity 
for Large-Scale 
Projects 

         
 

(12.5) 

  
Mgmt 

Senior 
Engineer 

Associate 
Engineer 

Eng. 
Tech 

 
Inspector 

Trans. 
Manager 

Trans
Staff 

Total 
Hours 

 
FTE 

Baseline Work 3240 1618 3550 1790 1756 1515 4325 17,794 10.0 
Comprehensive 
Planning 

 
400 

 
500 

 
600 

 
250 

 
0 

 
1250 

 
475 

 
3,475 

2.0 

Large Scale Projects       300 800           700 0 820 840 400 3,860 2.2 
Total 4160 3078 5350 1940 2576 3465 5300 25,869 

 
14.2 

Current FTE         10.5 
Remaining Capacity 
for Large-Scale 
Projects 

         
 

(3.7) 

169



Staff Report # 13-019  

Overall Support 
 
Considering adding such additional staffing will put a strain on the existing 
administrative support staff.  As these positions have been reduced over time, the need 
to support this additional level of service in the form of accounts receivable/payable, 
payroll, administrative/clerical support, agenda and staff report preparation, and other 
sundry duties needs to be taken into consideration.  At this time, the staff will look 
internally first to gauge the changing administrative needs.  If the needs arises, staff 
may return with an additional request for staffing.   
 
Analysis 
 
Like all industry, predicting staffing and production certainty many years out is difficult to 
do.  Planning for booms and busts is part of the business cycle; getting it right is as 
much art as science.  The City of Menlo Park is currently in a development boom.  
Predicting when this period of growth might wane is not possible at this time.  Based 
upon the number of known and pending applications before the City, staff foresees a 
five-year time horizon before any type of slowing or reversal may occur.  Creating 
capacity to properly manage this work is critical so that we can adequately serve our 
community.   This organization has re-positioned itself in the market and has been 
operating at a barebones level for several years.  Some of the effects are showing.  It is 
time to begin to reinvest in the organization so that it can respond to service demands 
placed upon it.  The approach the Council takes will also signal to the development 
community your commitment to a business friendly environment that can continue to 
balance the needs of the developers and residents for the long term.   
 
There are a number options to adjust the City’s capacity to do the work.   
 
1. Hold our staffing levels constant and approach the work on a first come-first served 

basis.  In all likelihood, this would result in the City putting placing into a queue and 
informing applicants (ranging from home owners to major developers) that their 
project will be taken up as soon as capacity allows.  The wait for applicants would 
depend up the queue.  In some cases, the wait could be as long as 12 months.   
 

2. Increase staff capacity through  
a) Hiring full-time staff; 
b) Hiring provisional staff; or 
c) Contracting staff.     

An explanation of each follows. 
 

a) Hiring full-time staff 

The benefits of hiring additional full-time staff to absorb the workload are numerous.  
Certainly, concern for quality control of the product, greater commitment to the work, 

170



Staff Report # 13-019  

the project and the community, and better project management are primary.  The 
commitment to public service cannot be underscored enough.  In house staff will 
more likely have a greater sense of ownership for any project they work on knowing 
that it will reflect on them in the future.   
 
The costs of hiring skilled staff are the perceived cost of bringing on full-time public 
employees and the job rights that follow a permanent employee, particularly when 
this work is completed.  The ebb and flow of the workload is difficult to predict.  As 
with all services, when the funding for the service discontinues, so too will the 
employees providing the service.   
 
Hiring new full-time staff will take up to 120 days followed by an organizational 
learning curve of an additional six months.  This approach would have the staff on 
board by June 2013 and fully up and running towards the end of the calendar year.   

 
b) Hiring provisional staff 

Provisional staff are employees who work for the public agency, typically full-time 
and benefited, but have a term end for their work.  For example, the City presently 
has two provisional staff member in the Planning Division who were hired to back-fill 
an employee on medical leave as well as in anticipation of Facebook and other 
projects.  Provisional employees are a great solution when there is a known 
beginning and end to the work.   
 
The downside of provisional workers is that they are not bound by the term of the 
work; they can leave when they want.  Provisional employees may have personal 
reasons for not choosing full-time permanent work, but most public employees today 
prefer certainty in their tenure.  Retaining provisional employees can be difficult if a 
permanent position arises elsewhere.  Provisional employees do not typically cost 
any less, there is just certainty at the end of the term.   
 
Hiring new provisional staff will also take up to 120 days followed by an 
organizational learning curve of an additional six months.  This approach would have 
the staff on board by June 2013 and fully up and running towards the end of the 
calendar year.   
 
Bringing on provisional staff may require the City to meet and confer with the 
impacted bargaining groups.   
 
c) Contracting Staff 

Contracting development review work could prove difficult in this particular economy.  
While Menlo Park has experience contracting elements of the development review 
work (e.g., environmental review, legal, specialized engineering, inspection, etc.), 
contracting some of the daily development review work could prove a challenge and 
identifying quality contract staff who can work in the Menlo Park environment might 

171



Staff Report # 13-019  

be expensive.  Similar to provisional staff, any assurance of long tenure may be 
uncertain.     
 
Contracting is an option chosen by many agencies during the recent economic 
decline. Typically, the work contracted is ongoing and has a specific and narrow 
scope (e.g., custodial maintenance).  Work requiring teams of people, judgment, 
specific local knowledge and experience are the types of work that, if affordable, 
should be considered for in-house staff. 
 
Contracting the work may require the City to meet and confer with the impacted 
bargaining groups.  Management staff would have to be careful in assuring that the 
contract employees don’t unintentionally fall in to the category of City employee.  To 
avoid this, the work would need to be constructed.     
 
Historically, contracting staff work has been viewed as a means of supplementing 
existing staff and is often believed to be less expensive than retaining new staff.  In 
recent conversations with local planning contracting agencies, the current hourly rate 
for contracted staff often exceeds the fully-recovered hourly cost of in-house staff.   
 
Finally, hiring contract planners would require the staff to prepare different scopes of 
work and related requests for proposals from various vendors followed by an 
evaluation and selection process that would likely take up to 180 days.  Final 
contract negotiations, selection and award by City Council would likely occur in 
September 2013.  Similar to both scenarios above, the learning curve for contractors 
would take approximately six months.   

 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
For the sake of discussion only, each professional staff member would cost 
approximately $150,000 annually, depending on skill level and market demand.  With 
the nine requested staff members, Council would be appropriating an additional $1.2 
million for costs with a budget offset of $724,000 in anticipated revenues.  Further, given 
that development review work is fully cost recovered, the fiscal impact for hiring staffing 
for development review would be negligible.  The rates charged for development review 
by any staff member fully captures that employee’s full cost as well as overhead.  The 
same is true for building inspection – the cost of the building permit is “sized” to cover 
the City’s total cost to provide the inspection.   
 
Comprehensive Planning, however, is not currently recoverable in a direct fee, although 
the City did adopted a fee following the adoption of the Specific Plan to incrementally 
recover the cost of developing the Plan over time.  As referenced earlier, the City 
expects to fully recoup the nearly $1.7 million over the next three years (depending on 
success of projects in the downtown).  For example, should the Stanford project along 
the El Camino Real be developed, Stanford’s fee for the Downtown Plan will likely 
exceed $500,000.   
 

172



Staff Report # 13-019  

The Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) future liability is often referenced 
when mentioning City employment.  Many focus on the City’s Unfunded Actuarial 
Liability, which is the difference between the Actuarial Accrued Liability and Assets.  
According to John Bartel, the City’s independent actuary, the Actuarial Accrued Liability 
is the value of benefits (not provided by future investment returns) due to service that 
has already been rendered (i.e. past service).  The day you hire a new employee, since 
they have no past service, their Actuarial Accrued Liability is zero.  Consequently, a new 
employee does not have any impact on the City’s Unfunded Actuarial Liability.  In other 
words, the unfunded liability reflects all past and current hires in the organization, not 
future hires.   
 
Mr. Bartel continues, “while imperfect, the household mortgage helps to exemplify this.  
Assume that your home mortgage applies to the Unfunded Actuarial Liability.  Here’s 
the way it works: 

1. The City’s Unfunded Actuarial Liability is the difference between the Actuarial 
Accrued Liability (AAL) and Assets.  The AAL is the value of benefits (not 
provided by future investment returns) due to service that has already been 
rendered (i.e. past service).  The AAL grows each year by Normal Cost and 
Interest on the AAL and gets reduced by benefit payments. 

2. The Assets grow each year by contributions and Investment earnings and get 
reduced by benefit payments. 

3. The UAAL (the difference between AAL and Assets) changes from one year to 
the next based on the difference between (1) and (2). 

4. Contributions include payment for Normal Cost and payment on the UAAL. Since 
Normal Cost and benefit payments are included in both (1) & (2), they cancel 
each other out in item (3). 

This means, if we assume no gains and losses, the UAAL grows each year based on 
interest on the UAAL offset by payment on the UAAL.  The principal payment is then the 
difference between the actual payment and interest on the UAAL…..this is exactly how 
a home mortgage works, this is why I like the analogy.  However, where the analogy 
breaks down is that the UAAL is due to prior service, whereas a home mortgage is not 
associated with prior service.” 
 
As these developments are completed, depending on the type of development (mixed-
use, housing, commercial office, etc.), the impact to the City’s bottom line will increase 
(e.g., property taxes, sales taxes, public benefit, etc.).  For example, once completed, 
Facebook is expected to generate $15 million over 15 years while the Menlo Gateway 
project is expected to generate at least $2 million annually.  Given that the City wants to 
realize the benefits of these projects, the City will be required to properly invest, upfront, 
in order to realize these financial gains.    
 
  

173



Staff Report # 13-019  

City Hall Improvements 
 
As the staffing adjusts to absorb the anticipated influx of new work, staff will need to be 
accommodated in the City Hall.  Given that space in the Community Development and 
Public Works /Engineering is at capacity on the 1st floor, CD and PW teams will be 
faced with splitting up to accommodate the growth in staffing.  Through various space 
planning strategies, staff continues to evaluate the most productive use of existing 
vacant 2nd floor space to accommodate the need.  Much of Administrative Services 
might be relocated and consolidated into different work spaces.  At the same time, 
certain minor renovations throughout the City Hall might need to be made to best utilize 
all of the spaces for professional quality work.  Space planning, furnishing and minor 
remodeling could cost up to an additional $250,000.  These costs would not qualify for 
cost recovery related to the increase in development work, but some of these costs 
could be offset through the overhead.  No matter how the program is staffed, 
modifications to City Hall will be necessary.  
 
As a means of expediting these improvements, staff would suggest that, following a 
formal bidding process, that Council provide authorization for the City Manager to award 
contract(s) to the lowest responsible bidder(s) for the needed furnishings and 
improvements to the City Hall. 
 
Based upon the above analysis, the following should be directed for inclusion in the 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 General Fund budget.  
 

• Adoption of a CIP to fund furnishing and building  
Improvements $250,000 

• One month of costs (June) 100,000   
 Total 12-13 Estimated Cost $350,000 

 
Further, based upon the above analysis, the following should be directed for inclusion in 
the Fiscal Year 2013-14 budget.  
         General Comp Plan 
         Fund  Fund   
 

• Convert of 2 existing provisional planners to regular $           0 $ 0 
employees 

• Add 3.0 Planners (estimated average overall cost)   300,000 150,000 
• Add 1.0 Building Inspector (estimated average cost)   150,000 
• Add 4.0 Engineers (estimated average cost)   375,000 225,000 

 Offset savings from eliminated Assistant Engineer (   35,000)  
  

Estimated Fee Revenue (  723,750)   
 Total 13-14 Estimated Cost  $66,250 $375,000 
 

174



Staff Report # 13-019  

POLICY ISSUES 
 
This recommendation creates the staff capacity to address several of the Council’s 
recently defined goals for the coming year, including focusing resources on important 
comprehensive planning processes, allowing development projects to progress more 
efficiently through the approval process and in a more business-friendly manner, 
renewing the community’s infrastructure and supporting tax-generating development 
that supports a sustainable budget.  The investment now in additional staff capacity 
creates sustainable revenue for the future and will allow continued advancement of the 
community in alignment with Council goals. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The City finds itself at an interesting, if not welcomed nor unforeseen, crossroads.  Over 
the past several years, the City Council put into motion a number of strategic decisions 
that have led to an unprecedented number of imminent development projects.  The 
adoption of the Downtown Specific Plan, the recruitment of social media giant 
Facebook, and the completion of the Housing Element all coupled with the 
strengthening local economy have unleashed what staff believes is a long pent-up 
demand for a presence in Menlo Park.  The sheer number of projects speaks to the 
City’s prime location in the Silicon Valley and the desire for many businesses to be a 
part of our community.   
 
In order to increase the organizational capacity to accommodate this new level of work, 
staff undertook a significant analysis of the anticipated workload projected by these new 
developments.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental review is not required.  
 
  Signature on file    Signature on file  
Alex D. McIntyre Arlinda Heineck 
City Manager Community Development Director 
 
 
  Signature on file   
Charles W. Taylor 
Public Works Director 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: None 

175



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

176



 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: February 12, 2013 
Staff Report #: 13-020 

 
Agenda Item #: F-3 

 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS:  Approve the Median Island and Right-of-Way Landscape 
Maintenance Service Request for Proposals 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION    
 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Median Island and Right-of-Way 
Landscape Maintenance Service Request for Proposals (RFP), and direct staff to 
proceed with distribution to obtain bids. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
On March 15, 2011, staff presented budget savings strategies to the City Council. 
During this time, the budget forecast for future years showed expenditures exceeding 
revenues for the next ten years and the necessity to potentially utilize general fund 
reserves.   
 
One of the budget saving strategies presented was to consider whether cost savings 
could be achieved by contracting out median and right-of-way landscape maintenance 
services.  Council requested staff to develop and issue a RFP to qualified landscape 
maintenance companies to determine if cost savings could be achieved as long as the 
level of service remained the same.  
 
During this same time, staff resources were diverted to focus on the possible acquisition 
of Flood Park from San Mateo County. The preparation of the RFP was placed on hold 
until Flood Park was resolved. At present, the Flood Park situation has been resolved 
and the County has provided adequate funding for the park. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
In determining how to best develop the RFP, staff reviewed numerous RFP’s from other 
cities for landscape maintenance services.  The RFP includes detailed maps of all 
median and right-of-way landscape areas currently being maintained by City staff.  The 
table below shows the size of areas currently maintained. 

177



Staff Report #13-020 
 

 

 

MAINTENANCE AREA AREA SIZE 

Medians Islands 11.8 acres (516,000 sq. ft.) 

Right-of-Way 21.2 acres (924,000 sq. ft.) 

Downtown  
Streetscape Parking Plazas 10 acres (435,000 sq. ft.) 

 
Staff has prepared a detailed specification that would capture both general and 
technical requirements needed to provide a comparable reflection of services currently 
provided by City staff.  The maintenance areas have also been divided into funding 
areas.  For example, a separate trust fund by the Developer of the Vintage Oaks 
subdivision was established when the subdivision was constructed in order to maintain 
the perimeter landscaping.  Also the Downtown Parking Permit Fund funds 3/4 of a Full 
Time Equivalent (FTE) park staff.   
 
The Parks staff is divided into three groups; one group maintains the sports fields 
(including school fields) and one group serves west of the railroad tracks and the other 
serving east of the railroad tracks. Each of these groups is responsible for maintaining 
parks, City facility landscaping and  medians and right-of-way in their assigned areas. 
 
The key components of the RFP are as follows:  
 

 The proposals will be evaluated on a “best value evaluation”.  Criteria used in 
evaluating the contractor’s abilities will include: cost, ability to provide service, 
previous performance and references, quality of service, responsiveness, and 
unspecified value-added offerings by the contractor.  

 

 Costs have been broken down to reflect each of the four maintenance areas: 
medians, rights-of-way, downtown streetscape/parking plazas, and the Vintage 
Oaks Subdivision. This allows a realistic cost in each area maintained and its 
different funding sources. 

 

 Contract is for a four-year term with the option to extend for additional four one-
year terms based on satisfactory review of the contractor’s performance. Either 
party can terminate agreement with 90-day notice. 

 

 Provides details on the technical aspect of the work to be completed by the 
contractor’s staff covering area frequency levels for all duties, such as mowing, 
edging and aerification of turf areas and fertilization requirements, as well as tree, 
shrub and groundcover maintenance procedures.  Step-by-step instructions on 
how to carry out annual turf renovations and complete details on irrigation 
management, repair and testing are provided in this section.  It also contains 
sections detailing disease and pest control, plant material requirements, and 
direction on litter, leaf and debris control.  A specific section has been added to 
convey the high level of service provided for the maintenance of the downtown 
area by City staff which is above the normal maintenance requirements. 

178



Staff Report #13-020 
 

 

 Contractor would be required to propose the staff hours planned to accomplish 
the work. They are required to indicate the following: A) the work forces’ position 
and title, B) minimum qualifications of each member of the work force, and C) the 
anticipated annual hours each work force member is expected to complete. This 
information will help show the commitment of each contractor in performing the 
work and whether a contractor is providing an accurate proposal in comparison to 
other proposals. 

 
 A 12-month guarantee on materials and workmanship for any extra work 

performed during the life of the contract is included. 
 
 In order to maintain the level of service, staff has developed a rating form to be 

completed monthly with the contractor. Samples of the inspection rating form are 
included in the RFP. These forms allow staff to deduct percentages from the 
monthly payments to reflect any deficiencies on the part of the contractor to meet 
the requirements for each area as stipulated in the RFP.  

 
 Detailed aerial views and street level perspectives that describe each area are 

included to provide insight to the contractors who are interested in bidding.   
 
 The staff hired by the contractor will be required to go through a background 

check and have all required certifications. Contractor shall have an office and staff 
available within 45 miles of the City in order to respond to emergencies.   

 
Staff is recommending the City Council take this opportunity to review the RFP, provide 
comments pertaining to its details and approve for distribution. If approved, staff will 
begin the process of sending the RFP to contractors best suited to perform the 
specifications detailed.   
 
Advantages of Contract Service Delivery 
 
Contracting provides a consistent flow of labor whereas the current service has a 
disrupted flow of labor when factoring in vacation and sick leave. Under a contract, 
service labor hours are consistent due to the availability of staff. In addition, outsourcing 
shifts a number of costs to the contractor, particularly employee related costs such as 
training, workers’ compensation, insurance, vehicle maintenance, hiring and retirement.  
 
Disadvantages of Contract Service Delivery  
 
By retaining its own workforce, the City has the ability to deploy employees in a 
strategic manner that provides for greater flexibility than would be available under a 
contract for services where work schedules are more routine and less flexible. 
Currently, the Parks Maintenance section can be assigned tasks that fall outside their 
scheduled routine (e.g. moving furniture, special event set-up, traffic control, etc.) 
whereas contract employees would require adequate notice; moreover, the City would 
incur costs for the additional work not specified in the contract. Additionally, the Parks 

179



Staff Report #13-020 
 

 

Maintenance section is part of the Public Works Department crew for the purpose of 
deploying a larger workforce to unforeseen circumstances such as inclement weather 
which can cause major flooding and fallen trees.  
 
The Public Works Department has an on-call group of employees who are trained to 
respond to a variety of calls during non-working hours which includes park staff 
responding to emergencies. This crew is on-call 365 days of the year and last fiscal 
year they responded to over 100 calls. Reduction in permanent staff reduces trained 
personnel for emergencies. In addition, permanent employees are required by State 
statute to report to work during emergencies. Contract employees could be used during 
an emergency, but the City would be restricted on what the City could use them for due 
to lack of training and knowledge of City facilities. 
  
Staffing Levels 
 
The current budget for the City to provide median and right-of-way services which 
includes the Vintage Oaks and Downtown areas is $324,600. This includes salary, 
benefits, training, equipment, materials, and supplies.  This cost does not include 
utilities ($130,800) and administrative staff time ($48,600) which will continue to be 
charged to this program in managing the contract if this service is contracted out. 
 
The $324,600 consists of $170,600 from the General Fund, $82,800 from the 
Downtown Parking Permit Fund, $17,200 from Vintage Oaks Landscape Fund and 
$54,000 from the Garbage Service Fund. The maintenance of the landscaping around 
Vintage Oaks has been contracted out since the City took over maintenance of the 
perimeter landscaping and the subdivision was completed. Approximately 5 years ago 
the City Council approved funding $54,000 from the Garbage Service Fund to fund 
portion of the park staff time when collecting garbage along the right-of-way.  
 

FUNDING EMPLOYEE STAFFING COST 

 2.35  FTE 
.75  FTE Seasonal Employee 

 
$324,600 

General Fund  1.0   FTE 
.75 FTE  Seasonal Employee 

 
$170,600 

Downtown Parking Fund .75 FTE 
 

$82,800 

Vintage Oaks Fund  0 
 

$17,200 

Garbage Fund  .6 FTE 
 

$54,000 

180



Staff Report #13-020 
 

 

If the City Council decides to contract out Median Island and Right-of-Way Landscape 
Maintenance Services, the cost of two (2) FTE, the .75 FTE seasonal and operating 
expenses is $289,600. This would be the cost to compare against the contract proposal. 
The $289,600 is $35,000 less than the current budget of $324,600 due to not being able 
to eliminate a portion (in this case .35 FTE) of a position. Therefore the .35 FTE would 
be moved to other services in the parks section. Out of the $289,600, $135,600 is from 
the general fund.    
 
Refuse Collection City Park/Facilities 
 
In January 2011, the City contracted Recology to service waste and recycling.  In the 
previous contract with Allied Waste, waste and recycling pickup in parks and City 
facilities was included at no cost to the City; however, this service was not included in 
the new contract with Recology.  In order for Recology to service waste and recycling at 
parks and City facilities and not incur additional costs, the waste and recycling bins 
must be located within five feet of the street or driveway.  Recology provided a service 
quote to provide waste and recycling pickup in City parks and facilities (similar to the 
level of service previously received from Allied) at a cost of over $300,000.  In the 2012-
13 budget, staff included an additional $30,000 in the operating budget for the City 
parks and facilities with the intent to use seasonal employees to assist staff with this 
extra work. The funding provided has not been sufficient due to increased use of City 
parks prompting additional staff time to complete services. This has reduced the service 
in other areas of Park maintenance. In addition, the waste that is collected can be heavy 
at times and there is a concern about possible work injuries.  Staff has included the cost 
to provide this service in the RFP.  Staff is using the RFP to get costs of this service and 
will be bid separately then the Median Island and Right-of-Way Landscape Maintenance 
Services.  
 
Wages 
 
In previous discussions concerning contracting out services, the City Council raised 
questions concerning the wages that contractors pay their workers. The prevailing wage 
rate for a landscape maintenance laborer is $8.69/hour including benefits as determined 
by the State of California. The RFP requires the contractors to meet this requirement. 
Some Cities have chosen to require “Living Wage” in order to insure that workers 
receive a livelihood that allows a full time worker to provide food, housing, health care, 
child care, and basic transportation for themselves and their families. These policies 
prevent the use of taxpayer dollars to subsidize employers who pay low wages and 
encourage firms to compete for city contracts on quality of service and productivity. If 
the Council is interested in establishing a “Living Wage” requirement, staff will need to 
research and return at a future date with more information.  
 

181



Staff Report #13-020 
 

 

Schedule 
 
If the RFP is approved by City Council, staff will continue the process following the 
schedule below.  Recommendations will be presented to the City Council in July or 
August 2013.   
 

February Send RFP to contractors 
March Mandatory pre-proposal meeting with contractors 
April Proposals due to City 
April/May Proposals reviewed and rated based on criteria 
May/June Meeting with preferred contractor to discuss proposal 
July/August Recommendation to City Council 

 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
There is no direct impact on City Resources associated with the action of this report. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The RFP should be carefully reviewed to confirm that the level of service meets the 
expectations of the City Council. The RFP requires the proposals to meet the State of 
California prevailing wage requirements, but does not currently require a “Living Wage”. 
 
Signature on File                         Signature on File                           
Dave Mooney Ruben Niño 
Parks Supervisor Assistant Public Works Director 
  
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

 A. Request for Proposal 

182



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

183



ATTACHMENT A 

  
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR 

MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY                                                           
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 

 
 

February 2013 
 
 

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED SEALED AND  
CLEARLY MARKED ON THE OUTSIDE WITH  

“MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY  
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES” 

 
PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED PRIOR TO 2 P.M. ON _____________, 2013 

AT: 
 

CITY OF MENLO PARK 
MAINTENANCE DIVISION 

333 BURGESS DRIVE 
MENLO PARK, CA 94025 

 
PROPOSALS MAY BE SUBMITTED BY MAIL OR DELIVERED DIRECTLY TO THE 

ABOVE ADDRESS PRIOR TO THE DATE AND TIME SPECIFIED ABOVE. 
 

184



 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR 

MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
  
 
The City of Menlo Park is requesting proposals for MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES per the attached specifications. Your 
proposal must be submitted as described in the attached Request for Proposal.  
Additional documentation may be added if desired.  Please review the entire package 
before submitting your proposal.  Incomplete submissions may be rejected as non-
responsive.  Our goal is to have the successful contractor providing services as soon as 
possible after selection.  The agreement will be for four (4) years with up to four 
additional one-year optional extensions.   
 
A mandatory pre-bid meeting is scheduled for 9:00 A.M. on ____________, 2013 at 
333 Burgess Drive, Menlo Park, CA 94025.  
 
The award shall be based on a best value evaluation.  Criteria used for the evaluation 
will include: cost, ability to provide service, previous performance and references, 
quality of service, responsiveness to specifications, and unspecified value-added 
offerings by the Contractor. The awarding authority’s determination and selection shall 
be final. 
 
The selected Contractor is expected to sign a contract. A sample contract is attached 
which includes the scope of services.  You must consider the terms and conditions in 
the sample contract to be part of your proposal.  Please read the insurance 
requirements and general provisions carefully.  Please do not execute the contract at 
this time.  
 
The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or any part of the proposal, to 
waive minor defects or technicalities, or to solicit new proposals.   
 
Please direct questions about the proposal specifications to Dave Mooney, Parks 
Supervisor, at (650) 330-6780.   
 
 

 
Company_______________________________ 
 
Address________________________________ 
 
City, State, Zip___________________________ 
 
Phone Number___________________________ 
 
Email __________________________________  
 
 

 
Auth. Signature__________________________ 
 
Print Name______________________________ 
 
Title ____________________Date ___________ 
 
Fax Number__________________________ 

 

185



 

LIST OF SUBMITTALS 
 

The following items must be submitted with your proposal. Omissions may be cause to 
consider your proposal non-responsive in the City’s sole discretion. 
 

 

 Completed Proposed Cost of Service Chart 

 Contractor’s Statement of Financial Responsibility 

 Contractor’s Statement of Technical Ability and Experience 

 Contractor’s Statement of Ability to Provide Services 

 Contractor’s Statement of Unspecified Value-Added Offerings 

 Contractor’s Statement of Compliance with Insurance Requirements 

 Contractor’s Listing of Subcontractors 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

186



 

CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSED COST OF SERVICE 
 

The matrix below describes items upon which the City requests a proposal.  Please 
note that you will be paid monthly one/twelfth (1/12) of your proposed annual 
cost.  The actual payments made to the Contractor will be based on the 
Contractor’s actual work performed for the City consistent with the terms and 
conditions of the contract documents. If the City accepts the Contractor’s 
Proposal it is estimated the Contractor would begin work on October 1, 2013. 
 
The undersigned declares he/she has carefully examined the locations of the work, read 
the Request for Proposal, examined all specifications, and hereby proposes to furnish 
all labor, materials, equipment, transportation, and services required to do all the work 
in this MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
Agreement in accordance with the specifications of the City of Menlo Park, and the 
General Provisions and that he/she will take in full payment therefore the following unit 
prices for each item complete, to wit: 
 

 

187



 

  
 

MEDIAN LOCATIONS 
 

Bid 
Item # Description/Locations 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 1 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 2 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 3 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 4 
1 Sand Hill Road Median Landscape  

(Highway 280 – Oak Avenue) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
 

2 Sharon Park Drive Median Landscape  
(Sand Hill Road – Klamath Drive) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

3 Siskiyou Drive Island Landscape 
(Monte Rosa Drive – Klamath Drive) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

4 Trinity Drive Island Landscape 
(Klamath Drive – Tioga Drive) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

5 Stone Pine Lane Island Landscape    
(El Camino Real – Forest Lane) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

6 Ravenswood Avenue Island 
(El Camino Real – Alma Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

7 Middlefield Road Island 
(Ringwood Avenue – Seminary Drive)   $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

8 Ravenswood Avenue Triangle  
Ravenswood Avenue / Middlefield Road $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

9 Ringwood Avenue Island Landscape  
Ringwood Avenue / Bay Road $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

10 Felton Gables Islands  
Felton Drive / Tudor Drive $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

11 El Camino Real Median Landscape  
(Creek Drive – Encinal Avenue) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

12 Hidden Oaks Court Island               
 Hidden Oaks Court  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

13 Willow Road Median Landscape    
(Alma Street – Hamilton Avenue) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

188



 
 

14 Woodland Avenue Islands         
(Menalto Avenue – Oak Court) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

15 Pope Street/Laurel Avenue Island      
Pope Street / Laurel Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

16 Ivy Drive Center Islands                                                                            
(Willow Road – Market Place) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

17 Iris Lane Center Islands                                                                      
(Van Buren Road – Del Norte Avenue) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

18 
Market Place Island     
Market Place                         
(Alpine Avenue/ Ivy Drive) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

19 Marsh Road Median Landscape      
(Scott Drive – Railroad Crossing) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

20 Chilco Street Island Landscape      
(Bayfront Expressway – Railroad Crossing) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

21 Teresa Court Island                             
Teresa Court $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

22 Chester Street Traffic Circle   
Chester Street at Arnold Way $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

23 Deanna Drive Island                               
Deanna Drive $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

24 Haven Avenue Island                                     
Haven Avenue at Marsh Road $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

25 Bay Road Island                                                   
Bay Road at Willow Road $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

26 Laurel Street and Burgess Drive Islands                                                        
Laurel Street and  Burgess Drive  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

  
                             Subtotal A           $____________     $_____________   $_____________     $____________ 

 

189



 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATIONS 

 
Bid 

Item # Description/Locations 
Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 1 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 2 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 3 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 4 
27 Sand Hill Road  

Highway 280 – Oak Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
 

28 Alpine Road  
Sand Hill Road – County Sign $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

29 Branner Drive 
Sand Hill Road – 2395 Branner Drive $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

30 Oak Avenue 
Vine Street – 1870 Oak Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

31 
Creek Drive  
Southside of Creek Drive from El Camino Real – Arbor 
Road $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

32 San Mateo Bike Bridge 
San Mateo Drive $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

33 
Middlefield Road  
Seminary Drive - Fire Station  
(Eastside only) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

34 Santa Cruz Avenue 
Northside Santa Cruz Avenue at Orange Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

35 
Alma Street  
Westside Alma Street from Oak Grove Avenue – East 
Creek Drive (including tree islands) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

36 
Van Buren Road  
Van Buren Road  
(Bay Road – Iris Lane) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

      

37 
Bay Road  
Eastside Bay Road  
(Heritage Place – Van Buren Road) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

190



 

38 
Bay Road  
Bay Road  
(Ringwood Avenue – Marsh Road) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

39 
Pierce Road  
Westside  Pierce Road  
(Del Norte Avenue – Newbridge Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

40 Chester Street Bulb Outs_ 
Arnold Way – Menalto Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

41 
 

Willow Road (West) 
Clover Lane – Highway 101 $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

42 Willow Road (East) 
Highway 101 – Railroad Crossing $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

43 
Woodland Avenue  
Southside Woodland Avenue 
Middlefield Road – Euclid Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

44 Hamilton Avenue Streetscape  
Carlton Avenue – Chilco Street $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

45 Ginger Street 
Hamilton Avenue – Sandalwood Street $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

46 Sandalwood St 
Westside Sandalwood Street (Ginger Street - end)  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

47 
Ivy Drive Plaza  
Ivy Drive 
Chilco Street – Almanor Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

48 Scott Drive Fence Line  
Scott Drive $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

49 Lee Drive  
Lee Drive at Valparaiso Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 
                                                                                   Subtotal B    $____________     $____________     $____________      $____________ 

 

191



 
DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE / PARKING PLAZA LOCATIONS 

 
Bid 

Item # Description/Locations 
Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 1 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 2 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 3 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 4 

50 
Santa Cruz Avenue Walkways  
Including side streets  
Merrill Street – University Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

51 Santa Cruz Avenue Islands 
Doyle Street – University Avenue $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

52 
Parking Plaza 1 
Santa Cruz Avenue to Oak Grove Avenue  
(between Maloney Street and Chestnut Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

53 
Parking Plaza 2 
Santa Cruz Avenue to Oak Grove Avenue  
(between Chestnut Street and Crane Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

54 
Parking Plaza 3 
Santa Cruz Avenue to Oak Grove Avenue  
(between Crane Street and University Drive) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

55 
Parking Plaza 4 
Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue  
(between University Drive  and Evelyn Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

56 
Parking Plaza 5 
Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue  
(between Evelyn Street  and Crane Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

57 
Parking Plaza 6 
Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue  
(between Crane Street and Chestnut Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

58 
Parking Plaza 7 
Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue  
(between Chestnut Street and Curtis Street) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

192



 
 

59 
Parking Plaza 8  
Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue  
(between Curtis Street and Doyle Street)                    $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

60 
Transit Station 
Merrill Street  
(between Santa Cruz Avenue and Ravenswood Avenue) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 
             Subtotal C    $____________     $____________     $____________      $____________ 
 

 
 
 

VINTAGE OAKS SUBDIVISION LOCATIONS 
 

Bid 
Item # Description/Locations 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 1 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 2 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 3 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 4 
61 Middlefield Road 

Seminary Drive - Ringwood Avenue (eastside only) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
 

62 Ringwood Avenue  
Middlefield Road -Arlington Way (southside only) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

63 
 

Arlington Way  
Ringwood Avenue to end along the Seminary Oaks 
Subdivision (westside only) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

64 
Coleman Avenue  
Santa Monica Avenue to end of Seminary Oaks 
Subdivision (westside only) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

65 
Santa Monica Avenue  
Coleman Avenue -445 Santa Monica Avenue 
(northside only) $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 
                          Subtotal D    $____________     $____________     $____________      $____________ 

193



 
TRASH / RECYCLING BINS 

 
Bid 

Item # Description/Locations 
Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 1 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 2 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 3 

Annual Cost 
Per Site For 

Year 4 
66 Nealon Park  

9 trash bins and 5 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
 

67 Stanford Hills Park  
6 trash bins and 2 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

68 Sharon Park  
11 trash bins and 2 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

69 Willow Oaks Park  
7 trash bins and 2 recycling  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

70 Jack Lyle Park 
8 trash bins and 3 recycling bins  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

71 Fremont Park  
6 trash bins and 3 recycling bins  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

72 Belle Haven School  
2 trash bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

73 Ivy Plaza  
4 trash bins and 2 recycling bins  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

74 Market Place Park 
6 trash bins 1 recycling bins  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

75 Sharon Hills Park 
6 trash bins and 1 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

76 Seminary Oaks Park 
5 trash bins 2 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

77 Burgess Park  
16 trash bins and 10 recycling bins  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

194



 
 

78 Civic Center  
14 trash bins and 7 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

79 Onetta Harris Community Center Complex 
10 trash bins and 1 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

80 Hamilton Park 
5 trash bins and 5 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

81 Kelly Park 
6 trash bins and 4 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

82 Tinker Park 
2 trash bins  and 1 recycling bins $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

 

83 Bedwell Bayfront Park 
5 trash bins and 2 recycling bins  $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

   
                                                                Subtotal E    $____________     $____________     $____________      $____________ 

 

195



 

  
 

EXTRA WORK 
 

D1 *Extra Work per year Stipulated Amount $10,000.00 
(Annual Amount) 

 
*Extra Work payments made to the CONTRACTOR will be based on the CONTRACTOR’S 
actual work performed for the City, consistent with the terms and conditions of the contract 
documents, and may be different from the prices estimated above. Extra Work is not 
guaranteed. 
 
Note: This Agreement is subject to prevailing wage laws, Labor code Section 1770 et seq. 
 

 
In the event of a discrepancy between site yearly bid item, subtotal bid and total annual cost, the 
site yearly bid items shall govern.  
 
Price(s) given above are firm for 150 calendar days after date of proposal opening.  
 
Addendum(a) No(s). ___________________________ has/have been received and is/are 
included in this proposal. 
 
The Undersigned has checked carefully all of the above figures and understands that the City 
will not be responsible for any error or omission on the part of the Undersigned in preparing this 
proposal. 
 
The Undersigned agrees that in case of default in executing the required City Contract with the 
necessary insurance policies within twenty (20) calendar days from the date of award of 
agreement by the City, the City may at its option and without providing further notice to the 
apparent best value Contractor administratively authorize the award of the contract to the Best 
Value Contractors in descending rank. 
 

_____________________________                _________________________________ 
Print Name                        Title 
 
_____________________________                
Signature                         

SUBTOTALS 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 

Subtotal A $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
Subtotal B $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
Subtotal C $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
Subtotal D $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
Subtotal E $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 
Extra Work $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 

TOTAL 
ANNUAL 

COST $____________ $____________ $____________ $____________ 

196



 
MINIMUM CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS 

 
The Contractor is required to have a minimum of five (5) years in business performing 
commercial landscape maintenance and irrigation system repair.   
 
EVALUATION OF PROPOSAL 
 

1. The Contractor shall not be relieved from assuming all responsibility for properly 
estimating the difficulties and the cost of performing the services required with 
this specification, because of failure to investigate the conditions or the 
Contractor failure to become acquainted with all the information concerning the 
services to be performed. 

 
2. Awards shall be based on a best value evaluation.  Criteria used for the 

evaluation will include: cost, ability to provide service, previous performance and 
references, quality of service, responsiveness to specifications, and unspecified 
value-added offerings by the Contractor. The City reserves the right to reject any 
or all proposals or to award only subtotals to multiple Contractors based upon 
best value evaluation. The awarding authority’s determination and selection shall 
be final. 

 
3. Each Contractor, by the submission of a proposal, assents to each and every 

term and condition set forth within this specification and attached agreement and, 
upon award, agrees to be bound thereby. 

 
4. Any proposal which is incomplete, conditional or obscure, or which contains 

irregularities of any kind, may be cause for rejection in the City’s sole discretion. 
 

5. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to ensure that all addenda issued are 
incorporated in their submitted proposal.  Failure to acknowledge and incorporate 
addenda may be cause for a City determination of Contractor’s “non-
responsiveness.” 
 

6. If a Contractor takes any exceptions to any part of these specifications as written, 
or as amended by any Addenda subsequently issued, they must do so in writing 
at the time of proposal submission.  Failure to do so will be construed as 
acceptance of all provisions of the specifications. 

 
7. Contractor shall submit one original proposal marked “Master” and four copies 

of the proposal. Electronic submissions need only one copy of the proposal. 
 

  
 
 
 

197



 
CONTRACTOR’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

  
 

A copy of the Contractor’s annual report shall be provided.  If an annual report is not 
available, such other information shall be provided to show financial stability of the 
Vendor. Information may be submitted under separate cover marked “CONFIDENTIAL”.  
Information in a form other than an annual report shall be signed “under penalty of 
perjury under the laws of the State of California”.  An attachment may be used. 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  

 

198



 
CONTRACTOR’S STATEMENT OF TECHNICAL EXPERIENCE AND REFERENCES 

 
The Contactor is required to state what work of a similar character to that included in the 
proposed Contract he/she has successfully performed and give references, with 
telephone numbers, which will enable the City to judge his/her responsibility, experience 
and skill and business standing. The Contractor is required to provide a minimum of five 
(5) references where work was performed within the past five (5) years of a similar size 
and nature to this contract.  An attachment can be used. 
  

Date 
Contract 

Completed 
Name and Address 

of the Employer 
Contact Persons 

Name and 
Telephone Number 

Type of 
Work 

Amount 
of 

Contract 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

199



 
CONTRACTOR’S STATEMENT OF ABILITY TO PROVIDE SERVICES 

 

The Contractor is required to make a statement of how services will be provided.  
Include: Time period between award and start of service, number of personnel to be 
used providing services, experience of personnel, numbers and type of equipment to be 
used, how quickly urgent but unplanned services can be provided, and any other 
information you can offer that will help determine your ability to provide contracted 
services. The Contractor is required to submit data that indicates the use of a uniform 
and detailed method by which he or she proposes to define, schedule, record, update 
and process installation, repair and maintenance tasks and service reports.  This 
program shall be computer generated.  
 
The City of Menlo Park reserves the right to evaluate the competency and responsibility 
of all proposing service companies and to evaluate the ability of any proposing company 
to perform all conditions of the contract to assure the award of this contract to a firm 
able to produce the quality of service required and intended by these specifications. 

 
The Contractor’s employees will be required to pass a background check. The City of 
Menlo Park will notify the Contractor in writing of the acceptability of the Contractor’s 
and employees.  The Contractor agrees the City of Menlo Park will be the sole judge of 
the suitability of the Contractor’s employees to perform any work on City of Menlo Park 
owned or maintained property. Subcontractors may be required to pass a background 
check if they will be on City property on a regular basis as determined by the City.  
 

(ATTACH CONTRACTOR’S STATEMENT OF ABILITY TO PROVIDE SERVICES HERE) 
 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

200



 
CONTRACTOR’S STATEMENT OF UNSPECIFIED VALUE-ADDED OFFERINGS 

 

List items or services you are offering in addition to those required by the attached 
specifications or scope of work, offered as part of your proposal and included in your 
proposal pricing, if any.  If none, please state “none.”  An attachment may be used. 
 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

201



 
LISTING OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

 

The Contractor is required to furnish the following information relative to the 
subcontractors he/she proposes to use. An attachment may be used. 
 
If all work is to be done without subcontractors, please state “none.”  An attachment may 
be used. 
 

NAME UNDER 
WHICH             

SUBCONTRACTOR  
IS LICENSED 

LICENSE 
NUMBER AND 

CLASS 
ADDRESS AND 

TELEPHONE 

TYPE AND  
PORTION OF WORK 
SUBCONTRACTOR  

WILL DO 
    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

202



 
CONTRACTOR’S STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH  

THE CITY OF MENLO PARK’S INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Contractor must attach either of the following items to this page, and submit with 
his/her proposal:   
 
1. Certificates of insurance showing conformance with the City’s contract insurance 

requirements herein for: 
 

 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance 
 

 Automobile Liability Insurance 
 

 Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
 

 Employer’s Liability Insurance 
 

OR 
 
2. Statement with an insurance carrier’s notarized signature stating that the carrier can, 

and upon payment of fees and/or premiums by the Vendor, will issue to the Vendor 
policies of insurance for Comprehensive General Liability, Automobile Liability, 
Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability in conformance with the 
requirements herein and Certificates of Insurance to the City showing conformance 
with the requirements herein. 

 
All certificates of insurance and statements of willingness to issue insurance for auto 
policies offered to meet the specification of this contract must: 
 
1. Meet the conditions stated in the included contract for each insurance company that 

the Vendor proposes. 
 

2. Cover any vehicle used in the performance of the contract, used onsite or offsite, 
whether owned, non-owned or hired, and whether scheduled or non-scheduled.  The 
auto insurance certificate must state the coverage is for "any vehicle" and cannot be 
limited in any manner. 

 
Within twenty (20) calendar days after the City’s notification of award of contract to the 
Contractor, all required insurance documents must be submitted to the City.  
Contractor’s failure to provide the City-required insurance certificates showing specified 
coverage within this time frame may be cause for the contract award to be rescinded in 
the City’s sole discretion. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Contractor’s Acknowledgement (signature) 
 
 
 

203



 
 

AGREEMENT FOR  
MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES  

(Insert Name of Contractor) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the ______________ day of 
__________________, 20___, by and between the CITY OF MENLO PARK, a 
municipal corporation, ("City"), and ______________________________, a 
_______________, ("Contractor"). 

 
RECITALS 

A. City requires the professional services of a landscape maintenance 
contractor that is experienced in maintaining facilities, parks and trails areas landscape. 

B. Contractor has the necessary experience in providing professional 
services and advice related to landscape maintenance services. 

C. Selection of Contractor is expected to achieve the desired results in an 
expedited fashion. 

D. Contractor has submitted a proposal to City and has affirmed its 
willingness and ability to perform such work. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals and the mutual covenants 

contained herein, City and Contractor agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK 
City retains Contractor to perform, and Contractor agrees to render, those services 
("Services") that are defined in attached Exhibit "A", which is incorporated by this 
reference in accordance with this Agreement’s terms and conditions. 
 
2. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE 
While performing the Services, Contractor will exercise the reasonable professional 
care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members of Contractor's profession 
practicing in the Bay Area, and will use reasonable diligence and best judgment while 
exercising its professional skill and expertise. 
 
3. TERM 
The term of this Agreement will be effective for a period of four (4) years from the date 
first above written. The City Manager may amend the Agreement to extend it for four  
(4) additional one (1) year periods or parts thereof in an amount not to exceed 
________________________________________ dollars ($_________) per Agreement 
year. Extensions will be based upon a satisfactory review of Contractor's performance, 
City needs, and appropriation of funds by the City Council. The parties will prepare a 
written amendment indicating the effective date and length of the extended Agreement.  
Either the City or the Contractor may decline to confirm the renewal of the contract for 
any reason whatsoever, which shall render the renewal option null and void. 
 

Sample Contract 
May be subject to change 

204



 
4. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 
Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 
 
5. COMPENSATION 
The total fee payable for the Services to be performed during the initial Agreement term 
will be ____________________________________________ dollars ($_________). 
No other compensation for the Services will be allowed except for items covered by 
subsequent amendments to this Agreement.  
If an increase in compensation for service in succeeding option periods is requested, 
the Contractor must provide detailed supporting documentation to justify the requested 
rate increase.  The requested increase will be evaluated by the City, and the City 
reserves the right to negotiate, accept or reject the Contractor's requested 
compensation increase.  This Agreement's annual compensation terms may be 
adjusted by a mutually agreeable amount based on and no greater than the San 
Francisco Consumer Price Index changes over the previous year period. Requests for 
price changes must be made by the Contractor in writing sixty (60) days before the end 
of the then-current agreement period and is subject to negotiation or rejection by the 
City.   
 
6. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR 
Contractor will perform the Services in Contractor's own way as an independent 
contractor and in pursuit of Contractor's independent calling, and not as an employee of 
City. Contractor will be under control of City only as to the result to be accomplished, 
but will consult with City as necessary. The persons used by Contractor to provide 
services under this Agreement will not be considered employees of City for any 
purposes. 
 
The payment made to Contractor pursuant to the Agreement will be the full and 
complete compensation to which Contractor is entitled.  City will not make any federal or 
state tax withholdings on behalf of Contractor or its agents, employees or 
subcontractors. City will not be required to pay any workers' compensation insurance or 
unemployment contributions on behalf of Contractor or its employees or subcontractors. 
Contractor agrees to indemnify City within thirty (30) days for any tax, retirement 
contribution, social security, overtime payment, unemployment payment or workers' 
compensation payment which City may be required to make on behalf of Contractor or 
any agent, employee, or subcontractor of Contractor for work done under this 
Agreement. At the City’s election, City may deduct the indemnification amount from any 
balance owing to Contractor. 
 
7. PREVAILING WAGES TO BE PAID 
The general prevailing rate of wages for each craft or type of worker needed to execute 
the contract shall be those as determined by the Director of Industrial Relations 
pursuant to Sections 1770, 1773 and 1773.1 of the Labor Code. Pursuant to Section 
1773.2 of the Labor Code, a current copy of the applicable wage rates is on file in the 
Office of the City Engineer. The contractor to whom the contract is awarded shall not 
pay less than the said specified prevailing rates of wages to all workers employed by 
him or her in execution of the contract. 

205



 
8. SUBCONTRACTING 
Contractor will not subcontract any portion of the Services without prior written approval 
of City. If Contractor subcontracts any of the Services, Contractor will be fully 
responsible to City for the acts and omissions of Contractor's subcontractor and of the 
persons either directly or indirectly employed by the subcontractor, as Contractor is for 
the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by Contractor. Nothing contained 
in this Agreement will create any contractual relationship between any subcontractor of 
Contractor and City. Contractor will be responsible for payment of subcontractors. 
Contractor will bind every subcontractor and every subcontractor of a subcontractor by 
the terms of this Agreement applicable to Contractor's work unless specifically noted to 
the contrary in the subcontract and approved in writing by City. 
 
9. OTHER CONTRACTORS 
The City reserves the right to employ other Contractors in connection with the Services. 
 
10. INDEMNIFICATION 
Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City and its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses 
including attorney’s fees arising out of the performance of the work described herein 
caused by any negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Contractor, any 
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable. 
 
The parties expressly agree that any payment, attorney’s fee, costs or expense City 
incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the City’s self-
administered workers’ compensation is included as a loss, expense or cost for the 
purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early 
termination of this Agreement. 
 
11.      INSURANCE 
Contractor will obtain and maintain for the duration of the Agreement and any and all 
amendments, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property 
which may arise out of or in connection with performance of the services by Contractor 
or Contractor’s agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. The insurance 
will be obtained from an insurance carrier admitted and authorized to do business in the 
State of California. The insurance carrier is required to have a current Best's Key Rating 
of not less than "A-:V". 
 
11.1     Coverages and Limits  
Contractor will maintain the types of coverages and minimum limits indicated below, 
unless the City Manager approves a lower amount. These minimum amounts of 
coverage will not constitute any limitations or cap on Contractor's indemnification 
obligations under this Agreement. City, its officers, agents and employees make no 
representation that the limits of the insurance specified to be carried by Contractor 
pursuant to this Agreement are adequate to protect Contractor. If Contractor believes 
that any required insurance coverage is inadequate, Contractor will obtain such 

206



 
additional insurance coverage, as Contractor deems adequate, at Contractor's sole 
expense. 
 
11.1.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance  
$1,000,000 combined single-limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage. If the submitted policies contain aggregate limits, general aggregate 
limits will apply separately to the work under this Agreement or the general aggregate 
will be twice the required per occurrence limit. 
 
11.1.2 Automobile Liability  
If the use of an automobile is involved for Contractor's work for City, $1,000,000 
combined single-limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 
 
11.1.3 Any Auto Coverage  
Insurance must cover any vehicle used in the performance of the contract, used onsite 
or offsite, whether owned, non-owned or hired, and whether scheduled or non-
scheduled.  The auto insurance certificate must state the coverage is for "any auto" and 
cannot be limited in any manner. 
 
11.1.4 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability   
Workers' Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employer's 
Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury. Workers' Compensation and 
Employer's Liability insurance will not be required if Contractor has no employees and 
provides, to City's satisfaction, a declaration stating this. 
 
11.1.5 Additional Provisions  
Contractor will ensure that the policies of insurance required under this Agreement 
contain, or are endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
11.2.1  The City will be named as an additional insured on General Liability. 
 
11.2.2 This insurance will be in force during the life of the Agreement and any 
extensions of it and will not be canceled without thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
City sent by certified mail pursuant to the Notice provisions of this Agreement. 
 
11.2.3  Prior to City's execution of this Agreement, Contractor will furnish certificates of 
insurance and endorsements to City. 
 
11.3  Failure to Maintain Coverage  
If Contractor fails to maintain any of these insurance coverages, then City will have the 
option to declare Contractor in breach, or may purchase replacement insurance or pay 
the premiums that are due on existing policies in order to maintain the required 
coverages. Contractor is responsible for any payments made by City to obtain or 
maintain insurance and City may collect these payments from Contractor or deduct the 
amount paid from any sums due Contractor under this Agreement. 

207



 
11.4 Submission of Insurance Policies   
City reserves the right to require, at anytime, complete and certified copies of any or all 
required insurance policies and endorsements. 
 
12.  BUSINESS LICENSE 
Contractor will obtain and maintain a City of Menlo Park Business License for the term 
of the Agreement, as may be amended from time-to-time. 
 
13.  ACCOUNTING RECORDS 
Contractor will maintain complete and accurate records with respect to costs incurred 
under this Agreement. All records will be clearly identifiable. Contractor will allow a 
representative of City during normal business hours to examine, audit, and make 
transcripts or copies of records and any other documents created pursuant to this 
Agreement. Contractor will allow inspection of all work, data, documents, proceedings, 
and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years from the date of 
final payment under this Agreement. 
 
14.  OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
All work product produced by Contractor or its agents, employees, and subcontractors 
pursuant to this Agreement is the property of City.  In the event this Agreement is 
terminated, all work product produced by Contractor or its agents, employees and 
subcontractors pursuant to this Agreement will be delivered at once to City. Contractor 
will have the right to make one (1) copy of the work product for Contractor’s records. 
 
15.  COPYRIGHTS 
Contractor agrees that all copyrights that arise from the services will be vested in City 
and Contractor relinquishes all claims to the copyrights in favor of City. 
 
16.  NOTICES 
The name of the persons who are authorized to give written notices or to receive written 
notice on behalf of City and on behalf of Contractor under this Agreement. 

 
Each party will notify the other immediately of any changes of address that would 
require any notice or delivery to be directed to another address. 
 

 

Name Phone number 
  

  

  
  

208



 

 

17.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
City will evaluate Contractor’s duties pursuant to this Agreement to determine whether 
disclosure under the Political Reform Act and City’s Conflict of Interest Code is required 
of Contractor or any of Contractor’s employees, agents, or subcontractors. Should it be 
determined that disclosure is required, Contractor or Contractor’s affected employees, 
agents, or subcontractors will complete and file with the City Clerk those schedules 
specified by City and contained in the Statement of Economic Interests Form 700. 
 
Contractor, for Contractor and on behalf of Contractor’s agents, employees, 
subcontractors and consultants warrants that by execution of this Agreement, that they 
have no interest, present or contemplated, in the projects affected by this Agreement. 
Contractor further warrants that neither Contractor, nor Contractor’s agents, employees, 
subcontractors and consultants have any ancillary real property, business interests or 
income that will be affected by this Agreement or, alternatively, that Contractor will file 
with the City an affidavit disclosing this interest. 
 
18.  GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
Contractor will keep fully informed of federal, state and local laws and ordinances and 
regulations which in any manner affect those employed by Contractor, or in any way 
affect the performance of the Services by Contractor. Contractor will at all times observe 
and comply with these laws, ordinances, and regulations and will be responsible for the 
compliance of Contractor's services with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations. 
 
19.  DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT PROHIBITED 
Contractor will comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations 
prohibiting discrimination and harassment. 
 
20.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
If a dispute should arise regarding the performance of the Services the following 
procedure will be used to resolve any questions of fact or interpretation not otherwise 
settled by agreement between the parties. Representatives of Contractor or City will 
reduce such questions, and their respective views, to writing. A copy of such 
documented dispute will be forwarded to both parties involved along with recommended 
methods of resolution, which would be of benefit to both parties. The representative 
receiving the letter will reply to the letter along with a recommended method of 
resolution within ten (10) business days. If the resolution thus obtained is unsatisfactory 
to the aggrieved party, a letter outlining the disputes will be forwarded to the Director of 
Public Works. The Director of Public Works will consider the facts and solutions 
recommended by each party and may then opt to direct a solution to the problem. In 
such cases, the action of the Director of Public Works  will be binding upon the parties 
involved, although nothing in this procedure will prohibit the parties from seeking 
remedies available to them at law. 
 

209



 

 

21.  TERMINATION 
In the event of the Contractor's failure to prosecute, deliver, or perform the Services, 
City may terminate this Agreement for nonperformance by notifying Contractor by 
certified mail of the termination.  If City decides to abandon or indefinitely postpone the 
work or services contemplated by this Agreement, City may terminate this Agreement 
upon written notice to Contractor. Upon notification of termination, Contractor has five 
(5) business days to deliver any documents owned by City and all work in progress to 
City address contained in this Agreement. City will make a determination of fact based 
upon the work product delivered to City and of the percentage of work that Contractor 
has performed which is usable and of worth to City in having the Agreement completed. 
Based upon that finding City will determine the final payment of the Agreement. 
 
Either party upon tendering ninety (90) days written notice to the other party may 
terminate this Agreement. In this event and upon request of City, Contractor will 
assemble the work product and put it in order for proper filing and closing and deliver it 
to City. Contractor will be paid for work performed to the termination date; however, the 
total will not exceed the lump sum fee payable under this Agreement. City will make the 
final determination as to the portions of tasks completed and the compensation to be 
made. 
 
22.  COVENANTS AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
Contractor warrants that Contractor has not employed or retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working for Contractor, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement, and that Contractor has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, 
or any other consideration contingent upon, or resulting from, the award or making of 
this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, City will have the right to annul 
this Agreement without liability, or, in its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price 
or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of the fee, commission, 
percentage, brokerage fees, gift, or contingent fee. 
 
23.  CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS 
By signing this Agreement, Contractor agrees that any Agreement claim submitted to 
City must be asserted as part of the Agreement process as set forth in this Agreement 
and not in anticipation of litigation or in conjunction with litigation. Contractor 
acknowledges that if a false claim is submitted to City, it may be considered fraud and 
Contractor may be subject to criminal prosecution. Contractor acknowledges that 
California Government Code sections 12650 et seq., the False Claims Act applies to 
this Agreement and, provides for civil penalties where a person knowingly submits a 
false claim to a public entity. These provisions include false claims made with deliberate 
ignorance of the false information or in reckless disregard of the truth or falsity of 
information. If City seeks to recover penalties pursuant to the False Claims Act, it is 
entitled to recover its litigation costs, including attorney's fees. Contractor acknowledges 
that the filing of a false claim may subject Contractor to an administrative debarment 
proceeding as the result of which Contractor may be prevented to act as a Contractor 
on any public work or improvement for a period of up to five (5) years. Contractor 
acknowledges debarment by another jurisdiction is grounds for City to terminate this 
Agreement. 

210



 

 

24.  JURISDICTIONS AND VENUE 
Any action at law or in equity brought by either of the parties for the purpose of 
enforcing a right or rights provided for by this Agreement will be tried in a court of 
competent jurisdiction in the County of San Mateo, State of California, and the parties 
waive all provisions of law providing for a change of venue in these proceedings to any 
other county. 
 
25.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
It is mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement will be binding upon City and 
Contractor and their respective successors. Neither this Agreement or any part of it nor 
any monies due or to become due under it may be assigned by Contractor without the 
prior consent of City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
26.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
This Agreement, together with any other written document referred to or contemplated 
by it, along with the purchase order for this Agreement and its provisions, embody the 
entire Agreement and understanding between the parties relating to the subject matter 
of it. In case of conflict, the terms of the Agreement supersede the purchase order. 
Neither this Agreement nor any of its provisions may be amended, modified, waived or 
discharged except in a writing signed by both parties. 
 
27.  AUTHORITY 
The individuals executing this Agreement and the instruments referenced in it on behalf 
of Contractor each represent and warrant that they have the legal power, right and 
actual authority to bind Contractor to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

CONTRACTOR: CITY OF MENLO PARK, a municipal  
corporation of the State of California 

*By: _________________________ 
 (sign here) 

By: __________________________ 
City Manager 

_____________________________
 (print name/title)  
____________________________
 (e-mail address)  
  
*By: _________________________ 
 (sign here)  
_____________________________
 (print name/title)  
____________________________
 (e-mail address)  

211



 

 

MANNER OF PERFORMING SERVICES 
PART I 

GENERAL  SPECIFICATIONS 
 
0.0      SCHEDULING OF WORK- CONTRACT START UP 
 
0.01 CONTRACTOR shall, within three months after commencement of services, 

bring all sites subject to this agreement to the level set forth in the specifications 
as follows: 

 
0.01.1 Shrubs- fertilize using Nitra King 19-4-4 at one (1) pound of actual nitrogen at 

one pound per 1,000 square feet or approved equal. Diagnose and treat all 
diseased or unhealthy plants.  Provide report of diagnosed/treated plants.   

 
0.01.2 Groundcover- Plant new groundcover to match existing or as directed by the 

every 12” triangular spaced to fill in bare areas, Fertilize using Nitra King 19-4-4 
at one (1) pound of actual nitrogen at one pound per 1,000 square feet. 

 
0.01.3 Trees - Prune all trees to specification. Establish tree ring if needed. Prior to 

trimming trees with branches greater than two (2) inches in diameter, the 
Contractor shall contact Contract Administrator. 

 
0.01.4 Irrigation- Perform start-up irrigation system check and repair all heads, swing 

joints and lateral lines, valves, raising and adjusting heads/nozzles as necessary.  
All valve boxes shall be identified with heat-branded markings as directed by the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
0.01.5 Mulch- Install Preen 2 Cu. Ft. Midnight Black Preen Mulch mulch size 0” to 1-1/2” 

or approved equal in all planters, tree rings and other designated areas in 
minimum of two (2”). 

 
0.01.6 Turf- Aerate and fertilize all turf using Nitra King 19-4-4 at one (1) pound of actual 

nitrogen at one pound per 1,000 square feet. All weeds shall be treated using 
selective post emergent herbicide until weeds are eradicated. 

 
0.01.7 Contractor understands that it is assuming maintenance responsibility of 

medians and right-of-way in “as is” condition and during the three (3) month start 
there is no additional cost to the City. 

 
 

212



 

 

1.00 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1.01 The premises shall be maintained with a crisp, clean appearance and all work 

shall be performed in a professional, workmanlike manner using quality 
equipment and materials. 

 
1.02 CONTRACTOR shall provide the labor, materials, equipment, tools, services and 

special skills necessary for the provision of grounds and landscape maintenance 
services, except as otherwise specified hereinafter.  The premises shall be 
maintained to the highest of standards at no less than the frequencies set forth 
herein. 

 
1.03 CONTRACTOR is hereby required to render and provide landscape and grounds 

maintenance services including, but not limited to; shaping, trimming and training 
of trees, shrubs and ground cover plants; fertilization; cultivation; weed control; 
control of all plant diseases and pests; sweeping; irrigation and drainage 
systems; litter pick up; removal of illegal dumps; plant replacement and all other 
maintenance required to maintain attractive median and right-of-way landscape.  

 
1.04 Upon commencement of work under this CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR shall be 

fully equipped and staffed; thoroughly familiar with CONTRACT requirements 
and prepared to provide all services required. Failure to provide full services from 
the first day of work under this CONTRACT may result in deductions from 
payment.  

 
1.05 CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to correct any maintenance deficiencies, 

which may exist upon commencement of work under this CONTRACT.   
 
1.06 CONTRACTOR shall, during the term of this CONTRACT, respond to all 

emergencies, to the satisfaction of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, within 
one (1) hour of notification. 

 
1.07 The CONTRACTOR shall perform a weekly maintenance inspection during 

daylight hours of all areas within the premises.  Such inspection shall be both 
visual and operational.  It shall include operation of all irrigation systems to check 
for proper condition and reliability. CONTRACTOR shall take immediate steps to 
correct any observed irregularities, and submit a written report regarding such 
circumstances to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
1.08 CONTRACTOR shall clearly identify and equip each vehicle used at said areas 

with decals on the exterior right and left front door panels, identifying the 
CONTRACTOR'S name, address and phone number. All vehicles and equipment 
used in this proposal shall be in operable working condition, clean appearance 
without visible damage, dirt, graffiti, etc.  

 
1.09 CONTRACTOR shall report to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR all 

observations of: graffiti and other vandalism; illegal activities; transient camps; 
missing or damaged equipment or signs; hazards or potential hazards. 

213



 

 

 
1.10 CONTRACTOR shall incorporate and comply with all applicable Best 

Management Practices (BMPs) during the completion of this agreement. All work 
must be in compliance with the most current Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (RWQCB) permit, City of Menlo Park Municipal Code and the City of 
Menlo Park Stormwater Permit incorporated herein by reference.  
 

1.11 CONTRACTOR shall indicate in her/his proposal methods of compliance, 
equipment utilized to insure compliance, training of staff and experience in 
compliance with environmental regulations.  If in the opinion of the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR, the CONTRACTOR is not in compliance with this provision 
City reserves the right to implement BMPs to the maximum extent practical, and 
deduct payment due or back charge the CONTRACTOR for implementation with 
a 15% markup for administration and overhead. 

 
1.12 CONTRACTOR shall prior to submitting bid and during contract period possess 

all licenses and permits required for the performance of the work required by this 
contract (except business license must be obtained prior to start of work). 
Minimum License are:  

 
    Pest Control Advisor 
    Irrigation Technician 
    C-27 
 

The contractor shall provide a copy of all required licenses with the 
proposal except the business license.   
 

1.13  CONTRACTOR shall maintain a local office with a competent representative 
who can be reached during normal business hours or emergencies who is 
authorized to make decisions on matters pertaining to this contract with the City. 
Field facilities that support daily operations must be within 45 miles of the City. 

 
1.14 CONTRACTOR during inclement weather that prevents normal maintenance 

operation as determined by the City shall clean drains, gutters or other drainage 
structures within the contracted area. The CONTRACTOR shall not work during 
incremental weather that may cause damage to any landscaped area within the 
scope of this contract.  
 
CONTRACTOR after heavy windstorms or other inclement weather that impacts 
sites under this agreement shall bring in extra staff to clean all areas within two 
(2) days at no cost to the City. This includes, but not limited to, litter, fallen 
branches, soil erosion and cleaning debris from the surface of storm drains 
adjacent sites. Drain inlets shall be cleaned as necessary adjacent sites to avoid 
flooding during incremental weather.  

 
1.15    CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for replacing all plants/shrubs/trees ground 

cover that die for any reason including vandalism of comparable size and quality.  

214



 

 

Trees shall be replaced with a minimum 15 gallon tree approved by the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
1.16 In general, all service levels shall remain the same after the initial 

CONTRACTOR start up. The City may upgrade planting or irrigation systems 
and during the construction this portion of the scope of work will be removed from 
the CONTRACT until the project is complete. 

 
1.17 The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR will provide copies of any current forms and 

plans that are available. 
 
1.18   Water is paid for by the City where available. Some areas do not have irrigation 

systems and CONTRACTOR will be responsible for providing water if needed to 
maintain landscaping.  

 
1.19 It is up to the CONTRACTOR to visit every site and prepare each bid according 

to the needs of that site.  The size of the areas is for estimate purposes and it is 
the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to verify sizes. 

 
1.20   All organic waste (including leaves, grass clippings, brush, branches and tree 

parts) resulting from work performed under this contract shall be disposed of at a 
licensed compost/green waste facility. CONTRACTOR shall submit receipts 
listing tons of organic waste recycled and the names and address of the 
processing company. 

 
2.00 MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY AREAS TO BE MAINTAINED 
 
2.01 The median and right-of-way landscape areas to be maintained under the 

provisions of this CONTRACT are located at the following areas:  
 

MEDIAN LOCATIONS 
 

Sand Hill Road Median Landscape Sand Hill Road  
(Highway 280 – Oak Avenue) 

  

Sharon Park Drive Median Landscape Sharon Park Drive  
(Sand Hill Road – Klamath Drive) 

  

Siskiyou Drive Island Landscape Siskiyou Drive  
(Monte Rosa Drive – Klamath Drive) 

  

Trinity Drive Island Landscape Trinity Drive  
(Klamath Drive – Tioga Drive) 

  

Stone Pine Lane Island Landscape Stone Pine Lane  
(El Camino Real – Forest Lane) 

  

Ravenswood Avenue Island Ravenswood Avenue  
(El Camino Real – Alma Street)  

  

Middlefield Road Island Middlefield Road  
(Ringwood Avenue – Seminary Drive)   

215



 

 

  

Ravenswood Avenue Triangle Ravenswood Avenue – Middlefield Road 
  

Ringwood Island Landscape Ringwood Avenue – Bay Road 
  

Felton Gables Islands Felton Drive – Tudor Drive 
  

El Camino Real Median Landscape El Camino Real  
(Creek Drive – Encinal Avenue) 

  

Hidden Oaks Court Island Hidden Oaks Court 
  

Willow Road Median Landscape Willow Road  
(Alma Street – Hamilton Avenue) 

  

Woodland Avenue Islands Woodland Avenue  
(Menalto Avenue – Oak Court) 

  

Pope/Laurel Island Pope Street – Laurel Avenue 
  

Ivy Drive Center Islands  Ivy Drive  
(Willow Road – Market Place) 

  

Iris Lane Center Islands Iris Lane  
(Van Buren Road – Del Norte Avenue) 

  

Market Place Island Market Place  
(Alpine Avenue – Ivy Drive) 

  

Marsh Road Median Landscape Marsh Road  
(Scott Drive – Railroad Crossing) 

  

Chilco Street Island Landscape Chilco Street  
(Bayfront Expressway – Railroad Crossing) 

  

Teresa Court Island Teresa Court 
  

Chester Street Traffic Circle  Chester Street at Arnold Way 
  

Deanna Drive Island Deanna Drive 
  

Haven Avenue Island Haven Avenue at Marsh Road 
  

Bay Road Island Bay Road at Willow Road 
  

Laurel Street and Burgess Drive 
Islands 

Laurel Street and Burgess Drive  

 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATIONS 
 

Sand Hill Road Highway 280 – Oak Avenue 
  

Alpine Road Sand Hill Road – County Sign 
  

Branner Drive Sand Hill Road – 2395 Branner Drive 
  

Oak Avenue Vine Street – 1870 Oak Avenue 
  

Creek Drive Along Creek Drive from  
El Camino Real – Arbor Road 

  

San Mateo Bike Bridge San Mateo Drive 

216



 

 

  

Middlefield Road From Seminary Drive to Fire Station (eastside 
only) 

  

Santa Cruz Avenue Northside Santa Cruz Avenue at         Orange 
Avenue 

  

Alma Street 
Westside Alma Street  
(Oak Grove Avenue – East Creek Drive( 
including tree islands)) 

  

Van Buren Road Van Buren Road  
(Bay Road – Iris Lane) 

 

Bay Road  Bay Road  
(Heritage Place – Van Buren Road) 

  

Bay Road  Bay Road  
(Ringwood Avenue– Marsh Road) 

  

Pierce Road Pierce Road (westside) 
(Del Norte Avenue – Newbridge Street) 

  

Chester Street Bulb Outs Arnold Way – Menalto Avenue 
  

Willow Road (west) Willow Road  
(Clover Lane – Highway 101) 

  

Willow Road (east) Willow Road  
(Highway 101 – Railroad Crossing) 

  

Woodland Avenue Middlefield Road – Euclid Avenue               
(adjacent to the creek only) 

  

Hamilton Avenue Streetscape Hamilton Avenue  
(Carlton Avenue – Chilco Street) 

 

Ginger Street Hamilton Ave. – Saddlewood Street. 
 

Saddlewood Street  Westside of Saddlewood Street  
(Ginger Street  – south end) 

  

Ivy Drive Plaza Ivy Drive  
(Chilco Street – Almanor Avenue) 

  

Scott Drive Fence Line Scott Drive  
  

Lee Drive Lee Drive at Valparaiso Avenue 
 
 

DOWNTOWN STREETSCAPE / PARKING PLAZA LOCATIONS 
 

Santa Cruz Avenue Walkways Merrill Street – University Avenue 
  

Santa Cruz Avenue Islands Doyle Street – University Avenue 
  

Parking Plaza 1 Santa Cruz Avenue to Oak Grove Avenue 
(between Maloney Street and Chestnut Street) 

  

Parking Plaza 2  Santa Cruz Avenue to Oak Grove Avenue 
(between Chestnut Street and Crane Street) 

  

217



 

 

Parking Plaza 3 Santa Cruz Avenue to Oak Grove Avenue 
(between Crane Street and University Drive) 

  

Parking Plaza 4 Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue (between 
University Drive and Evelyn Street) 

  

Parking Plaza 5 Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue (between 
Evelyn Street and Crane Street) 

  

Parking Plaza 6 Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue (between 
Crane Street and Chestnut Street) 

  

Parking Plaza 7 Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue (between 
Chestnut Street and Curtis Way) 

  

Parking Plaza 8 Santa Cruz Avenue to Menlo Avenue (between 
Curtis Way and Doyle Street) 

  

Transit Station  
including bike locker and fountain 

Merrill Street  
(between Santa Cruz Avenue and Ravenswood 
Avenue) 

 
 

VINTAGE OAKS SUBDIVISION 
 

Middlefield Road Between Seminary Drive and Ringwood 
Avenue (eastside only) 

  

Ringwood Avenue  Between Middlefield Road and Arlington Way 
(southside only) 

  

 
Arlington Way  

Between Ringwood Avenue to end along the 
Seminary Oaks Subdivision (westside only) 

  

  
Coleman Avenue  

Between Santa Monica Avenue to end of 
Seminary Oaks Subdivision (westside only) 

  

 
Santa Monica Avenue  

Between Coleman Avenue and 445 Santa 
Monica Avenue (northside only) 

 
TRASH / RECYCLING BINS 

 
Nealon Park  9 trash bins and 5 recycling bins 

 

Stanford Hills Park  6 trash bins and 2 recycling bins 
 

Sharon Park  11 trash bins and 2 recycling bins 
 

Willow Oaks Park  7 trash bins and 2 recycling 
 

Jack Lyle Park 8 trash bins and 3 recycling bins 
 

Fremont Park  6 trash bins and 3 recycling bins 
 

Belle Haven School  2 trash bins 
 

Ivy Plaza  4 trash bins and 2 recycling bins 
 

218



 

 

Market Place Park 6 trash bins 1 recycling bins 
 

Sharon Hills Park 6 trash bins and 1 recycling bins 
 

Seminary Oaks Park 5 trash bins 2 recycling bins 
 

Burgess Park  16 trash bins and 10 recycling bins 
 

Civic Center  14 trash bins and 7 recycling bins 
 

Onetta Harris Community Center 
Complex 10 trash bins and 1 recycling bins 

 

Hamilton Park 5 trash bins and 5 recycling bins 
 

Kelly Park 6 trash bins and 4 recycling bins 
 

Tinker Park 2 trash bins  and 1 recycling bins 
 

Bedwell Bayfront Park 5 trash bins and 2 recycling bins 
 
2.02 CONTRACTOR acknowledges personal inspection of the Median/Right-of-Way 

areas and the surrounding areas, and has evaluated the extent to which the 
physical condition thereof will affect the services to be provided.  CONTRACTOR 
accepts the premises in their present physical condition, and agrees to make no 
demands upon CITY for any improvements or alterations thereof.  

 
3.00 PAYMENT AND INVOICES 
 
3.01 The CONTRACTOR shall present monthly invoices, for all work performed during 

the preceding month.  Said invoice shall include all required certifications and 
reports as specified hereinafter.  The invoice shall be submitted on or before the 
fifth (5th) day of each month in the amount of the compensation to be paid by the 
CITY for all services rendered by the CONTRACTOR under the terms and 
conditions of this CONTRACT.  Said payment shall be made within thirty (30) 
days upon receiving the invoices, providing that all work performed during the 
preceding month has been inspected and accepted by the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR and that applicable certifications reports have been submitted 
in accordance with the provisions of this CONTRACT.   
 

3.02 Monthly invoices: 
3.02.1 Monthly invoices shall be prepared separately for median and right-of-way areas, 

in the following format: 
 
Invoice 1 – Medians: 

Location Account 
Number Monthly Cost 

Sand Hill Road Median Landscape 100-20503-5502 $xxx.xx 
Sharon Park Drive Median Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Siskiyou Drive Island Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Trinity Drive Island Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Stone Pine Lane Island Landscape  $xxx.xx 

219



 

 

Ravenswood Avenue Island  $xxx.xx 
Middlefield Road Island  $xxx.xx 
Ravenswood Avenue Triangle  $xxx.xx 
Ringwood Avenue Island Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Felton Gables Islands  $xxx.xx 
El Camino Real Median Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Hidden Oaks Court Island  $xxx.xx 
Willow Road Median Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Woodland Avenue Islands  $xxx.xx 
Pope/Laurel Island  $xxx.xx 
Ivy Drive Center Islands  $xxx.xx 
Iris Lane Center Islands  $xxx.xx 
Market Place Island  $xxx.xx 
Marsh Road Median Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Chilco Street Island Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Teresa Court Island  $xxx.xx 
Chester Street Traffic Circle  $xxx.xx 
Deanna Drive Island Landscape  $xxx.xx 
Haven Avenue Island  $xxx.xx 
Bay Road Island  $xxx.xx 
Laurel Street and Burgess Drive Islands  $xxx.xx 
TOTAL MONTHLY COST  $x,xxx.xx 

 
Invoice 2 – Right-of-Ways: 

Location Account 
Number Monthly Cost 

Sand Hill Road 100-20503-5502 $xxx.xx 
Alpine Road  $xxx.xx 
Branner Drive  $xxx.xx 
Oak Avenue  $xxx.xx 
Creek Drive  $xxx.xx 
San Mateo Bike Bridge  $xxx.xx 
Santa Cruz Avenue  $xxx.xx 
Alma Street  $xxx.xx 
Van Buren Road  $xxx.xx 
Bay Road (East)  $xxx.xx 
Bay Road (West)  $xxx.xx 
Pierce Road  $xxx.xx 
Willow Road (North)  $xxx.xx 
Willow Road (South)  $xxx.xx 
Woodland Avenue  $xxx.xx 
Hamilton Avenue Streetscape  $xxx.xx 
Ivy Drive Plaza  $xxx.xx 
Scott Drive Fence Line  $xxx.xx 
Lee Drive  $xxx.xx 
TOTAL MONTHLY COST  $x,xxx.xx 

 

220



 

 

Invoice 3 – Downtown Streetscape / Parking Plazas: 
Location Account 

Number Monthly Cost 

Santa Cruz Avenue Walkways 758-20503-5502 $xxx.xx 
Santa Cruz Avenue Islands  $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 1  $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 2   $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 3  $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 4  $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 5  $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 6  $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 7  $xxx.xx 
Parking Plaza 8  $xxx.xx 
Transit Station  $xxx.xx 
TOTAL MONTHLY COST  $x,xxx.xx 

 
Invoice 4 – Vintage Oaks Subdivision: 
 

Location Account 
Number Monthly Cost 

Middlefield Road 
Between Seminary Drive and Ringwood 
Avenue (eastside only) 

505-20503-5502      $xxx.xx 

Ringwood Avenue  
Between Middlefield Road and Arlington 
Way (southside only) 

      $xxx.xx 

Arlington Way  
Between Ringwood Avenue to end 
along the Seminary Oaks Subdivision 
(westside only) 

      $xxx.xx 

 Coleman Avenue  
Between Santa Monica Avenue to end 
of Seminary Oaks Subdivision (westside 
only) 

      $xxx.xx 

Santa Monica Avenue  
Between Coleman Avenue and 445 
Santa Monica Avenue (northside only) 

      $xxx.xx 

TOTAL MONTHLY COST  $x,xxx.xx 
 
 
Invoice 5 – Trash/Recycling Bins: 

Location Account 
Number Monthly Cost 

Nealon Park  
9 trash bins and 5 recycling bins 

100-20503-5502 $xxx.xx 

Stanford Hills Park  
6 trash bins and 2 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

221



 

 

Sharon Park  
11 trash bins and 2 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Willow Oaks Park  
7 trash bins and 2 recycling  

 $xxx.xx 

Jack Lyle Park 
8 trash bins and 3 recycling bins  

 $xxx.xx 

Fremont Park  
6 trash bins and 3 recycling bins  

 $xxx.xx 

Belle Haven School  
2 trash bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Ivy Plaza  
4 trash bins and 2 recycling bins  

 $xxx.xx 

Market Place Park 
6 trash bins 1 recycling bins  

 $xxx.xx 

Sharon Hills Park 
6 trash bins and 1 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Seminary Oaks Park 
5 trash bins 2 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Burgess Park  
16 trash bins and 10 recycling bins  

 $xxx.xx 

Civic Center  
14 trash bins and 7 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Onetta Harris Community Center 
Complex 
10 trash bins and 1 recycling bins 

 
$xxx.xx 

Hamilton Park 
5 trash bins and 5 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Kelly Park 
6 trash bins and 4 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Tinker Park 
2 trash bins  and 1 recycling bins 

 $xxx.xx 

Bedwell Bayfront Park 
5 trash bins and 2 recycling bins  

 $xxx.xx 

TOTAL MONTHLY COST  $x,xxx.xx 
 
3.03 Invoices for approved Extra Work shall be in a format acceptable to the 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, including attachments, such as copies of 
suppliers’ invoices, which the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR may require to 
verify CONTRACTOR’S billing. Invoices for Extra Work shall be submitted on 
separate invoices. Unless otherwise requested by the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR, one invoice shall be submitted for each discrete and 
complete item of Extra Work. 

 
3.04 In the event the CITY transfers title or maintenance responsibility of the premises 

or a portion thereof, this CONTRACT shall continue in full force and effect, 
except said portion, at the discretion of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, may 
be deleted from the premises to be maintained and the CONTRACT sum shall be 
reduced accordingly. 

222



 

 

3.05 The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR may, at his discretion, add new 
Median/Right-of-Way areas to be maintained and/or require additional services.  
The CONTRACTOR shall be compensated for the additional Median/Right-of-
Way areas  or services that are designated after the date of the commencement 
of this CONTRACT based on the submission of an approved maintenance bid, 
consistent in all respects with this CONTRACT, and shall contain all information 
as required in the REQUEST FOR BIDS.  The bid cost shall not exceed the cost 
to provide maintenance for similar Median/Right-of-Way areas being maintained 
under this CONTRACT.  

 
3.06 Additional compensation may be authorized at the discretion of the CONTRACT 

ADMINISTRATOR, subject to CITY budgetary conditions, for work deemed 
necessary by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR due to extraordinary incidents 
or circumstances. 

 
4.00 ENFORCEMENT, DEDUCTIONS AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
4.01 The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR shall be responsible for the enforcement of 

this CONTRACT on behalf of CITY.  
 
4.02 The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR shall prepare and implement an 

INSPECTION RATING SYSTEM to be used to verify monthly payments and 
deductions from payments (see sample rating system as Appendix A).  This form 
and system may be modified at the discretion of the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to be so evaluated by said 
system and bound by the ratings and/or deductions from payments indicated in 
the monthly INSPECTION RATING SYSTEM report.  To avoid deductions from 
payment, CONTRACTOR must receive a rating of 95 or higher per Median/Right-
of-Way areas   as described in Section 2.01. 

 
4.03 If, in the judgment of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, CONTRACTOR is 

deemed to be non-compliant with the terms and obligations of the CONTRACT, 
the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, may, in addition to other remedies provided 
herein, withhold the entire monthly payment, deduct pro-rata from 
CONTRACTOR'S invoice for work not performed, and/or deduct liquidated 
damages.  Notification of the amount to be withheld or deducted from payments 
to CONTRACTOR will be forwarded to the CONTRACTOR by the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR in a written notice describing the reasons for said action.  The 
monthly INSPECTION RATING SYSTEM report shall constitute reason for any 
deductions so imposed. 

 
4.04 The parties agree that it will be impracticable or extremely difficult to fix the 

extent of actual damages resulting from the failure of the CONTRACTOR to 
correct a deficiency within the said specified time frame. The parties hereby 
agree that a reasonable estimate of such damages is One Hundred Fifty Dollars 
($150.00) per day per Median/Right-of-Way area, as described in Section 2.01.  
CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for liquidated damages in said amount.  
Said amount shall be deducted from CITY'S payment to CONTRACTOR; and/or 

223



 

 

having given five (5) working days notice to the CONTRACTOR to correct the 
deficiencies, if after said 5 days the CONTRACTOR fails to complete the 
required corrections, CITY may correct any and all deficiencies using alternate 
forces.  The total costs incurred by completion of the work by alternate forces will 
be deducted and forfeited from the payment to the CONTRACTOR. 

 
4.05 The action above shall not be construed as a penalty but as adjustment of 

payment to CONTRACTOR to recover cost or loss due to the failure of the 
CONTRACTOR to complete or comply with the provisions of this CONTRACT. 

 
5.00 INSPECTIONS, MEETINGS, & REPORTS 
 
5.01 CITY reserves the right to perform inspections, including inspection of 

CONTRACTOR’S equipment, at any time for the purpose of verifying 
CONTRACTOR’S performance of CONTRACT requirements and identifying 
deficiencies.  

 
5.02 The CONTRACTOR or his authorized representative shall meet with the 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR or his representative on each site at the 
discretion and convenience of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, for walk-
through inspections.  All routine maintenance functions shall be completed prior 
to this meeting. 

 
5.03 At the request of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, the CONTRACTOR, or his 

appropriate representative, shall attend meetings and/or training sessions, as 
determined by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, for purposes of orientation, 
information sharing, CONTRACT revision, description of CITY policies, 
procedures, standards, and the like. 

 
5.04 CONTRACTOR shall provide to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR such written 

documentation and/or regular reports as the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
deems necessary to verify and review CONTRACTOR'S performance under this 
CONTRACT and to provide to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR pertinent 
information relative to the maintenance, operation, and safety of the 
Median/Right-of-Way areas. 

 
6.00 EXTRA WORK 
 
6.01 The CITY may award Extra Work to the CONTRACTOR, or to other forces, at the 

discretion of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  New or unforeseen work will 
be classified as “Extra Work” when the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
determines that it is not covered by CONTRACT unit prices or is significantly 
different than the CONTRACTOR’S other work areas.  Areas added that are of 
similar size and scope to the CONTRACTOR’S current work shall be 
compensated as indicated in Section 3.05. 

   Areas that do not meet the criteria indicated in Section 3.05 are subject to 
adjustment in payment in accordance with Extra Work.  Extra Work shall be 
performed by agreement between the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR and the 

224



 

 

CONTRACTOR or on a NEGOTIATED PROPOSAL AND ACCEPTANCE basis 
in accordance with Section 7.00 or on a TIME AND MATERIALS basis in 
accordance with Section 8.00.    

 
6.02 If the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR determines that the Extra Work can be 

performed by CONTRACTOR'S present work force, CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR may authorize modification of the CONTRACTOR'S Routine 
Operations Schedule or Annual Calendar in order to compensate 
CONTRACTOR for performing said work.   

 
6.03 Prior to performing any Extra Work, the CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit 

a written proposal including a description of the work, a list of materials, and a 
schedule for completion.  No work shall commence without written approval of 
the CONTRACTOR’S proposal by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  This 
proposal is subject to acceptance or negotiation by the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
6.04 In the event that CONTRACTOR'S proposal for Extra Work is not approved, the 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR reserves the right to perform such work with 
other forces or to compel the CONTRACTOR to perform the work on a TIME 
AND MATERIALS basis.  Invoices for EXTRA WORK on a TIME AND 
MATERIALS basis are subject to CONTRACTOR markup in accordance with the 
Section 8.00. 

 
6.05 When a condition exists which the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR deems 

urgent, the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR may verbally authorize the work to 
be performed upon receiving a verbal estimate from the CONTRACTOR.  
However, within twenty-four (24) hours after receiving a verbal authorization, the 
CONTRACTOR shall submit a written estimate, consistent with the verbal 
authorization, to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR for approval.  

 
6.06 All Extra Work shall commence on the specified date established and 

CONTRACTOR shall proceed diligently to complete said work within the time 
allotted. 

 
7.00 NEGOTIATED PROPOSAL AND ACCEPTANCE 
 
7.01 The CITY may award work to the CONTRACTOR, at the discretion of the 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  New work will be awarded on a negotiated 
proposal and acceptance basis as when the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
determines that it is appropriate to negotiate a fixed price for work in lieu of 
utilizing unit prices.  Payment for Work shall be performed by negotiated 
agreement between the CITY and the CONTRACTOR or on a TIME AND 
MATERIALS basis in accordance with section 8.00.   

 
7.02 Prior to performing any work, the CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit a 

written proposal including a description of the work, a list of materials, and a 
schedule for completion.  No work shall commence without written approval of 
the CONTRACTOR’S proposal by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  This 

225



 

 

proposal is subject to acceptance or negotiation by the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
7.03 All work shall commence on the specified date established and CONTRACTOR 

shall proceed diligently to complete said work within the time allotted. 
 
8.00 TIME AND MATERIALS 
 
8.01 In the event that the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR determines that work 

requested is of an unknown duration, not easily quantified or the 
CONTRACTOR'S proposal for work is not approved, the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR reserves the right to perform such work with other forces or to 
compel the CONTRACTOR to perform the work on a TIME AND MATERIALS 
basis.  

 
8.02 The CONTRACT ADMNISTRATOR may direct CONTRACTOR to proceed by 

allowing him/her to use the following rates or percentages as added costs for the 
markup of all overhead and profits: 

 
1) Labor……………… .......................  15 
2) Materials……………… ..................  15 
3) Equipment Rental ……………… ...  15 
4) Other Items and Expenditures … .. .15 

 
9.00 CONTRACTOR'S DAMAGES 
 
9.01 All damages incurred to existing Median/Right-of-Way areas by the 

CONTRACTOR'S operation shall be repaired or replaced, by the CONTRACTOR 
or by other forces of comparable size and species, all at the discretion of the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, all at the CONTRACTOR'S expense. 

 
9.02 All such repairs or replacements, which are directed by the CONTRACT 

ADMINISTRATOR to be done by the CONTRACTOR, shall be completed within 
the following time limits. 

A. Irrigation damage shall be repaired or replaced before the next scheduled 
watering cycle. 

B. All other damages to landscape, turf, Median/Right-of-Way areas shall be 
repaired or replaced within five (5) working days. 

 
9.03 Damaged trees and shrubs shall be repaired or replaced in accordance with the 

following maintenance practices: 

A. Trees: Minor damage such as bark lost from impact of mowing equipment 
shall be remedied by a qualified tree surgeon or arborist.  If damage results in 
loss or significant compromise to the health or quality of a tree, the damaged 
tree shall be removed and replaced to comply with the specific instructions of 
the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

226



 

 

B. Shrubs: Minor damage may be corrected by appropriate pruning.  Major 
damage shall be corrected by removal and replacement of the shrub. 

 
10.00 COMMUNICATIONS AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE 
 
10.01 The CONTRACTOR shall, during the term of this CONTRACT, maintain a single 

telephone number, toll free to a Bay Area region area code, at which the 
CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR’S responsible employee may be contacted at 
any time, twenty-four hours per day, to take the necessary action regarding all 
inquiries, complaints and the like, that may be received from the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR or other CITY personnel.  For hours beyond a normal 7:00 
AM to 4:30 PM business day, an answering service shall be considered an 
acceptable substitute for full time twenty-four hour coverage, provided that the 
CONTRACTOR responds to the CITY by return call within one hour of the 
CITY’S original call. 

 
10.02 Whenever immediate action is required to prevent possible injury, death, or 

property damage, CITY may, after reasonable attempt to notify the 
CONTRACTOR, cause such action to be taken by alternate work forces and, as 
determined by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, charge the cost thereof to the 
CONTRACTOR, or deduct such cost from any amount due to the 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
10.03 All complaints shall be abated as soon as possible after notification; but in all 

cases within 24 hours, to the satisfaction of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  
If any complaint is not abated within 24 hours, the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR shall be notified immediately of the reason for not abating the 
complaint followed by a written report to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
within five (5) working days.  If the complaints are not abated within the time 
specified or to the satisfaction of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR may correct the specific complaint and the total 
cost incurred by the CITY will be deducted and forfeit from payments owing to 
the CONTRACTOR from the CITY. 

 
10.04 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log of all communications, the date 

and the time thereof and the action taken pursuant thereto or the reason for non-
action.  Said log of complaints shall be open to the inspection of the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR at all reasonable times. 

             
11.00 SAFETY 
 
11.01 CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all work outlined in this CONTRACT in such a 

manner as to meet all accepted standards for safe practices during the 
maintenance operation and to safely maintain stored equipment, machines, and 
materials or other hazards consequential or related to the work; and agrees 
additionally to accept the sole responsibility for complying with all CITY, County, 
State or Federal requirements at all times so as to protect all persons, including 
CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents of the CITY, vendors, members of the 

227



 

 

public or others from foreseeable injury, or damage to their property.  
CONTRACTOR shall make weekly inspections for any potential hazards at said 
Median/Right-of-Way areas and keep a log indicating date inspected and action 
taken. 

 
11.02 It shall be the CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to inspect, and identify, any 

condition(s) that renders any portion of the premises unsafe, as well as any 
unsafe practices occurring thereon.  The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR shall 
be notified immediately of any unsafe condition that requires major correction.  
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for making minor corrections including, but 
not limited to; filling holes in ground, turf or paving; using barricades or traffic 
cones to alert patrons of the existence of hazards; replacing valve box covers; 
and the like, so as to protect members of the public or others from injury.   

 
11.03 CONTRACTOR shall notify the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR immediately of 

any occurrence on the premises of accident, injury, or persons requiring 
emergency services and, if so requested, shall prepare a written report thereof to 
the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR within three (3) calendar days following the 
occurrence.  CONTRACTOR shall cooperate fully with the CITY in the 
investigation of any such occurrence. 

 
12.00 TRAFFIC CONTROL 
 
12.01 Prior to any work in the public right-of-way, the CONTRACTOR shall submit 

typical traffic control plans for approval for work performed in the CITY right-of-
way.  The CONTRACTOR shall submit supplementary traffic control plans for 
unusual circumstances that are out of the ordinary for right-of-way maintenance. 
A traffic control system consists of closing traffic lanes or pedestrian walkways in 
accordance with the details shown on the plans, California Manual on Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices (FHWA MUTCD 2003 Revision 1, as amended for use in 
California).  The provisions in this section will not relieve the Contractor from its 
responsibility to provide such additional devices or take such measures as may 
be necessary to maintain public safety. 

 
12.02 When lanes are closed for only the duration of work periods, all components of 

the traffic control system, except portable delineators placed along open trenches 
or excavation adjacent to the traveled way, shall be removed from the traveled 
way and shoulder at the end work period. If the Contractor so elects, said 
components may be stored at selected central locations, approved by the 
Engineer, within the limits of the right-of-way. The closing of lanes on major 
streets will have restricted hours due to traffic volumes in which lanes can be 
closed and may require work to occur at night or early mornings. 

 
12.03 The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all requirements of the City Traffic 

Engineer and shall bear all costs of required traffic control including, but not 
limited to signs, cones, markers, flagmen, barricades etc.   

 
 

228



 

 

13.00 HOURS AND DAYS OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
13.01 The basic daily hours of maintenance service shall be 7:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. 

(except the Downtown area. Work may begin at 11PM), which shall be 
considered normal work hours as may pertain to any other provision of the 
CONTRACT. Work in the Downtown area shall be performed so that it does not 
affect business and customers of business.  

 
13.02 CONTRACTOR shall provide staffing to perform the required maintenance 

services during the prescribed hours five (5) days per week, Monday through 
Friday. Any changes in the days and hours of operation heretofore prescribed 
shall be subject to approval by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
13.03 The use of power tools is prohibited daily prior to 8:00 a.m. and all day on 

Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. Exceptions will be considered in areas that 
will not affect residential properties.  

 
14.00 MAINTENANCE SCHEDULES 
 
14.01 The CONTRACTOR shall, within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this 

CONTRACT, submit work schedules to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR for 
review and approval.  Said work schedules shall identify required operations and 
delineate the time frames for performance.  An Annual Calendar shall include all 
required operations that occur less than monthly.  A Routine Operations 
Schedule shall include all tasks required at least monthly. Sample Annual 
Calendar and Routine Operations Schedule formats are included in Appendices 
B & C. 

 
14.02 The CONTRACTOR shall submit revised schedules when actual performance 

differs substantially from planned performance, and from time to time as 
requested by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  Said revisions shall be 
submitted to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR for his review and approval, 
within five (5) working days prior to the original or revised scheduled time for the 
work, whichever is earlier. 

 
15.00 CONTRACTOR'S STAFF AND TRAINING 
 
15.01 The CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient personnel to perform all work in 

accordance with the specification set forth herein.  
 
15.02 CONTRACTOR’S personnel shall possess the minimum qualifications for the 

position in which each is working, as set forth in Attachment B. 
 
15.03 CONTRACTOR is encouraged to provide on-going systematic skills training, and 

to promote participation in, and certification by professional associations. 
CONTRACTOR’S systematic skills training program, and certifications required 
by the CONTRACTOR for employees in a given position, should be noted in the 
Attachment B.  

229



 

 

15.04 Each crew of CONTRACTOR'S employees shall speak the English language 
proficiently. For the purposes of this section a crew is understood to be any 
individual worker or group of workers who might be working as part of this 
proposal. 

 
15.05 The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR may at any time give CONTRACTOR 

written notice to the effect that the conduct or action of a designated employee of 
CONTRACTOR is, in the reasonable belief of the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR, detrimental to the interest of the public patronizing the 
premises.  CONTRACTOR shall meet with representatives of the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR to consider the appropriate course of action with respect to 
such matter and CONTRACTOR shall take reasonable measures under the 
circumstances to assure the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR that the conduct 
and activities of CONTRACTOR's employees will not be detrimental to the 
interest of the public patronizing the premises. 

 
15.06 The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR may at any time order any of the 

CONTRACTOR’S personnel removed from the premises when, in the reasonable 
belief of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, said CONTRACTOR’S personnel is 
objectionable, unruly, unsafe, or otherwise detrimental to the interest of the CITY 
or the public patronizing the premises 

 
15.07 The CONTRACTOR shall require each of his personnel to adhere to basic public 

works standards of working attire including pant, uniform shirts and/or vests 
clearly marked with the CONTRACTOR’S company name and employee name 
badges as approved by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. Sufficient changes 
shall be provided to present a neat and clean appearance of the 
CONTRACTOR'S personnel at all times. Shirts shall be worn and buttoned at all 
times.  CONTRACTOR’S personnel shall be equipped with proper shoes and 
other gear required by State Safety Regulations. Brightly colored traffic vests or 
reflectors shall be worn when personnel are working near vehicular traffic.   

 
15.08 The CONTRACTOR shall include an irrigation specialist who can correctly 

troubleshoot problems in the field and make appropriate repairs 
 
15.09 The CONTRACTORS PERONNEL WILL BE REQUIRED TO HAVE A 

BACKGROUND CHECK. The following information must be submitted no less 
than 30 days prior to any employee’s start of work: 

• Full Name 
• Social Security Number 
• California Driver’s License or ID number 
• Birth Date 
• Address 

The records check will include finger printing; Department of Justice wanted 
person system, California Drivers License check, San Mateo County warrant 
check and review of any local record. The City will be responsible for the costs 
associated with this process for the first 10 contractor employees. Additional 
checks required beyond the initial 10 during the lifetime of the contract shall be 

230



 

 

borne exclusively by the contractor. The City reserves the right to approve/refuse 
any prospective employees of the contractor as a result of the background check. 

 
15.10 The CONTRACTOR shall have on staff a PCA (Pest Control Advisor).  
 
15.11 The CONTRACTOR shall have a employee assigned to the job as supervisor for 

the duration of the contract. He/She must have a minimum of four (4) years 
experience in landscape supervision, with experience or training in turf 
management, pest control, soils, fertilizers and plant and weed identification.   

 
15.12 The CONTRACTOR’s employees shall have a minimum two (2) years 

experience of landscape maintenance experience or education.  
  

16.00 NON-INTERFERENCE - NOISE 
 
16.01 CONTRACTOR shall not interfere with the public use of the premises and shall 

conduct its operations as to offer the least possible obstruction and 
inconvenience to the public or disruption to the peace and quiet of the area within 
which the services are performed. 

 
16.02 In the event that the CONTRACTOR’S operations must be performed when 

persons of the public are present, CONTRACTOR shall courteously inform said 
persons of any operations that might affect them and, if appropriate, request 
persons to move out of the work area. 

 
16.03 CONTRACTOR shall be subject to local ordinances regarding noise levels with 

regard to equipment operations.  CONTRACTOR shall not use any power 
equipment prior to 8:00 a.m. or later than 6:00 p.m.  Further, any schedule of 
such operations may be modified by CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR in order to 
insure that the public is not unduly impacted by the noise created by such 
equipment. 

 
17.00 USE OF CHEMICALS 
 
17.01 All work involving the use of chemicals shall be in compliance with all Federal, 

State and local laws and will be accomplished by or under the direction of a State 
of California Licensed Pest Control Operator. 

 
17.02 Chemical applications shall strictly conform to all governing regulations.  

CONTRACTOR’S staff applying chemicals shall possess all required licenses 
and certifications. 

 
17.03 Records of all operations, including applicators names stating dates, times, 

methods of application, chemical formulations, and weather conditions shall be 
made and retained according to governing regulations. 

 
17.04 All chemicals requiring a special permit for use must be registered with the 

County Agricultural Commissioner's Office and a permit obtained.  

231



 

 

17.05 Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) and sample labels shall be provided to the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR for all products and chemicals used within the 
City. 

 

232



 

 

PART II 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
18.00 MOWING  
 
18.01 Mowing operations shall be performed in a workmanlike manner that ensures a 

smooth surface appearance without scalping or allowing excessive cuttings to 
remain. Clippings need not be collected unless clippings are excessive and/or 
visible, or as directed by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
18.02 Turf shall be mowed with a mower appropriate to the particular turf type being 

mowed. Equipment shall be properly maintained, clean, adjusted, and 
sharpened.  

 
18.03 All mowing equipment shall be thoroughly washed following each mowing 

operation and prior to being transported to any other site. 
 
18.04 Mow turf to the following heights or as directed by the CONTRACT 

ADMINISTRATOR: 

A. Bermuda: ¾ inch – 1 inch. 

B. Cool season turf including bluegrass, perennial rye and fescues: 1 ½   inches – 
2 inches. 

 
18.05 Mowing operations shall be scheduled Monday through Friday. 
 
18.06 Walkways shall be cleaned immediately following each mowing.   
 
18.07 Mowing operations shall be scheduled at times of low public use. 
 
18.08 Mowing frequency shall be a minimum of one (1) time per week while turf is  

actively growing so as to maintain the required heights listed in section 18.04. 
 
19.00 TURF AND GROUND-COVER EDGING 
 
19.01 All turf edges shall be kept neatly edged. All grass invasions into adjacent areas 

shall be eliminated. 
 
19.02 String trimmers shall not be used to trim around trees. Turf and groundcover 

shall be maintained a minimum of one (1) foot from the trunks of trees by use of 
appropriate chemicals. 

 
19.03 A 36-inch diameter circle shall be maintained around young trees with immature 

bark or caliper of less than 6 inches.  Circles may include a watering basin, 
and/or a 2-3 inch deep layer of mulch, where appropriate, as directed by the 

233



 

 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. Circles shall be kept free of weeds and grasses 
by use of appropriate chemicals.  

 
19.04 Turf and groundcover shall be trimmed or limited around valve boxes, meter 

boxes, backflow devices, park equipment and other obstacles; and around 
sprinklers as needed to provide optimum water coverage. 

 
19.05 All groundcover and flower bed areas shall be kept neatly edged and free of 

grass invasion. 
 
19.06 Walkways shall be cleaned immediately following each mechanical edging. 
 
19.07 Frequency of mechanical edging of turf shall be at every mowing. 
 
19.08 Frequency of ground cover edging shall be as needed so that no encroachment 

occurs across boundaries. 
 
19.09 Chemical edging of turf and groundcover boundaries may be performed, subject 

to approval of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, in a manner that ensures a 
defined turf edge and limits turf encroachment into beds or across boundaries 
where it is impractical to edge mechanically.  A twelve (12) inch barrier width 
shall be considered normal. 

 
20.00 AERIFICATION 
 
20.01 Aerate all turf areas by using a device that removes ¾” cores to a depth of two 

(3) inches at not more than six (6) inch spacing. 
 
20.02 CONTRACTOR shall assure that turf areas to be aerified are properly and evenly 

moist prior to aerification operation.  
 
20.03 Remove or shred cores so that they are not unsightly or a nuisance. 
 
20.04 CONTRACTOR shall flag all irrigation heads, valve boxes, quick-couplers, and 

the like, prior to commencing aeration operations. CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible for any damage to irrigation, boxes, pavement, etc. from aerifier and 
other equipment. 

 
20.05 Aerification frequencies shall be as follows: 

A. Aerate all turf areas three (3) times per year. Aeration shall take place during 
the months of March, June and September. 

 
21.00 TURF RENOVATION  
 
21.01 Turf areas shall be renovated one (1) time per year. 
 

234



 

 

21.02 Cool season turf including bluegrass, ryegrass and fescues shall be renovated 
during the aeration in March. Bermuda and other warm season turf shall be 
renovated during June renovation period. 

 
21.03  CONTRACTOR shall use the following maintenance specification for 

 turf renovation on city median and right-of-way areas. 
 

1. Irrigation; 
Irrigation system shall be checked and repairs made to insure proper operation 
and coverage of all areas to be renovated prior to beginning work. Two five 
minute cycles shall be programmed onto irrigation controllers at proper intervals 
during the day after renovations are completed to assure area remains evenly 
moist during seed germination period. These will be in addition to regularly 
programmed watering schedules. 

 
2. Aeration; 

            Aeration shall be done by using ¾” hollow core aeration tines in two 
            directions as to achieve adequate coverage. Fields shall be thoroughly  
            irrigated prior to aerating to assure proper aeration depth (minimum 3”),  
            and all irrigation boxes, valves and heads shall be flagged to limit any  
            damage to system. Cores shall be shredded or removed.  
 

3. Fertilization; 
            All turf areas shall be fertilized using 21/7/14 slow release fertilizer evenly  
            distributed with broadcast spreaders at a rate of 6 lb’s of “N” per 1,000   
            square feet. Fields shall be watered after fertilizer application to avoid  
            damage to turf grass. 

 
4. Overseeding; 

All turf areas shall be overseeded using either broadcast or slit seeding 
methods. Seed should be distributed at a rate of not less than 8 lb’s per 1,000 
square feet and should be a blend of Perennial Ryegrass and Kentucky 
Bluegrass at an 80% to 20% ratio or blend consistent with existing turf 
conditions.  Seed shall be from a certified/tested lot with a minimum 95% 
germination rate and 0% weed seed. Overseeded areas should be promptly 
topdressed to ensure good seed to soil contact and to promote germination. 

 
5. Topdressing; 

            All turf areas shall be topdressed using high quality material that best 
            matches existing root zone soil types, and shall be free of glass, rocks or  
            other debris. Samples should be provided to appropriate contact for 
            approval prior to purchase. Topdressing material shall be distributed  
            using a dedicated drop-type topdresser at a uniform rate not to exceed  
            3/8” in depth. 

235



 

 

22.00 WATERING AND IRRIGATION 
 
22.01 All landscaped and turf areas shall be irrigated, as required to maintain adequate 

growth and appearance, with a schedule most conducive to plant growth.  The 
delivery of adequate moisture to the landscaped areas shall include, but not be 
limited to: hand watering, operation of manual valves, proper utilization of 
automatic controllers and valves. All watering and irrigation shall be done in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Water Conservation in 
Landscaping Act (AB 2717, AB 1881) and the City of Menlo Park Water Efficient 
Landscaping Ordinance. 

 
22.02 CONTRACTOR shall insure that personnel operating irrigation systems are fully 

trained in all phases of landscape irrigation systems, thoroughly familiar with the 
particular equipment in use, and fully equipped and capable of performing proper 
programming and operation of the irrigation systems.   

 
22.03 CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for performing all specified irrigation tasks 

including, but not limited to: testing, adjustments, repairs, replacements, and 
supplemental watering.  CONTRACTOR shall notify the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR immediately of any deficiencies in irrigation at these sites. 

 
22.04 Irrigation controllers shall be programmed by CONTRACTOR, with current 

schedules provided to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR monthly or sooner if 
modifications are performed. 

 
22.05 Areas not provided with an irrigation system shall be hand watered by the 

CONTRACTOR.  This includes situations where the automatic system is 
inoperable for any reason.  The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 
providing all equipment, such as water trucks, bladders, hoses, couplers and 
nozzles to accomplish this task. 

 
22.07 Watering shall be regulated to avoid interference with any use of roadways, 

paving or walks.  
  
22.08 Controllers shall be set to operate during the period of lowest wind velocity, 

which would normally occur at night or early morning hours. 
 
22.09 Irrigation shall be controlled in such a way as not to cause any excessively wet 

area, which could be damaged by mowing or other traffic. 
 
22.10 No irrigation shall be done during periods of measurable rain without prior 

approval of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 
  
23.00 IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE, REPAIR and TESTING 
 
23.01 CONTRACTOR shall provide labor and equipment for maintenance of the 

irrigation system from the water meter including repairs and replacements 

236



 

 

(whether due to damage, malfunction, vandalism, normal wear, or other cause) 
of all components including the following:  
A. Main lines 
B. Valves (control valves, ball valves, master valves, quick couplers and the like)  
C. Pumps 
D. Automatic controllers and appurtenant devices (ET and rain gauge, antenna, 

flow sensors and the like) 
E. Backflow devices 
F. Pressure regulators 

 
23.02 CONTRACTOR shall notify CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR of any damaged, 

deficient or inoperable irrigation component indicating the location, valve station 
number, problem, size, and type of irrigation equipment. 

 
23.03 Repair or replacement of irrigation components that are identified as the 

CONTRACTOR'S responsibility shall be completed within two (2) working days 
of determining damaged or inoperable irrigation component, or sooner to prevent 
damage to turf or landscaping, or if the repair is otherwise deemed urgent by the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
23.04 Replacements of irrigation equipment shall be with originally specified 

equipment of the same size and quality or substitutes approved by the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR prior to any installation thereof. 

 
23.05 CONTRACTOR’S Irrigation Technician shall be fully trained in all phases of 

landscape irrigation systems, thoroughly familiar with the particular equipment in 
use; and fully equipped and capable of identifying and isolating problems and 
performing the proper programming, inspection, testing, repair and maintenance 
of the irrigation systems.  All of CONTRACTOR’S personnel working on irrigation 
systems, shall be appropriately trained and under the direct supervision of a 
qualified Irrigation Technician. 

 
23.06 CONTRACTOR’S Irrigation Technician shall be equipped with RainMaster Pro 

Max Radio Remote hand-held remote valve actuator. 
 
23.07 Prior to testing a system, CONTRACTOR shall inspect all irrigated areas; note 

and mark with a flag marker any dry or stressed areas. During the course of the 
irrigation test, CONTRACTOR shall determine the cause of the noted deficiency 
and make needed repairs. 

 
23.08 CONTRACTOR shall sequence controller(s) to each station to check the function 

of all facets of the irrigation system.   
 
23.09 During irrigation testing CONTRACTOR shall: 

237



 

 

A. Adjust all sprinkler heads to provide correct coverage, uniform precipitation, 
prevention of runoff and erosion, and prevention of excessive overspray onto 
adjacent areas. 

B. Check for, and correct all leaks, including pipes, risers, seals, turrets, etc. 

C. Clean, flush, adjust, repair or replace any equipment, head or component that 
is not functioning to manufacturer’s specifications. 

D. Adjust valves and heads to keep all systems operating at manufacturer's 
recommended operating pressures.  Valve throttling and pressure gauging 
shall be employed to prevent excessive fogging. 

E. Check valve boxes and covers. Keep boxes and covers uncovered and 
accessible. Remove excess soil accumulations inside boxes.  Repair or replace 
as needed.  Replace and secure cover bolts as needed. 

F. Check for low-head drainage.  Clean, repair or replace malfunctioning or 
missing anti-drain devices including in-head check valve devices.   

 
23.10 Any unresolved system malfunction, damage, or deficiency shall be reported, 

including effected valve station(s) and other pertinent details, to the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR.  Said reporting shall be in writing to the satisfaction of the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  

 
23.11 In addition to regular testing, all irrigation systems shall be tested and inspected 

as necessary when damage is suspected, observed or reported. 
 
23.12 CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for performing the annual certification of 

backflow devices. 
 
23.13 All valve boxes shall be identified with heat-branded markings as directed by the 

CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 
 
23.14 CONTRACTOR shall submit as-built drawings of all modifications to irrigation 

systems, including, piping, relocation of equipment or sprinkler heads, 
replacement of heads with another make or model, changes in nozzles and the 
like.  As-built changes shall be complete to the satisfaction of the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR. As-built drawings shall be made neatly and legibly on a blue-
line copy of the irrigation drawings supplied by the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR, and shall be submitted within 2 working days of completion of 
the work. 

 
23.15 Frequencies of irrigation testing shall be two (2) times per month or more 

frequently if problems or conditions indicate a need. 

238



 

 

24.00 FERTILIZATION 
 
24.01 Products and rates of application shall be determined by the CONTRACT 

ADMINISTRATOR. 
 
24.02 CONTRACTOR shall include scheduling of fertilizations on Annual Calendar.  
 
24.03 CONTRACTOR shall give written notice to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR at 

least two City business days in advance of fertilizer application at a given site. 
 
24.04 CONTRACTOR shall have all materials delivered to the site in properly labeled, 

unopened bags.  All bags shall be retained on the site for the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR’S inspection and shall be removed promptly following 
inspection.   

 
24.05 Application of fertilizer shall be done in sections, determined by the areas 

covered by each irrigation system. Adequate irrigation shall immediately follow 
the application of fertilizer to force fertilizer material to rest directly on the soil 
surface. 

 
24.06 Turf, shrubs and groundcover areas shall be fertilized at least four (4) times 

per year. Trees shall be fertilized at least two (2) times per year. 
 
25.00 WEED CONTROL 
 
25.01 All areas shall receive diligent control of weeds by employing all industry-

recognized, legal methods, as approved by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
and in accordance with the City of Menlo Park Integrated Pest Management 
Plan.  

 
25.02 The following areas shall be kept weed free: shrub areas, ground cover beds, 

planters, cracks in paved areas, including sidewalks, curbs, asphalt, all 
hardscape and areas covered with ornamental rock. 

 
25.03 All turf, shrub beds, planters, and other landscaped areas shall be maintained 

weed free. 
 
25.04 Chemical applications shall be done as needed. Weeds, which grow from, or 

spread by, underground stolons, tubers, and the like, such as Bermuda Grass, 
Nutgrass, and Ragweed, shall be controlled using appropriate chemical controls. 
Said weeds shall not be physically removed until chemical action is complete.  

 
25.04 Inspect, spot treat or mechanically remove weeds as necessary.  Hand weeding 

or spot treatment of all areas is to be performed at least one (1) time per week.  
 
25.05 Apply appropriate pre-emergent herbicides to prevent germination of known 

problem weeds.  
 

239



 

 

25.06 Pre-emergent herbicide materials to be used shall be as approved by the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. Materials to be used shall be those best suited 
to the control of the target weeds in the given planting. 

 
25.07 Pre-emergent herbicide applications shall be carefully scheduled as approved by 

the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, and shall be made per label instructions for 
optimum control.  Scheduling of pre-emergent herbicide applications shall be 
reflected on the annual calendar along with notation identifying material name 
and target weeds.  

 
25.08 Pre-emergent herbicide applications shall be made annually and as required 

for optimum control of target weeds. 
 
26.00 TREE, SHRUB AND GROUNDCOVER MAINTENANCE 
 
26.01 CONTRACTOR is responsible for tree work within fifteen (15) feet of the 

ground. 
 
26.02 Trimming and pruning of trees and shrubs for vehicular and pedestrian 

clearance, visibility, access, plant health and appearance shall be done as 
needed. 

 
26.03 All pruning and tree tying shall conform to International Society of Arboriculture 

(I.S.A) Standards and the specific directions of the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR.  CONTRACTOR shall not allow any tree to be topped. 

 
26.04 Clearance: Maintain trees to provide a fourteen (14) foot clearance for branches 

overhanging beyond curb line into the paved section of roadways. Lower 
branching may be appropriate for trees in background and ornamental areas. 
Prune plant materials where necessary to maintain access and safe vehicular 
visibility and clearance and to prevent or eliminate hazardous conditions. 

 
26.05 Shearing: Only those plants specifically designated by the CONTRACT 

ADMINISTRATOR shall be sheared. These plants may also require additional 
thinning to maintain a healthy condition. 

 
26.06 Tree pruning shall be performed with the intent of developing healthy, structurally 

sound trees with natural form and proportion, symmetrical appearance, and 
proper vertical and horizontal clearance. 

 
26.07 Prune shrubs to encourage healthy growth habits, natural form and proportion.  

Restrict growth of shrubbery to area behind curbs and within planter beds by 
pruning.  Under no circumstances shall hedge shears be used as a means of 
pruning. 

 
26.08 Tree stakes, two (2) per tree, shall be pentachlorophenol treated lodge pole pine.  

Stakes shall be place vertically; 8 to 10 inches from the tree trunk; shall not rub 

240



 

 

against any part of the tree during windy conditions; shall be tied using materials 
and methods as approved by CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  

 
26.09 Plant ties shall be checked frequently and either retied to prevent girdling or 

removed along with the stakes when no longer required. 
 
26.10 Periodic staking and tying shall be done as needed. 
 
26.11 All structural weaknesses such as split crotches or limbs, diseased or decayed 

limbs, or severe damage above fifteen (15) feet in height from the ground shall 
be reported to the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
26.12 Groundcover 

A. Groundcover shall be renovated as needed. Renovation of groundcover shall 
include mowing, thinning and/or shearing of groundcover and fertilization; and 
may include bed cultivating and/or mulching, as appropriate to the species and 
conditions and as directed by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

B. All dead, diseased and unsightly branches, vines or other growth shall be 
removed as they develop. 

C. All groundcover areas shall be pruned to maintain neat but natural (not 
sheared) edges. 

D. Except as specifically directed by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR, 
groundcover plants shall be prevented from climbing utilities, shrubs, trees, and 
the like. 

 
26.13 Remove all dead shrubs and trees.  CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR shall be 

notified 48 hours in advance of the removal of any tree or shrub. Trees to be 
removed measuring greater than ten (10) inches in diameter at breast height 
(dbh) shall not be removed without authorization from the CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
26.14 All trimming and debris shall be removed and properly disposed of immediately. 
 
26.15 Flowering plants shall be maintained free of excessive spent blooms, flower 

stalks and the like.  Plants shall be renovated following peak bloom, and as 
needed, to produce optimum color production and plant health.  Renovation 
methods and timing shall be as approved by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
27.00 MULCHING 
 
27.01 A minimum three (3) inch layer of approved mulch shall be maintained in all tree, 

shrub, and groundcover areas.  Mulch shall be placed in such a manner as to 
present a neat appearance, cover all bare soil, and shall not cover plant material 
or the bases of trees or shrubs. 

241



 

 

 
27.02 All areas to receive mulch shall be free of weeds prior to mulching. 
 
27.03 Mulch shall be maintained free of litter and foreign matter. 
 
27.04 CONTRACTOR shall replenish mulch as required to maintain conditions 

specified in Section 27.01.  
 
27.05 CONTRACTOR shall supply mulch at there expense including all equipment and 

labor required to move mulch from the stock-pile site(s) and to place mulch in 
required areas. 

 
27.07 Mulching operation shall be accomplished in a timely manner, so that all material 

is removed and stock-pile site is left clean and level, all to the satisfaction of the 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  The CONTRACTOR shall implement 
appropriate and effective BMP’S to insure storm water pollution prevention 
compliance for all aspects of mulching operations at the designated storage 
site(s) and at mulching areas in the field.    

 
28.00 DISEASE AND PEST CONTROL 
 
28.01 All landscaped areas shall be maintained free of disease and insects that could 

cause or promote damage to plant materials including but not limited to trees, 
shrubs, groundcover and turf. 

 
28.02 The CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR shall be notified immediately of any disease, 

insects or unusual conditions that might develop. 
 
28.03 A disease control program to prevent all common diseases from causing serious 

damage shall be provided on an as needed basis.  Disease control shall be 
achieved utilizing materials and rates recommended by a licensed California Pest 
Control Advisor. Disease and pest control shall follow the goals and policies 
established in the City of Menlo Park Integrated Pest Management Plan.  

 
28.04 CONTRACTOR shall eradicate or remove bees, ants, rodents and other pests, 

which the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR deems to be a public hazard or 
nuisance.  CONTRACTOR shall arrange for and assume the expense of such 
operations, if not under its immediate capabilities, within a 48-hour period after 
notification from the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  

 
28.05 Gophers and other rodents shall be eliminated immediately by appropriate, 

approved exterminating techniques (traps, etc.). 
 
28.06 Frequency of disease and pest control operations shall be daily as needed. 
 

242



 

 

29.00 PLANT MATERIALS 
 
29.01 Plant materials shall conform to the requirements of the Landscape Plan of the 

area and to "Horticultural Standards" of American Association of Nurserymen as 
to kind, size, age, etc. 

 
29.02 Plans of record and specifications should be consulted to ensure correct 

identification of species.  Substitutions may be allowed but only with the prior 
written approval of the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
29.03 Quality 

A. Plants shall be sound, healthy and vigorous, free from plant disease, insect 
pest or their eggs, and shall have healthy normal root systems and comply with 
all state and local regulations governing these matters, and shall be free from 
any noxious weeds. 

B. Plant materials shall be symmetrical, and/or typical for variety and species. 

C. Trees shall not have been topped. 

D. Roots shall not have been allowed to circle or become bound at any stage of 
growth. 

E. All plant materials must be provided from a licensed nursery and shall be 
subject to acceptance as to quality by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
29.04 Plant Materials Guarantee  
 
 CONTRACTOR shall replace, at no cost to the CITY, any plant materials planted 

by CONTRACTOR under this CONTRACT which fail to establish, grow, live and 
remain in healthy condition , regardless of the reason for said failure, as follows: 

A. All trees shall be guaranteed for one year from the date of acceptance of the 
job by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

B. All shrubs shall be guaranteed for ninety (90) days from the date of acceptance 
of the job by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 

 
 Nothing in this section shall in any way reduce or remove CONTRACTOR’S 

responsibility as specified elsewhere in this CONTRACT. 
 
29.05 Newly planted areas shall receive special attention until plants are established.  

Adequate water shall be applied to promote normal, healthy growth.  Proper 
berms or basins shall be maintained during the establishment period. 

 

243



 

 

30.00 LITTER, LEAF, AND DEBRIS CONTROL 
 
30.01 Remove all litter, paper, glass, trash, undesirable materials, silt and other 

accumulated debris from all areas to be maintained. 
 
30.02 Complete policing, litter pick up and supplemental hand sweeping of median and 

right of way area edges, corners and other areas inaccessible to power 
equipment shall be accomplished to ensure a neat appearance. 

 
30.03 Accumulation of leaves and debris shall be removed, from all landscaped areas 

except as specifically directed by the CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR. 
 
30.04 Raking should not be used in ground cover or mulched areas except to remove 

heavy accumulation of leaves and debris. When raking is necessary, it should be 
done lightly, taking care not to damage plants or displace mulch.  

 
30.05 Increases in frequencies of clean-ups for seasonal plant defoliation or clean-up 

after storms shall be the CONTRACTOR'S responsibility. 
 
30.06 Removal of litter shall occur on a daily basis. 
 
30.07 CONTRACTOR shall employ appropriate safety equipment and procedures for 

litter removal. 
 
30.08 CONTRACTOR shall remove all private signs advertising garage sales, real 

estate, etc. (including political/campaign signs) on a daily basis from city 
property. The removed signs shall be returned to CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR.  Posting of such signs are in violation of Municipal 
Ordinance. 

 
31.00  DOWNTOWN  AREA The Downtown area is considered our highest area of 

maintenance and in addition to the basic service these additional services are 
included in this area. The Downtown is considered Santa Cruz Avenue from 
Merrill Street to University Avenue and the side streets that intersect Santa Cruz 
Avenue from Menlo Avenue to Oak Grove Avenue. In addition, the eight parking 
plazas. 

 
31.01 CONTRACTOR shall power wash Santa Cruz Avenue from Merrill Street to 

University Avenue twice (2) a year as directed by the ADMINISTRATOR. The 
scope of work includes all flat work, sidewalks, garbage/recycling cans and plaza 
areas. Schedule for power washing shall be done during the night and shall be 
included in the Annual Calendar submitted by the CONTRACTOR.   

 
31.02 CONTRACTOR shall provide portable power washing equipment of 13 hp or 

greater capable of generating 3,500 psi of water pressure to clean flat work, 
sidewalks and plaza areas. 

 

244



 

 

31.03 Measures shall be taken by CONTRACTOR to prevent water encroachment into 
businesses, buildings and structures. 

 
31.04  CONTRACTOR shall insure that methods for cleaning and disposal of  
            waste water meet or exceed BASMAA recommendations as contained in  
            pamphlet “Pollution from Surface Cleaning”.  
 
31.05 All pedestrian hardscape areas, including but not limited to sidewalks plazas, 

pedestrian street crossings shall be blown five days a week. Does not include 
parking plazas. 

 
31.06 All site amenities, including but not limited to benches, hand rails, City electrical 

boxes, bicycle racks,  kiosks, garbage  and recycling cans shall be completely 
wiped clean with a germicidal cleaner once a week.  Site amenities that are 
made out of a metal shall be polished to a high luster with an approved product 
once per week. 

 
31.07 All shrubs and groundcover areas shall be highly detailed weekly. At no time 

shall any dead leaves, flowers or branches exist. The intent is to prune the plant 
without the average lay person noticing cuts.  

 
31.08  All trees branches below 15 ‘ over the vehicular areas and 8’ feet over pedestrian 

areas shall be pruned monthly. The intent is to prune the tree without the 
average lay person noticing cuts  

 
31.09 CONTRACTOR shall clean up the recycling container areas in the Parking 

Plazas twice a week which includes organizing recycling and removal of 
garbage.  

 
31.10 CONTRACTOR  shall clean street name signs three times a year along Santa 

Cruz Avenue.  
 
31.11 CONTRACTOR shall clean drinking fountains twice a week using a germicidal 

cleaner and products to assure that drinking fountains are clean and polished. 
The CONTRACTOR shall remove any mineral build up, algae, debris, stains, etc. 
so that drinking fountain is 100% clean and polished. Should the drinking 
fountain be plugged that dismantling the fountain is required the CONTRACTOR 
shall notify the ADMINISTRATOR so City staff can make repairs. 

 
31.12 Contractor shall maintain tree wells which consist of decomposed granite/bricks 

so that there is no greater then one half inch (1/2”) differential in tree well from 
sidewalk.  

 

245



 

 

31.00 MAINTENANCE FREQUENCIES 
 
The following maintenance frequencies shall apply to the following tasks on Medians. 
 

Daily 1  Bi-Monthly 5 
Weekly 2  Quarterly 6 

Bi-Weekly 3  Semi-Annually 7 
Monthly 4  As Needed 8 

 

Irrigation Maintenance 
Controller Programming 6 

Repairs 5 
Testing 5 
Turf Maintenance 
Mowing 2 
Edging 2 

Trimming 2 
Weed Control 4 

Clipping Removal 2 
String Trim 2 

Fertilize 6 
Aerate/Thatch/Seed 7 

Pest Control 8 
Renovation 8 

Visual Inspection 2 
Planters & Ground Cover Maintenance 

Edging 4 
Trimming 6 
Cultivate 7 

Weed Control 4 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Shrub Maintenance 

Weed Control 4 
Trimming 6 
Pruning 6 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Tree Maintenance 

Trim 7 
Fertilize 7 

Re-Stake/Check 8 
Pest Control 8 

Hardscape Maintenance 
Gutters, Curbs, Sidewalks, Roadways, 5 
Miscellaneous Asphalt and Concrete 5 

Trash and Litter Pickup 2 

246



 

 

The following maintenance frequencies shall apply to the following tasks on Right-of-
Ways. 
 

Daily 1  Bi-Monthly 5 
Weekly 2  Quarterly 6 
Bi-Weekly 3  Semi-Annually 7 
Monthly 4  As Needed 8 

 
Irrigation Maintenance 

Controller Programming 6 
Repairs 5 
Testing 5 
Turf Maintenance 
Mowing 2 
Edging 2 

Trimming 2 
Weed Control 4 

Clipping Removal 2 
String Trim 2 

Fertilize 6 
Aerate/Thatch/Seed 7 

Pest Control 8 
Renovation 8 

Visual Inspection 2 
Planters & Ground Cover Maintenance 

Edging 4 
Trimming 6 
Cultivate 7 

Weed Control 4 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Shrub Maintenance 

Weed Control 4 
Trimming 6 
Pruning 6 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Tree Maintenance 

Trim 7 
Fertilize 7 

Re-Stake/Check 8 
Pest Control 8 

Hardscape Maintenance 
Gutters, Curbs, Sidewalks, Roadways 5 
Miscellaneous Asphalt and Concrete 5 

Trash and Litter Pickup 2 
 

247



 

 

The following maintenance frequencies shall apply to the following tasks on Downtown 
Streetscape / Parking Plazas. 
 

Daily 1  Bi-Monthly 5 
Weekly 2  Quarterly 6 

Bi-Weekly 3  Semi-Annually 7 
Monthly 4  As Needed 8 

 
Irrigation Maintenance 

Controller Programming 6 
Repairs 5 
Testing 5 
Turf Maintenance 
Mowing 2 
Edging 2 

Trimming 2 
Weed Control 4 

Clipping Removal 2 
String Trim 2 

Fertilize 6 
Aerate/Thatch/Seed 7 

Pest Control 8 
Renovation 8 

Visual Inspection 2 
Planters & Ground Cover Maintenance 

Edging 4 
Trimming 6 
Cultivate 7 

Weed Control 4 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Shrub Maintenance 

Weed Control 4 
Trimming 4 
Pruning 4 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Tree Maintenance 

Trim 7 
Fertilize 7 

Re-Stake/Check 8 
Pest Control 8 

Hardscape Maintenance 
Gutters, Curbs, Sidewalks, Roadways, 1 
Miscellaneous Asphalt and Concrete 1 

Trash and Litter Pickup 1 

248



 

 

The following maintenance frequencies shall apply to the following tasks on Vintage 
Oaks Subdivision. 

 
Daily 1  Bi-Monthly 5 

Weekly 2  Quarterly 6 
Bi-Weekly 3  Semi-Annually 7 
Monthly 4  As Needed 8 

 

Irrigation Maintenance 
Controller Programming 6 

Repairs 5 
Testing 5 
Turf Maintenance 
Mowing 2 
Edging 2 

Trimming 2 
Weed Control 4 

Clipping Removal 2 
String Trim 2 

Fertilize 6 
Aerate/Thatch/Seed 7 

Pest Control 8 
Renovation 8 

Visual Inspection 2 
Planters & Ground Cover Maintenance 

Edging 4 
Trimming 6 
Cultivate 7 

Weed Control 4 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Shrub Maintenance 

Weed Control 4 
Trimming 6 
Pruning 6 
Fertilize 6 

Pest Control 8 
Tree Maintenance 

Trim 7 
Fertilize 7 

Re-Stake/Check 8 
Pest Control 8 

Hardscape Maintenance 
Gutters, Curbs, Sidewalks, Roadways, 2 
Miscellaneous Asphalt and Concrete 2 

Trash and Litter Pickup 2 

249



 

 

32.00 TRASH / RECYCLING BINS  
 
32.01  Contractor shall be responsible for empting trash bins and recycling bins twice a 

week on Monday and Fridays. 
 
32.02 Contractor shall empty trash bins by 11am on designated days. 
 
32.03 The City will provide containers that can be placed at the curb for Recology to 

pick up. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to get the trash and 
recycling to these containers on the designated days. 

 
32.04 The City may add or delete trash bins or recycling bins and the cost shall be 

adjusted based upon the Contractors cost for the specific site and percent of 
individual cost of each trash or recycling bin. 

 
32.05 CONTRACTOR shall clean trash bins and recycling bins three times a year using 

a germicidal cleaner and products to assure they are clean. Should the trash bins 
and recycling bins need repair the CONTRACTOR shall notify the 
ADMINISTRATOR so City staff can make repairs. 

250



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
CONTRACTOR’S WORK FORCE 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall set forth in Attachment B to the proposed CONTRACT: 

A. Each labor or supervisory position by title that will make up the CONTRACTOR’S 
work force needed to provide the described services. 

B. A sufficiently detailed explanation of the minimum qualifications for a person 
working in each position title, including any required certifications. 

C. The minimum annual man-hours for each position title that the CONTRACTOR 
proposes to commit to the performance of the described services. 

D. A list and description of the qualifications of other pertinent staff that are not to be 
directly committed to this project but who will be available to support, consult, perform 
Extra Work, and the like. 

E.  A description of CONTRACTOR’S systematic skills training program. 
 
The information provided in this attachment is for the purposes of determining the 
CONTRACTOR’S commitment and preparedness to perform the DESCRIBED 
SERVICES, and assuring that the CONTRACTOR’S bid is reasonable and complete. 
Nothing in this Attachment shall in any way be construed to remove, lessen, or 
relieve the CONTRACTOR from any responsibility prescribed by the CONTRACT. 
 
CONTRACTOR may attach additional pages to describe Minimum Qualifications, if 
needed. Label any such pages “Attachment B - Additional Information” along with the 
appropriate position title(s) corresponding to this form. 
 
CONTRACTOR’S WORK FORCE 
 

A.  POSITION TITLE B.  MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
C. TOTAL 
ANNUAL 
HOURS 

1.   

2.   

3   

4.   

5.   

6.   

7.   

251



 

 

8.   

9.   

10.   

 
 

D. Other Staff Support Title Description / Qualifications 
1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  

 
E.  Description of  CONTRACTOR’S employee training program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

252



 

 

 EXHIBIT C 
GUARANTEE 

 
To the City of Menlo Park, 
 
 The undersigned guarantees the construction and installation of the work performed as 
Extra Work included in this project: 
 
 Should any of the materials or equipment prove defective or should the work as a whole 
prove defective, due to faulty workmanship, material furnished or methods of installation, or 
should the work or any part thereof fail to operate properly as originally intended and in 
accordance with the Specifications, due to any of the above causes, all within twelve (12) 
months after date on which said work of this CONTRACT is accepted by the CITY, or the 
CONTRACT termination, whichever is the later, the undersigned agrees to reimburse the CITY 
upon demand, for its expenses incurred in restoring said work to the condition contemplated in 
said project, including the cost of any such equipment or materials replaced and the cost of 
removing and replacing any other work necessary to make such replacement or repairs, or upon 
demand by the CITY, to replace any such material and to repair said work completely without 
cost to the CITY so that said work will function successfully as originally contemplated. 
 
 The CITY shall have the unqualified option to make any needed placements or repairs 
itself or to have such replacements or repairs done by the undersigned.  In the event the CITY 
elects to have said work performed by the undersigned, the undersigned agrees that the repairs 
shall be made and such materials as are necessary shall be furnished and installed within a 
reasonable time after the receipt of demand from the CITY.  If the undersigned shall fail or refuse 
to comply with his obligations under this guaranty, the CITY shall be entitled to all cost and 
expenses, including attorneys' fees, reasonably incurred by reason of the said failure or refusal. 
 

 
_________________________________________________________________ 
CONTRACTOR'S Name 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
Address 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
Name and Title of Signer (Please Type or Print) 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 

253



 

 

Appendix A 

 

 
CITY OF MENLO PARK 

MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

INSPECTION RATING FORM 
  
 
SITE:  Ivy Drive Plaza    INSPECTOR:  John Doe 07/30/12 
 

 
Category Description 

Possible 
Points 

 Previous 
Period 

 Rating This 
Period     

        
Irrigation Maintenance 10  9  10 
Turf Maintenance 25  20  23 
Planters & Ground Cover Maintenance 15  15  15 
Shrub Maintenance 15  15  15 
Tree Maintenance 5  5  5 
Hardscape Maintenance 5  5  5 
Trash & Litter Pickup 25  20  19 
          
          

Rating Totals 100  89  92 
Deduction Percent           

      
      
 Deduction Percent  3 
         0.03 
 Adjusted Payment Formula   
 Monthly Payment   $1,181.04 
 Deduction Amount  $35.43  
 Adjusted Monthly Payment  $1,145.61 
      

 

 

254



 

 

APPENDIX A 

 
CITY OF MENLO PARK 

MEDIAN AND RIGHT-OF-WAY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

INSPECTION RATING FORM 
 

SITE:  VINTAGE OAKS SUBDIVISION                        INSPECTOR: JOHN DOE 
07/30/12 

       
 

Category Description 
 Possible 

Points 
 Previous 

Period 
 Rating This 

Period       
         
Safety  8  8  8 
Knowledge of Contract Requirements  6  6  6 
Staffing  9  8  8 
Equipment & Vehicles  7  7  7 
Performance of Additional Work  7  7  7 
Observation and Reporting  6  6  6 
Emergency Response  8  7  7 
Response to Requests  8  6  6 
Office and Communications  7  7  7 
Invoicing  6  6  6 
Schedule and Reports  7  7  7 
Meeting Preparation and Attendance  6  6  6 
Administrative Support  7  7  7 
Supervision of Operations  8  8  8 
           
           
           

Rating Totals  100  96  96 
Deduction Percent           0 

       
       
  Deduction Percent  0 
          0.00 
       
  Adjusted Payment Formula   
  Monthly Payment   $X,XXX.XX 
  Deduction Amount  $0.00  
  Adjusted Monthly Payment  $X,XXX.XX 

 

255



 

 

 
 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
ROUTINE OPERATIONS SCHEDULE 

    Project:    Approval       

     
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 

Revised Date:   
    

        HOURS MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY SUNDAY 
7:00               
7:30               
8:00               
8:30               
9:00               
9:30               
10:00               
10:30               
11:00               
11:30               
12:00               
12:30               
1:00               
1:30               
2:00               
2:30               
3:00               
3:30               
4:00               
4:30               
5:00               

256



 

 

 
ANNUAL CALENDAR 

Project:     Approval:         
               CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR DATE 

       Revised Date:                
                

TASK JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL 
 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

IRRIGATION                
Testing                
TURF                

Mowing                
Edging                

Trimming                
Pruning                

Weed Control                
Clipping Removal                

String Trim                
Fertilize                

Aerate/Thatch                
Pest Control                

Visual Inspection                
PLANTERS/GROUND COV                

Edging                
Trimming                
Cultivate                

Weed Control                
Fertilize                

Pest Control                

257



 

 

 
ANNUAL CALENDAR 

Project:     Approval:         
               CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR DATE 

       Revised Date:                
                

TASK JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL 
 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

SHRUB                
Weed Control                

Trimming                
Pruning                
Fertilize                

Pest Control                
TREE                
Trim                

Fertilize                
Restake/Check                

Pest Control                
HARDSCAPE                

TRASH / LITTER REMOVAL                

258



 

 

 
ANNUAL CALENDAR 

Project:     Approval         
        CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR DATE 

       Revised Date:                
                

TASK MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST 
 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

IRRIGATION                
Testing                
TURF                

Mowing                
Edging                

Trimming                
Pruning                

Weed Control                
Clipping Removal                

String Trim                
Fertilize                

Aerate/Thatch                
Pest Control                

Visual Inspection                
PLANTERS/GROUND COV                

Edging                
Trimming                
Cultivate                

Weed Control                
Fertilize                

Pest Control                

259



 

 

 
ANNUAL CALENDAR 

Project:     Approval         
        CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR DATE 

       Revised Date:                
                

TASK MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST 
 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

SHRUB                
Weed Control                

Trimming                
Pruning                
Fertilize                

Pest Control                
TREE                
Trim                

Fertilize                
Restake/Check                

Pest Control                
HARDSCAPE                

TRASH / LITTER REMOVAL                
                

260



 

 

 
ANNUAL CALENDAR 

Project:     Approval         
        CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR DATE 

       Revised Date:                
                

TASK SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER 
 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

IRRIGATION                
Testing                
TURF                

Mowing                
Edging                

Trimming                
Pruning                

Weed Control                
Clipping Removal                

String Trim                
Fertilize                

Aerate/Thatch                
Pest Control                

Visual Inspection                
PLANTERS/GROUND COV                

Edging                
Trimming                
Cultivate                

Weed Control                
Fertilize                

Pest Control                

261



 

 

 
ANNUAL CALENDAR 

Project:     Approval         
        CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR DATE 

       Revised Date:                
                

TASK SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER 
 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 

SHRUB                
Weed Control                

Trimming                
Pruning                
Fertilize                

Pest Control                
TREE                
Trim                

Fertilize                
Restake/Check                

Pest Control                
HARDSCAPE                

TRASH / LITTER REMOVAL                
 
 

262



 

 

Right of Way 

263



Type Right of Ways 

Location Oak Ave. at back of Oak Knoll Elementary School, from Vine St. to 1870 Oak Ave. 

Size 20800 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Ways 

Location Sand Hill Rd. from Oak Ave. to Santa Cruz Ave. 

Size 38800 ft
2 

 

264



Type Right of Ways 

Location Sand Hill Rd. from Santa Cruz Ave. to Branner Dr. 

Size 87200 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Sand Hill Rd. from Branner Dr. to 2725-2775 Sand Hill Rd. (intersection near Rosewood Sand 

Hill)  

Size 184800 ft
2 

 

265



Type Right of Way 

Location Sand Hill Rd. from Rosewood Sand Hill to Junipero Serra Fwy. (I-280)  

Size 72100 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Ways 

Location Alpine Rd. (and Santa Cruz Ave.) from Sand Hill Rd., near Western side of Stanford Golf 

Course 

Size 57500 ft
2 

 

266



Type Right of Way 

Location Branner Dr. from Sand Hill Rd. to 2395 Branner Dr. 

Size 9700 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Creek Dr. from El Camino Real to Arbor Rd. 

Size 10000 ft
2 

 

267



Type Right of Way 

Location San Mateo Bike Bridge near 99 San Mateo Dr. 

Size 1000 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Willow Pl. Bike Bridge near 66 Willow Pl. 

Size 500 ft
2 

 

268



Type Right of Way 

Location Santa Cruz Ave. (North Side) from N. Lemon Ave. to Orange Ave. 

Size 1800 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Alma St. (South Side) from Oak Grove Ave. to Ravenswood Ave. 

Size 10000 ft
2 

 

269



Type Right of Way 

Location Alma St. (South Side) from Ravenswood Ave. to E. Creek Dr. 

Size 38300 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location El Camino Real from Alejandra Ave. to Ravenswood Ave. 

Size 11700 ft
2 

 

270



Type Right of Way 

Location El Camino Real from Ravenswood Ave. to E. Creek Dr. 

Size 21600 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Van Buren Rd. from Bay Rd. to Iris Ln. 

Size 21500 ft
2 

 

271



Type Right of Way 

Location Bay Rd. (East Side) from Heritage Pl. to Van Buren Rd. 

Size 20000 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Bay Rd. from Ringwood Ave. to Marsh Rd. 

Size 69900 ft
2 

 

272



Type Right of Way 

Location Pierce Rd. (South Side) from Newbridge St. and Willow Rd. to Del Norte Ave., sound wall 

along 101 

Size 26500 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Ways – Bulb Outs 

Location Chester St. (four bulb outs) between Arnold Way and Menalto Ave.  

Size 120 ft
2
 (30 ft

2
 each) 

 

273



Type Right of Way 

Location Willow Rd. (North Side) from 101 to RR. 

Size 42200 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Willow Rd. from Chester St. to Gilbert Ave. 

Size 21500 ft
2 

 

274



Type Right of Way 

Location Willow Rd. from Gilbert Ave. to Clover Ln. 

Size 2200 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Ways 

Location Woodland Ave. (South side, along creek) from Middlefield Rd. to Menalto Ave. 

Size 12000 ft
2 

 

275



Type Right of Ways 

Location Woodland Ave. (South side, along creek) from Menalto Ave. to Euclid Ave. 

Size 11600 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Hamilton Ave. from Chilco St. to Carlton Ave. 

Size 5000 ft
2 

 

276



Type Right of Way 

Location Scott Dr. (fence line) 

Size 54600 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Lee Dr. at Valparaiso Ave. 

Size 600 ft
2 

 

 

277



Type Right of Way 

Location Marsh Rd. between RR Crossing and Bay Rd. 

Size 8800 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Lot at Ivy Dr. and Hill Ave. 

Size 8000 ft
2 

 

 

278



Type Right of Way 

Location Ginger St. and Sandlewood St. 

Size 2200 ft
2 

 

279



 

 

Medians 

280



Type Median Islands 

Location Sand Hill Rd. from Rosewood Hotel to Branner Dr. 

Size 48400 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Sand Hill Rd. from Branner Dr. to Santa Cruz Ave. 

Size 20400 ft
2 

 

  

281



Type Median Islands 

Location Sand Hill Rd. from Santa Cruz Ave. to Oak Ave. 

Size 5000 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Sharon Park Dr. from Sand Hill Rd. to Monte Rosa Dr. 

Size 10400 ft
2 

 

  

282



Type Median Islands 

Location Sharon Park Dr. from Monte Rosa Dr. to Olympic Ave.  

Size 40900 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Sharon Park Dr. from Olympic Ave. to Klamath Dr. 

Size 85500 ft
2
 

 

 

283



Type Median Island 

Location Siskiyou Dr. between Monte Rosa Dr. and Siskiyou Pl. 

Size 16500 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Trinity Dr. between Klamath Dr. to Tioga Dr. 

Size 45000 ft
2 

 

284



Type Median Islands 

Location Stone Pine Ln. from El Camino Real to Forest Ln. 

Size 3400 ft
2 

 

Type Median Island 

Location Ravenswood Ave. from El Camino Real to Alma St. 

Size 2700 ft
2 

 

285



Type Median Islands 

Location Ravenswood Triangle at Middlefield Rd. and Middlefield Rd. between Ringwood Ave and 

Seminary Dr. 

Size 5000 ft
2 

 

Type Median Island 

Location Ringwood Ave. by Sonoma Ave. and Oakwood Pl. 

Size 11700 ft
2 

 

286



Type Median Islands 

Location Lennox Ave. from Felton Dr. to Tudor Dr. and Arden Rd. from Felton Dr. to 260 Arden Rd. 

Size 5200 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location El Camino Real from Encinal Ave. to Santa Cruz Ave. 

Size 21100 ft
2 

 

287



Type Median Islands 

Location El Camino Real from Santa Cruz Ave. to 525 El Camino Real (Safeway) 

Size 7000 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location El Camino Real from 525 El Camino Real (Safeway) to Alma St. 

Size 4300 ft
2 

 

288



Type Median Island 

Location Hidden Oaks Court 

Size 400 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Willow Rd. from Alma St. (fronting 20 Willow Rd.) to Claremont Way (fronting 330 

Claremont Way) 

Size 1600 ft
2 

 

289



Type Median Islands 

Location Willow Rd. from Claremont Way (fronting 55 Willow Rd.) to Middlefield Rd. (fronting 85 

Willow Rd.) 

Size 2200 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Willow Rd. from Middlefield Rd. to Gilbert Ave. (South) 

Size 1600 ft
2 

 

290



Type Median Islands 

Location Willow Rd. from Gilbert Ave. (North) to Chester St. 

Size 3200 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Willow Rd. from Newbridge St. to Hamilton Ave. 

Size 15800 ft
2 

 

291



Type Median Island 

Location Woodland Ave. from Menalto Ave. to Oak Ct. 

Size 800 ft
2 

 

Type Median Island 

Location Pope St. and Laurel Ave. 

Size 4200 ft
2 

 

292



Type Median Islands 

Location Market Pl. and Ivy Dr. from Market Pl. to Ivy Dr. Plaza at Almanor Ave. 

Size 31400 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Ivy Dr. from Ivy Dr. Plaza at Henderson Ave. to Willow Rd. 

Size 53400 ft
2 

 

293



Type Median Islands 

Location Iris Ln. near Flood Park to Van Buren Rd. 

Size 11600 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Marsh Rd. near Scott Dr. to Railroad Tracks 

Size 23200 ft
2 

 

294



Type Median Islands 

Location Chilco St. near Southern end of 300 Constitution Dr. to CA-84 

Size 15700 ft
2 

 

Type Median Island 

Location Theresa Ct. 

Size 300 ft
2 

 

295



Type Median Island 

Location Chester St. at Arnold Way. 

Size 200 ft
2 

 

Type Median Island and Alleyway 

Location Deanna Dr. and between Deanna Dr. and Monte Rosa Dr. 

Size 12000 ft
2 

 

296



Type Median Island 

Location Haven Ave. at Marsh Rd. 

Size 1300 ft
2 

 

 

 

Type Median Island 

Location Bay Rd. at Willow Rd. 

Size 900 ft
2 

297



Type Median Islands 

Location Laurel St. and Burgess Dr. intersection 

Size 4000 ft
2 

 

298



 

Downtown/ 

Parking 

Plazas 

299



Type Right of Way 

Location Santa Cruz Ave. from Merrill St. to Chestnut St. 

Size 3000 ft
2   

 

Type Right of Way 

Location Santa Cruz Ave. from Chestnut St. to University Dr. 

Size 2400 ft
2 

 

300



Type Right of Ways 

Location Doyle St. and Curtis St. off of Santa Cruz Ave. 

Size 200 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Ways 

Location Chestnut St. off of Santa Cruz Ave. 

Size 400 ft
2 

 

301



Type Right of Ways 

Location Crane St. off of Santa Cruz Ave. 

Size 100 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Ways 

Location Evelyn St. and University Dr. off of Santa Cruz Ave. 

Size 600 ft
2 

 

302



Type Right of Ways 

Location Parking Plazas 1-8 off of Santa Cruz in Downtown area 

Size 412800 ft
2 

 

Type Right of Ways 

Location Transit Station on Merrill St. between Santa Cruz Ave. and Ravenswood Ave. 

Size 12400 ft
2 

 

303



Type Median Islands 

Location Santa Cruz Ave. from Doyle St. to Crane St. 

Size 2200 ft
2 

 

Type Median Islands 

Location Santa Cruz Ave. from Crane St. to University Dr. 

Size 1100 ft
2 

 

304



 

Vintage  

Oaks 

Subdivision 

305



Type Right of Ways 

Location Back of parcels in Seminary Oaks Subdivision (Ringwood Ave. and Arlington Way, 

Middlefield Rd. and Seminary Dr., Santa Monica Ave. and Coleman Ave.) and Santa Monica 

Ave. from Fire Station to Seminary Oaks Park 

Size 54100 ft
2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

306



 

Type Median Islands 

Location Seminary Dr. from Middlefield Rd. to Gloria Cir. 

Size 4800 ft
2 

 
 

 

 

 

 

307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

326



  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 

Council Meeting: February 12, 2013 
 

Staff Report #: 13-021 
Agenda Item #: F-4   

 
REGULAR BUSINESS:   Council discussion and possible recommendation on 

various seats for determination at the next City 
Selection Committee meeting scheduled for February 
22, 2013 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends City Council discuss the applicants to provide guidance to the Mayor 
on the various seats that will be selected at the next City Selection Committee meeting 
scheduled for February 22, 2013 (Attachment A). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
There are seven regional seats that have vacancies through the San Mateo County 
Council of Cities.  There are multiple applicants which will require a vote by the Council 
of Cities representatives to determine the formal appointment.  
 
The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) appointment will be to fulfill an 
unexpired term through June 30, 2013.   
 
The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) appointment will be to fulfill an 
unexpired term through the first Monday in May 2013. 
 
The San Mateo County Transit Authority (SMCTA) appointment (Northern Judicial 
Cities) will be to fulfill an unexpired term through December 31, 2013. 
 
Housing Endowment and Regional Trust (HEART) has four seats that will expire as of 
February 28. 
 
The deadline to submit letters of interest is February 8, which is after the time the 
Council packet will be distributed.  Included as Attachment A are the letters received to 
date.  Any additional letters received will be provided to the Council at the meeting of 
February 12, 2013.     
 
The City Selection Committee meeting will take place on February 22, 2013.  According 
to the bylaws for Council of Cities, the Mayor is the voting member for each city.   
 
This item is on the agenda for the Council to provide input to the Mayor for voting 
purposes at the February 22 City Selection Committee meeting. 
 

327



Staff Report #13-021  

 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 

There is no cost associated with this item. 
 

POLICY ISSUES 
 

The proposed action is consistent with existing policy and Council’s direction to staff. 
 
 
  Signature on File  
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

A. List of appointments with applicants listed 

328



ATTACHMENT A

Pedro Gonzalez South San Francisco

Nadia Holober Millbrae
Richard Garbarino South San Francisco

Pam Frisella Foster City
Cliff Lentz Brisbane

CITY SELECTION COMMITTEE
Council Meeting: February 12, 2013

Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG)

San Mateo Transportation Authority (SMCTA) representing Northern Judicial Cities 

Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo)

Housing Endowment & Regional Trust (HEART)

** At time of Council packet no letters of interest were received for SMCTA **

329



330



331



332



333



334



 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: February 12, 2013 
Staff Report #: 13-023 

 
Agenda Item #: I-1 

 
INFORMATION ITEM: Update on the Housing Element Meeting Schedule 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
This is an information item and does not require Council action. 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
The City is in the process of updating the Housing Element of the General Plan in 
compliance with State law and a Court Order. 
 
On December 11, 2012, the City Council approved an updated project schedule as 
represented in Attachment A.  In January of this year, the Housing Element Steering 
Committee held its final meeting and the City hosted two community workshops.  The 
next milestone is the release of the Environmental Assessment, Fiscal Impact Analysis, 
and other documents in late February.  The approved schedule then calls for two 
Council meetings in early March 2013 – a study session on March 5 and a regular 
business item on March 12 regarding Council direction on which sites to rezone.  The 
March 5 meeting has a number of other items scheduled on it and the March 12 
meeting is devoted solely to the Housing Element.  Given that that there may not be 
adequate time on March 5 for sufficient public comment within the 2-hour study session 
window and in order to minimize the number of meetings the public would need to 
attend, staff believes it would be best to focus all of the Housing Element topics into the 
meeting of March 12.  The recommended meeting procedure for March 12 would be as 
follows: 
 

• Presentations on the Environmental Assessment and Fiscal Impact Analysis, 
feedback received at community workshops, and recommendation on which 
sites to pursue for rezoning to higher density residential uses;  

• Public comment; 
• Council questions; and 
• Council direction on which sites to pursue for rezoning to higher density 

residential uses. 
 
Staff intends to proceed with this consolidated meeting on March 12, 2013 unless 
directed otherwise by the City Council. 
 
  

335



Staff Report #13-023 
 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The impacts of the Housing Element Update will be evaluated in a fiscal impact analysis 
that will be prepared concurrent with the Environmental Assessment.  The fiscal impact 
analysis will identify potential revenue and cost impacts to the City and other districts 
such as schools and fire of the Housing Element and the General Plan Consistency 
Update.  Work on the analysis has commenced and is expected to be completed in late 
February 2013. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The Housing Element update process will consider a number of policy issues including 
issues related to the rezoning of properties and increasing of residential densities in the 
city. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Government Code Section 65759 provides that the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) does not apply to any action necessary to bring a city’s general plan or relevant 
mandatory elements of the plan into compliance with any court order or judgment under 
State Housing Element law, but a more truncated Environmental Assessment is 
required.  The content of the Environmental Assessment will substantially conform to 
the required content for a draft environmental impact report.  Work on the analysis has 
commenced and is expected to be completed in late February 2013. 
 
 
 
  Signature on file  
Justin Murphy 
Development Services Manager 
 

  Signature on file  
Arlinda Heineck 
Community Development Director 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, at least 72 

hours prior to the meeting, with this agenda item being listed.  In 
addition, the City sent an email update to subscribers to the project 
page for the proposal, which is available at the following address: 
http://www.menlopark.org/athome.  This page provides up-to-date 
information about the project, allowing interested parties to stay 
informed of its progress. The page allows users to sign up for 
automatic email bulletins, notifying them when content is updated 
or meetings are scheduled. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Remaining Schedule of Meetings and Other Activities 

336

http://www.menlopark.org/athome�


City
Council

Meeting

Housing
Element Steering
Committee
Meeting

:~~~—‘
Other City
Commission
Meeting Q Community Outreach

Activity (separate from
public hearings and
commission meetings)

Remaining Schedule
of Meetings and Other
Activities
Revision of the City ofMenlo Park Housing Element and
Consistency Update to the City ofMenlo Park General Plan

\\‘—) **
Community
Open House
Jan 29-30

2013

Civic Center
and Senior

Center

?~E ~IE Meetings withStal’eholders

Commission Meetings The primary City commissions reviewing the Housing Element are the Planning
Commission (PC) and the Housing Commission (HCI. City Commissions reviewing the Consistency Update
to the City’s General Plan include the PC and the HC plus the Environmental Quality Commission (EQC),
Transportation Commission ITC), Bicycle Commission lBCl, and the Parks and Recreation Commission (PRC)

ngs and Activities xpected to Occur rom ecember 2012 Through May 2013

(D Review by (or

Meetings with)
HCD Staff or
OthersHOME

IN M[NLO PARK
Prepared for December 11,2012
City Council Meeting

Meetings and Activities
Occurring Between May 2012
and November 2012 Related
to the Revision of the City of
Menlo Park Housing Element

and Consistency Update
to the City of Menlo Park

General Pan

Summary of Activities to Date:

Setting Direction for the Work:
May 22, 2012 City Council
Meeting to approve Settlement
Agreement, GP/HE Work
Program and membership of
the Housing Element Steering
Comm ittee

-J

Five (5) Housing Element
Steering Committee meetings
conducted between June and
September 2012

Stakeholder outreach interviews
and meetings and public
comments received through the
City’s webs ite

Two Community Workshops
conducted in August 2012

Work initiated on the
Environmental Assessment and
Fiscal Impact Analysis

Public work sessions to review
the Preliminary Draft Housing
Element (HC, PC and CC)

Submittal of the 60-Day ~
Draft Housing HCD •
Element to HCD Review
October 31, 2012 of Draft ~rHousing /1

Element
Nov and Dec2012

Release of CC udy
Documents S . n

Feb 27 2013 MA13

Release of
Documents

Mar 272013

CC
Direction

Mar 12 2013

City Council
Chambers

Commission
Meetings
Dec 2012

Meetings at
Menlo Park
Civic Center

EQC, TC, BC,
PRC, HC and
PC Review of
the Consistency
update to the
Menlo Park
General Plan
at Public Work
Sessions

U Provide
Feedback to
Staff

ity Counc
Chambers

— _

Steering Comm
Meeting #6

Jan 102013

Arrillaga Family
Gymnastics

Center

• Review Public
Comments
and Provide
Direction
Based on HCD
Review of the
Draft Housing
Element

• Provide
Direction on the
Approach for
the Community
Open House,
Feedback from
the Community
and Noticing for
Future Activities

U Review
Comments and
Directions from
the Community
Outreach

Cornm:nts

• Provide
Direction on the
Specific Sites to
be Rezoned for

igher Density
ousing

Announce the
Availability of
Documents

Documents
Available for
Public and
Stakeholder
Review.

• Environment.
Assessment
(EA)

• Fiscal Impact
Analysis (FIA)

• Draft
General Plan
Consistency
Update (GPU)

I Draft Zoning
Ordinance Text
Amendments
(ZO)

• Review
Comments from
HCD

• Present
Preliminary
Direction
on Housing
Element
Implementation
and Bundles
of Properties
for Possible
Rezoning to
Higher Density
Housing

• Provide
Opportunity
for Q&A and
Feedback

Announce the
Availability of
Documents

Documents
Available for
Public and
Stakeholder
Review:

• Revised
Draft Housing
Element
(changes
based on HCD
comments
and additional
discussion on
Available Sites
based on March
12 City Council
direction)

• Draft Zoning
Text and Map
Amendments

HC PC Public CC Study CC Public CC
Meeting Hearing Session Hearing Meeting

April 3 2013 April 8 2013 April 16 2013 April 30 2013 May 7 2013

Menlo Park City Council City Council City Council City Counc
City Hall Chambers Chambers Chambers Chambers

• Review Review Review Adopt the Final
Directions from Directions from Directions from General Plan Adoption of
Community Community Commission Consistency Zoning Text
Outreach, the Meetings and Meetings and Amendments, Amendments
EA and the FIA Outreach Community Revised Draft and Rezoning

Outreach Housing
I Provide U Consider the Element and
Direction on EA, FIA and I Review Introduce
the Revised other Material General Plan Zoning Text
Draft Housing Amendments, and Map
Element U Recommend Revised Draft Amendments
and Zoning General Plan Housing
Changes for Consistency Element and
Consideration Amendments, Zoning Text
by the Planning Revised Draft and Map
Commission Housing Amendments
and the City Element and
Council Zoning Text

and Map
Amendments to
the City Council

AL

Modifications to
the Draft Housing
Element Based on
HCD Comments

Environmental Assessment (EA) and Fiscal Impact Analysis (FIA)

337

VMalathong
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

VMalathong
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

338


	Agenda
	D1 - EQC meeting change
	D2 - 012213 Minutes
	E1 - PC Appeal 2200 SHR
	Att A - findings for approval
	Att B - Project Map
	Att C - Project Description Letter
	Att D - Project Plans
	Att E - Haz Mat Business Plan
	Att F - Haz Mat Agency Referral
	Att G - Letter of Appeal

	E2 - PC Appeal 1076 Menalto
	Att A - findings for approval
	Att B - Location Map
	Att C - Project Description Letter
	Att D - Project Plans
	Att E - Variance Findings
	Att F - Arborist Report - Ned Patchett
	Att G - Letter of Appeal
	Att H - Arborist Report - Urbantreemanagement
	Att I - Arborist Report - Barrie D. Coate & Assoc.
	Att J - Letter of Appeal

	F1 - Fund Balance
	ATT A - Reserve Policy 6-7-11

	F2 - Staffing SR
	F3 - Median RFP
	Att A - Request for Proposals

	F4 - City Selection Committee
	Att A - Letters of interest.pdf
	City Selection Att A.pdf
	Sheet1

	LAFCo - Holober
	LAFCo - Garbarino
	HEART - Frisella
	HEART - Cliff Lentz


	I1 - Housing Element Schedule
	Att A - Schedule





